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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES IN 2020
BATF AR B E 2020 F AECHEKE

CORPORATE’S ACCOLADES OR AWARDS IN 2020 F A BB R 1T

2020:

. In February, Lido Villas project under Landsea’s holding company 2 A - BARFEBIZAR A F]FE T Lido Villas 18 B 4
in US won Best Architectural Design of a Multi-Family Community ErEIEEheaESRETEERERS
(HEZREFEFEMREE) and 5 awards in Southern California N 5 IE A o
from National Association of Home Builders in US (23X 2717
).

° On 5 March, Landsea Homes, Landsea’s holding company in e 3A5H - BAzFE BT AR A 7 Landsea Homes

US, won multiple “Eliant Awards”, including fourth place in “The —HETEZIE [Eliant 2 | - EH A B L EREE
Eliant Award For Overall Home Purchase & Ownership BERBEFLIL  LINEREEERRR
Experience” for the US Company, third place in “First Year RGeS EEIZNMTEHEE  URAHNEF
Customer Service Experience” and “Highest Percent Of Sales MEZEB A E LI EREEPRISESIEELIL -

From Referrals (+{E3%)” for Northern California Team and
fourth place in “First Year Customer Service Experience In US”
for New York customer caring team.

o Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020



g
20000 M SES LAY A
Top

B &I87 ( 00106.HK)

2020 hESN~ LWL AAKRENS B
o i Wy T
A Bewe § v Mo E et _ostva Comoanars o Fats. Manugemart

T ]
IR

Ty

MRS ianane
e
2020 [R5 M~ b4

Top
MiFREIA7™ ( 00106.HK)
2020 PENNSLTFLODEAEDN 100 8

e e oty W Sy 2
0 e 100 (P gt

W

[T FITT T

SOZO%AN

—o=owal

On 18 March, the assessment result for 2020 Top 500 of China
Real Estate Developers (2020 Bl & 1 &5005%) was announced
in Beijing. Landsea ranked 59th, making it to won the name of
Top 100 China Real Estate Developers for a consecutive of ten
years. Landsea was also named the “2020 Top 10 China Real
Estate Developers in terms of Operating Results”.

On 26 May, the “2020 China Real Estate and Property
Management Services Listed Companies Appraisal Results
Conference” was held in Shanghai, Landsea Green Property was
ranked in “China’s Top 100 Most Competitive Listed Real Estate
Developers in 2020” and was awarded as “Top5 China Real
Estate Listed Companies in terms of Risk Control in 2020 (2020
H Bl E hE _E A B RERIEHITOPS)”.

3 A 18 H 2020 7 B 55 b & 500 58 AIFT AKX RIE
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES IN 2020
BT B E 2020 F KB HEKE
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In June, Landsea Green Center in Shanghai, the green
architecture in renovated office building under Landsea, was
granted the label of Green Three-Star Identification, becoming
the first and only green architecture in renovated office building
(MEE P A48 1E) to receive the label since the
implementation of “Assessment standard for green building” GB/
T50378-2019, a new international assessment standard for
green building.

On 7 August, Landsea Green Center in Shanghai was granted
the UK-China Green Building International Award (FF ZE4% (8 72 25
BIFR EERR3E).

On 12 August, the “2020 Boao Real Estate Forum” was
convened in Sanya, Hainan, and reveled the “2020 China Real
Estate Fashion Awards”, while Landsea Green Property was
named “China’s Influential Green Real Estate Enterprises of the
Year 2020”.

° Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020

67 BAFFETHESCERRAEE — 8
55 4% & 0 (Landsea Green Center) 58 J& 4% 2
—EFNEERH  A(GFERENERE)GE/
T50378-2019E BB HBIEEMEMN B EE
M ——ENGEER N R LB RE=ET

il
{ﬁg TRask ©

8A7H  LEBMFSEHRLKEPRGEE
EERERE -

8H128 ' [20208EF i ERE ] H8E =
I AR X IBEE [20204F E B i E & i oK
52 BB B HES B 2020 RFEFE N
mEMEDRE-




GREEN LEADERSHIP
CATEGORY

On 1 September, Landsea Homes, Landsea’s holding company

in US, was honored the Best Homebuilder of Orange County in
2020, its IronRidge project was recognised as the Best New
Home Community of Orange County in 2020.

On 23 September, at the 2020 International CSR Forum cum
Award Ceremony (20204 BI[E 1 ¥4t & B (TR 18 B8 42 5048),
Landsea Green Property won the “2020 Asia Responsible
Enterprise Awards-Green Leadership (20205 (> ¥4 & & —
REREH).

On 25 September, Landsea Homes, Landsea’s holding company
in US, was elected by readers of Times OC as the Best New
Home Builders in 2020.

9818 - BAsF XM IZA% A &) Landsea Homes
L2020 FMEREEEEE - FE T IronRidge I8
B &R 2020 B AR EFT IR T o

OH23H 2020 F R EM S ETHIERE
PEHEENE |- o AR AR i A S5 [2020 35 M 1B
EHes T — meEEE]-
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L E M Times OCTEEE N K 2020 ;R EFT R
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES IN 2020
BT B E 2020 F KB HEKE

On 22 October, Institute of Public and Environmental Affairs(IPE)
announced the annual evaluation result of the 7th Green Supply
Chain CITI Index on the 2020 Green Supply Chain & Climate
Action Forum. Landsea Group was named as TOP 1 in the real
estate sector for four consecutive years, and was ranked TOP 30
among the whole industry ranking as the only real estate
company for four consecutive years.

On 19 November, Landsea Homes, Landsea’s holding company
in US, was named “Best Online Sales Marketing (fx 4R _£ & 5
#%)” and various sales team awards from 2020 Socal Awards.

On 1 December, Shadetree under Landsea’s holding company in
US was granted the honour “Community of the Year (FE 4t [&)”
at Builder and Developer’s Pubby Awards.

° Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020

10 A22 B » RRIRWIAT A O (IPE) 7£ 2020 4%
EEEEERETEWE LR M E g aM
FEHCITHESFETELER - BB EEN
BB B i EE LB IS TOP » Wik M — B E
EBENFRISRITERETOP30 °

11 A198 » B 3% = B # | 2 FlLandsea
Homes 2& £ 2020 Socal Awards € &4 +
BEHEE N 2 (5 B B 4R o

12 A1 H - BAFFEEE M A 7] jE T~ Shadetree
THELEGEEM S FEtE ] B -



On 1 December, Landsea Homes, Landsea’s holding company
in US, was granted various honors from 2020 the Nationals,
“Landsea Gone Virtual” was granted Silver Award for the Best
Social Media Campaign of the Year (FF € S £t 2 1 52 E 45 4R 59)
and “Landsea Homes Virtual Sales Experience” was granted
Silver Award for the Best Virtual Sales of the Year (FFE &£
$EE R 48), various awards for sales team were also granted.

On 4 December, in the evaluation under “Best Corporate
Governance Awards 2020” hosted by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, Landsea Green Property was
granted the special mention of “Sustainability and Social
Responsibility Reporting Award”, winning the award for two
consecutive years.

12 A1 8+ BAFFEEIEAR 2 7] Landsea Homes
4% ¥ 2020 the Nationals % T8 %k 28 » [Landsea
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES IN 2020
BiE 4 E 2020 £ AR HHEE
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On 8 December, the “China Real Estate General Rating
Conference 2020” was successfully held in Beijing. Landsea
Property was again ranked in “Top 10 China Real Estate Green
Development Competitiveness in 2020 (20204 [Z 11 B B I EE 4%
B FI% 5 51038)” and won the top rating with its strong
integrated strength against competitors. Meanwhile,
Zhangjiagang Landsea Le Mansion also won “Top 10 Green
Project (Residential) in 2020 (20205 E + A4 18 B (E%))".

On 13 December, the CRECC Annual Conference 2020 and 17th
Elite Habit Award Awarding Ceremony were held in Beijing.
Landsea was granted the honour of “Green Supply Chain
Enterprise” in 2020 and Award of Excellence under the category
of “Green Supply Chain Enterprise” with its outstanding
performance in promoting green supply chain and green
transformation of industry. It was also granted the award of
“Outstanding Enterprise Membership” in the appreciation
ceremony praising members’ performance in fighting against the
pandemic.

Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020
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MAJOR EVENTS IN 2020:

On 15 January, Landsea’s holding company in US (Landseas
Homes) acquired Garrett Walker Homes, a home builder in
Phoenix, Arizona, providing support to Landsea’s stable and
healthy expansion and development in the US market.

On 13 February, Landsea’s holding company in US expressively
announced its HPH (High Performance Home) strategy in the US
market.

On 22 April, Landsea Green Property announced a new healthy
residential product, “Ark of Freedom (B ®HAAH)”, which
comprises green technology with the whole intellectual property
solely researched, developed and possessed by the Group to
continue creating green residence of health, comfortability,
energy-saving, environmental friendliness, intelligence and culture
for users.

2020 F K= -

1A158 B3 & % B & & 2 7(Landsea
Homes) 4 & iz 74 22 7 S A8 M Bl Bk 89 £ 22
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
LANDSEA GREEN PROPERTIES IN 2020
BT B E 2020 F KB HEKE

o) PSR

On 29 April, Landsea signed cooperation agreement with Dezhou
Group to jointly develop the Daya Bay project in Huizhou,
representing a solid step to deepen cooperation in the Greater
Bay Area.

In June, the fourth meeting of “China’s Real Estate Industry
Green Supply Chain Action” was convened.

On 26 August, “16th International Conference on Green and
Energy-Efficient Building and New Technologies and Projects
Expo” was grandly held in Suzhou. Landsea shared how green
technology can improve residential experience comprehensively
with “Ark of Freedom (B H75A})” as the latest implementation
showcase.

On 29 October, the commencement ceremony of park of
Landsea Green Center headquarter in Nanjing was grandly held
in Xuanwu District, Nanjing.

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020
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On 8 November, on the “2020 New Infrastructure — Green
Investment Conference” of the Third China International Import
Expo, Mr. Tian Ming, chairman of Landsea, as the only
representative from green construction corporate invited, gave
the opening speech for the special forum and shared the
exploration and achievements to promote zero carbon building
development.

On 2 December, the seventh China Passive Construction Summit
(FtETHAESHAEELSIERE), hosted by Passive
Construction Professional Committee (B 2L EXEZE S)
under the China Association of Building Energy Efficiency and
jointly organised by Tongji University, Shanghai Society of
Refrigeration, Landsea Holdings and SAYYAS (GRE& % %), was
successfully held in Shanghai. Experts, scholars and more than
100 guests from the government, institutes of higher education,
associations and enterprises gathered to discuss new
opportunities for the development of passive construction.

On 29 December, the 2020 Green Chain Committee Meeting
(2020 E 4% # % B €3%) was held in Landsea Green Center in
Shanghai. Guests from various government departments,
industry associations, international charities and leading
entreprises discussed together the future development of
“China’s Real Estate Industry Green Supply Chain Action” under
the new era of “Zero Carbon China (Zfx# El)”.
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Zhongshan Landsea Dezhou Shangjun
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRHE

2020 REVIEW

During the previous year, despite the impact of the Epidemic, real
estate market in the PRC has been recovering from the second half of
last year and achieved steady growth. The sales area and sales value
of commercial residential properties both reached single-digit growth.
Meanwhile, the launch of the “five red lines ( 1 38 4L 48 )” made 2020
the first year of prudent development of the PRC’s real estate market,
and marked the crucial period of real estate companies to undergo
industry transformation under the new logic.

For the United States, the annual GDP dropped by 3.5%, recording the
lowest value since 1946, but annualized quarter-on-quarter growth in
the third and fourth quarters turned from negative to positive,
representing an apparent recovery from the first half of last year.
Market sentiment in real estate market in the United States recovered
since the second quarter of 2020, with market performance becoming
stronger in second half of the year.

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020
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OPERATION PERFORMANCE

During the period under review, “Landsea Products” recorded
contracted sales of approximately RMB41.19 billion. The contracted
GFA was approximately 2.33 million sg.m., realizing a net core profit of
RMB250 million with a year-on-year decrease of 82.2%. During the
period, the Group secured 35 projects, of which 20 were in the PRC

and 15 were in the United States.

The drop of net profit during the period was mainly due to: firstly, the
delay in construction and delivery of houses in the United States due to
material impact of the Epidemic in the area, which resulted in significant
portion of revenue not being recognized in 2020; as at the end of
2020, the value of outstanding orders sold in the United States was
approximately RMB2.72 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of
346%. During the period, under prudent principle, we provided for
inventory impairment for certain projects in New York. The United
States business segment recorded a core net loss of RMB70 million in
2020, instead of a core net profit of RMB190 million in 2019.

RS
CEHA [BBFdan]l OROEEENAARE
A191BTT  BYELEBNA23BEFL K BH

BOEMBEARE 25T - R T%82.2% ° HiIX
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRHE

The progress of the expansion of light asset business in the PRC was
delayed due to the Epidemic, which led to a shift in the timing of
contracting and revenue recognition; During the period, due to the
impact of factors including adjustment and controls on real estate in
the PRC, selling prices of certain projects of associates fell below
expectation. We provided for impairment under prudent principle,
resulting in loss in book value of non-cash nature.

Our business in United States was successfully listed in Nasdaq
through SPAC on 7 January 2021,
expenses of approximately RMB105 million according to Hong Kong

incurring related non-recurring

accounting standards; Meanwhile, the appreciation of RMB in 2020
resulted in unrealized exchange losses of RMB193 million.

The Board believes that despite suffering from the impact of the
epidemic, the Company’s overall operation remains satisfying, with
prudent and sound investment in land acquisition and sufficient cash
flow in both the PRC and the United States. Our on-balance sheet net
debt ratio was only 25.9% and the cash to short term debt ratio was
as high as 6.1x. The successful listing of our US business in Nasdaq
will be benefiting its future development. We will continue to maintain a
prudent and stable financial strategy and actively adopt various
contingency measures to hedge against the ongoing impact of
Epidemic across the PRC and the globe, so as to ensure smooth and
orderly progress of our real estate projects throughout the year.

REAL ESTATE BUSINESS IN THE PRC

In March 2021, Landsea was ranked as one of the top 100 real estate
development enterprises (#EZEEF R ) for the 11th time. As a
leading green property development service provider in the PRC,
Landsea has been innovating and developing for nearly two decades,
deeply cultivated continuously. As of the end of 2020, Landsea had
built 132 green residential projects in 33 cities across the PRC,
providing quality products and services to 500,000 property owners.
Around 70% of Landsea’s development projects are green real estate
projects, the proportion was the highest among the green real estate
developers in the PRC.

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020
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In December 2020, Landsea was once again selected as one of Top
10 China Real Estate Green Development Competitiveness ( FF B E it
EABRESE H158), ranking top one. Meanwhile, Zhangjiagang Le
Mansion was also awarded as one of the “Top 10 Green Projects of
2020 (ZE =2 FE T+ K& B H ). Since the launch of “Landsea
International Block ( BAFFEIER & ) in 2005, Landsea has continued
to explore residence with green technology, and has experienced
iterations from centralized residence to household residence and
then to compound residence. In April 2020, we launched “Ark of
Freedom ( B A})”, a green healthy residents, as a new generation
of products, and quickly debuted in cities such as Zhongshan,
Chengdu, Nanjing and Suzhou. In the future, the product will be
developed in Wuhan, Kaifeng, Beijing, Huizhou and other cities. This
residential product possesses more than 100 patents, has initiated
another mission to explore of the boundary of “freedom” of human
living. Its differentiated product capability has brought significant
competitive advantages, the developed products had a premium of
RMBS3,000 to 6,000 per square meter as compared with competing
products in the surrounding area.

During the period, the Company acquired a total of 20 projects in cities
including Nanjing, Suzhou, Wuxi, Jiaxing, Ningbo, Jinhua, Huizhou and
Tianjin, saleable value and saleable area of new projects was
approximately RMB26.56 billion and 1.61 million sg.m. respectively.
Among those city, Huizhou, Jinhua and Mianyang were cities we
entered into for the first time. In 2020, the Company’s new-acquired
development projects concentrated in first and second tier cities and a
small number of third and fourth tier cities in core areas, of which the
value of projects in the Yangtze River Delta and the Greater Bay Area
has reached approximately 85% among new-acquired projects in the
PRC.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRHE

REAL ESTATE BUSINESS IN THE UNITED
STATES

Factors including the desire for independent space created by the
Epidemic outbreak, the entry of millennial into the home buying market,
the continuing reduction in mortgage rates, and the lack of housing
supply have created great market opportunities for homebuilders in the
United States, especially those deeply cultivated in high-growth
markets.

In January 2020, we acquired Garrett Walker Homes, a homebuilder in
Phoenix, Arizona, and acquired 18 of its single-family community
projects (14 of which were in sale) and over 1,700 lots. The projects
acquired in the acquisition complemented Landsea Homes’ original
business layout, further optimizing its product portfolio in the United
States and providing assistance to Landsea Homes’ solid growth in the
entire United States market. As of the end of 2020, Landsea Homes
has jumped to the fifth place in the builder ranking in Arizona. By now,
Arizona, California and the New York metropolitan area together
constitute a significant source of revenue for Landsea Homes.

In January 2021, Landsea Homes was officially listed on NASDAQ and
became one of the 18 listed builders in the United States, recognizing
our commitment and efforts of over 7 years in the United States market
as well as remarking beginning of our new journey. Landsea Homes,
becoming an independent listed entity, helps further enhance its
corporate governance level, broaden its financing channels, and
facilitate extensive and in-depth communication with potential
investors, which in turns contributes assist sustainable growth of its
business in the United States. With the Epidemic gradually came under
control and the residence market continued to heat up, the United
States real estate business is expected to grow in a long term.

During the period, Landsea Homes secured a total of 15 projects in
second-tier gateway cities such as Orinda, California and Phoenix,
Arizona, saleable value of new projects was approximately RMB6.65
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 66%, and saleable area
In 2020, contracted sales of
property projects in the United States reached RMB6.91 billion,

of new projects was 550,000 sg.m..

representing an increase of 73% as compared with last year.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Landsea always adheres to coordinate development of economy,
society and environment, and conducts corporate operations
responsibly; It vigorously promotes green development of the supply
chain, and has continued to introduce innovative technologies and
integrated internal and external resources over years, to form a green
chain management system in respect of the whole process of project
planning and design, procurement, construction to operation and
maintenance. Over the past four years since the establishment of
Green Chain Action, of which | am the Chairman, 100 real estate
companies have joined the action; as of October 2020, a total of 3,848
real estate upstream companies in 10 categories have joined the Green
Chain Supplier White List.

At the end of 2020, the Institute of Public and Environmental Affairs ( 2
FIREMIZTA L) released the results of the seventh annual evaluation
of the Green Supply Chain CITI Index, and Landsea was ranked first in
the real estate sector for the fourth time, maintaining its leading position
in the green real estate industry. Meanwhile, with its outstanding
performance in promoting greening of the supply chain and green
transformation of the industry, Landsea was awarded the honorary title
of “Green Chain Enterprise of the Year (FE4k§# 1% )” and the Award
of Excellence under the category of “Green Supply Chain Enterprise” of
the Year at the China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce Annual
Conference 2020.

During the period, the 2019 ESG Report of Landsea Green Property
was granted the “Sustainability and Social Responsibility Reporting
Awards” by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
winning the award for two consecutive years.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRHE

OUTLOOK FOR 2021

The government work report in March 2021 insisted on the positioning
of “Houses are for living but not for speculating” and proposed “stable

land price, stable house price and stable expectation (#EH(E ~ BE(E -

1= 78 #1 )" to promote the stable and healthy development of the real
estate market; it is expected that the macro policy will continue to follow
the prudent principle in 2021, the deleveraging of real estate finance will
continue to intensify, the era of general and significant inflation in house
price has passed.

It is clearly stated in the “14th Five-Year Plan” that a carbon emissions
peaking action plan should be formulated by 2030, to achieve carbon
neutrality by 2060; accelerating development by way of green
transformation and commencing demonstration of major projects such
as nearly zero-energy buildings. At the same time, consumer market in
the PRC is expected to further expand during the “14th Five-Year Plan”
period and become the world’s largest market. The growth of income
will bring adjustment of consumption structure, prompting the
upgrading of consumption towards high-end, high-quality and smart
transformation. The major trend is to promote low-carbon
transformation, develop green buildings and promote the healthy
development of residence consumption.

As early as 2004, Landsea, in foresight, established a differentiated
competitive strategy focusing on green technology residence and has
been adhering to it since then. Upholding the mission of creating green
living with high comfort and low energy consumption, Landsea has
been polishing its products through continuous investment in research
and development and its in-depth observation on customers, as well
as constant reforms and improvement. At the same time, we have
been exploring asset-light for years; Asset-light transformation is
principally an innovation in business model and the restructuring of
earning model, based on strong product and operation capabilities,
healthy financial position and the ability to obtain capitals. In the future,
as our strategic choice, we will continue to implement and polish our
differentiated product technology and asset-light business model; we
will also effectively implement the concept of customer service and
sustainable development in our mindset, and guide our business
development with the strategic positioning of “green builder + real
estate investment bank ( 4k 2R + HERTT).
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT B

As 2020 came to the end, Landsea also celebrated its 20th B Z T -_FTFWEMZ T BEE00kTES
anniversary. We make breakthroughs and move forward steadily. As a 205 [k AE | » BEEi a0 - (7B - EA— X
company with distinctive values, Landsea has always adhered to its A HBEEEN AT @ PAEHBREEZZEE 5 K8
own strategies and cultural position, and upheld its belief in long-term  BSFE HEEHFTEMNEZS - kA [ BELAT ] 28
concept. It is the vision and source of motivation of Landsea to M FES @ (b 2BAEMNEN HIRE o REET 205K
become a “Everlasting Green Company”. The continuous support from HFEBRERBEIHLCEIANSNITHELREE
all sectors in the society and valuable contribution from the dedicated EBIWESZEE G BRERXESREARMNLIES
staff at all levels are essential to the strong development of the Group T « {84 & RAEB LA OB RGE o« FI45H
over the past 20 years. On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend &EAEFS - BT - RE - S1EA R EMAZE@EE
our heartfelt gratitude to our staff, investors and business associates A& E1(E -

for their support. We will continuously create value for our customers,

staff, shareholders, cooperative partners and other stakeholders.

Tian Ming HE
Chairman FE
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021 'S —E-_—H=ZA=+H
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAERBNT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tian was born on 24 January 1961. He was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and an executive Director on 31 July 2013. He
is the chairman of the sustainable development supervision committee
of the Company (the “Sustainable Development Supervision
Committee”). He obtained an Executive Master of Business
Administration from China Europe International Business School
(“CEIBS"). Mr. Tian founded Landsea Group Co. Ltd. (BAz3 £ @D A
fR27]) (“Landsea”) in 2001. He is now the controlling shareholder and
also the Chairman and President of Landsea and its subsidiaries
(“Landsea Group”). Mr. Tian has 20 years’ extensive experience in the
fields of competitive strategy, operation management and property
investment and development.

Mr. Tian initiated the “Green Supply Chain Act of Real Estate Industry”,
which aims to mitigate the negative effect of the industrial supply chain
on the environment by promoting green procurement.

Aged 38, was appointed as an executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 27 March 2020. He graduated from Wuhan
University in 2004, where he obtained a bachelor degree of law and
Sociology. He also received a master degree in Sociology from the Law
School of Tsinghua University in 2007. Mr. Huang had worked for
Huarun (Dalian) Co., Ltd., CITIC Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Hailiang
Group Co., Ltd. as the sales manager and general manager
respectively. He has extensive experience in sales and marketing and
operation management in real estate industry. Mr. Huang joined the
Company in 2019 and served as the vice president.

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020

HITES

BEEHER— N A~A—F—AZ+WmA BR=F
—=F LA+ HEZAAEEZREIFERHITE
E-BNARRFAFELRREEZES (A FHE
BREBLZES)ZEFE HAEESTRERT
P20 ([P BB T 20k |) EMBARE + 247 o 1
RZEE-—FRIMAFEBEROGER QT
1) RABRFRENBAR([BAFSRE D ER”RR
R MREERFEH - HILETERFEHE L2
B EHERENAZ AT BES - THFHEEL
A%ﬁo

BAEETEHE [FHETESCHERTS] 5
EHEBFERE  RETERRUEREEREAR

By 48R
VRE o

BEBR N_T_TF=A_TLBHEZERRX
RARTEERER - TR _TTMFEERZE
RE BISHEREBET 8 - RRRNR_-TZT
TERFBEABHGRLBRLEM - FALER
SRBRER(KE)BRLAR - HEFBERNER
NREANEZEEERARELE  HAIRETEHK
BRAKEER - EFHETENEHENEEE
BITHEEEELR EEERN_FT-AFMAR
NE X ERIEE B



Aged 42, was appointed as an executive Director and Executive Vice
President of the Company on 27 March 2020. He graduated from
Shenyang Jianzhu University with specialisation in Real Estate
Management. He has joined several enterprises including Longfor
Group Holdings Limited and China Vanke Co., Ltd., and served as the
person-in-charge of the investment center and manager of the
development department for regional projects of the group. Mr. Jiang
has extensive experience in real estate industry, land acquisition as well
as project acquisitions and mergers. He was appointed as assistant to
president and Chief Investment Officer of Landsea Group on 12
January 2017, and was also in charge of the strategic expansion
center. Mr. Jiang was also appointed as the Vice President of the
Company on 23 November 2018.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Aged 43, was appointed as an executive Director on 31 July 2013 and
was re-designated to a non-executive Director on 20 November 2020.
She was appointed as a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) on 19 June 2020. Ms. Shen
joined Landsea Group in 2011 and served as the general manager of
Marketing and Sales Center, general manager of Nanjing property
regional company, the vice president in Landsea Group and other
positions. Ms. Shen has extensive experience in various areas including
property development management, investment and financing
management, asset management, management consulting, market
and customer strategy, etc..
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAERBNT

Aged 62, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 17 November
2015. He is a member of the audit committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee”). He is the chairman and chief executive officer of
Ping An Real Estate Company Limited. Mr. Zhou joined Ping An
Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. in early 2010 after spending
more than 12 years in Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, one of the
largest global real estate developers headquartered in Hong Kong.
During his time at Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Mr. Zhou was the
chairman of Sun Hung Kai Real Estate (Shanghai) Limited, overseeing
its real estate business in the China market and the significant growth
in its land bank and investment portfolio. Prior to his term at Sun Hung
Kai Properties Limited, Mr. Zhou was the vice chairman of Chu Kong
Shipping Enterprises (Group) Co., Ltd. (formerly known as “Chu Kong
Shipping Development Co., Ltd”), which was successfully listed on the
Stock Exchange in 1997. Mr. Zhou has been a non-executive director
of CIFI Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange; stock Code: 884) from December 2017 to
November 2018. Mr. Zhou graduated from Fudan University with a
doctorate degree.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Sustainable Development
Supervision Committee. He obtained a PHD of Economics from
University of California Davis in 1991. He was the managing director
and head of research department in China International Capital
Corporation Limited, and senior economist of Merrill Lynch (Asia
Pacific) and consultant of World Bank. Currently, Mr. Xu serves as the
Honorary Professor in CEIBS and his research areas include
macroeconomics, finance, financial institutions and markets, transition
economics and China’s economic reforms. He is a famous Chinese
economist and was granted the highest award of economics study in
China, the “Sun Yefang Economic Science Award”. Mr. Xu has more
than 35 years’ experience in economics analysis.
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Aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
22 March 2019. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Chen is a tenured Full Professor of
Accounting, and Associate Dean and the Director of MBA programs at
the School of Business and Management at Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He earned his Bachelor of Business
Administration from National Cheng-Chi University (Taiwan), Master of
Science from University of lllinois at Urbana Champaign, and P.H.D. in
Accounting from University of Texas. His research interests are
corporate governance, auditing, and earnings quality. His research has
been published in top tier journals including The Accounting Review,
Journal of Accounting and Economics, Journal of Financial Economics,
Journal of Financial and Quantitative Analysis, and Accounting
Organizations and Society. Mr. Chen’s article in Journal of Accounting
and Economics (2007) (“JAE”) is one of the most cited JAE articles in
the year. His research has been featured in CFO.com, Accounting
Today, Thomson Reuters and American Accounting Association’s
monthly newsletter. Mr. Chen has more than 12 years of experience of
teaching financial and managerial accounting to MBA and EMBA
students and in Executive Education programs. He has won numerous
teaching awards including the Franklin Teaching Prize, the Best 10
Lecturers, and Faculty of the Year by EMBA students. Mr. Chen is also
a CPA (Australia) and a Chartered Global Management Accountant
(CGMA).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAERBNT

Aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
27 May 2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Rui graduated from University of International Relations
(BIFERARERRRT ) in the PRC in July 1990, where he obtained a bachelor
degree in international economics. He also received a master of
science in economics from Oklahoma State University in the United
States as well as a master of business administration and a doctor of
philosophy in business administration from the University of Houston in
the United States in May 1993, December 1996 and August 1997
respectively. Mr. Rui has been a Professor of Finance and Accounting
at CEIBS since January 2012, and has held the title of Zhongkun
Group Chair in Finance at CEIBS from October 2015 to May 2019 and
Parkland Chair in Finance at CEIBS from May 2019. Mr. Rui has been
professionally designated as a Certified Financial Analyst by the
Association for Investment Management and Research since
September 2000 and a Financial Risk Manager by the Global
Association of Risk Professionals since April 2010. He currently serves
as an independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of COSCO Shipping Energy Transportation Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 1138 and stock code: 600026; a company listed on both the
main board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange
respectively), an independent non-executive director of Shang Gong
Group Co., Ltd. (E TR B (£ & )& B R A 7)) (stock code:
600843; a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), an
independent non-executive director and the chairman of the audit
committee of China Education Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
839; a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) and
he has been appointed as an independent non-executive director,
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee of Country Garden Services Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 6098; a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange) since May 2018. Mr. Rui has been an independent non-
executive director and the chairman of the audit committee of Midea
Group (M EE K% B R A 7)) (stock code: 000333; a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from September 2015 to
September 2018 and an independent director and the chairman of the
audit committee of Shanghai Winner Information Technology Co., Inc.
(EBEMEERERMAR AR ) (stock code: 300609; a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) from December 2015 to
September 2020.
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COMPANY SECRETARY NARIWME

Ms. Chan was appointed as company secretary and authorized Bz +W_ZEEZF+—A—BHEZFTAARRARZ
representative of the Company on 1 November 2006. Ms. Chanis a A "RWERFEERE « M+ A% B The Chartered
fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute and The Hong  Governance Institute X F B WME AN emE rfe
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. She is also a member of the + - HINATEEEELe@ 28 - Mu+HEARE
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Ms. Chan has over 25 years’ Z—+AEERE FHAGIMEERLS o

experience in handling listed company secretarial matters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP

The Group upheld the development strategy of “Product-differentiation,
Asset-light transformation and Revenue-diversification” and leveraged
its resource endowments to further achieve capability of green property
products differentiation. Meanwhile, with the advantages of products
diversification, the Group actively expanded various projects focusing
on minority interests, and vigorously developed project development
and management service business to achieve revenue diversification.

In 2020,
approximately RMB41.19 billion (including the contracted sales of

“Landsea Products” recorded contracted sales of
approximately RMB39.86 billion from the Group and a small amount of
remaining projects entrusted by Landsea Group) (2019: approximately
RMB40.49 billion). The contracted GFA of 2,333,585 sg.m. (including
2,251,373 sg.m. from the Group and a small amount of remaining
projects entrusted by Landsea Group) (2019: 2,340,931 sg.m.),
remained basically the same as compared with 2019.

In 2020, the Group secured 35 projects, of which 20 were in the PRC
and 15 were in the United States, all of the projects were under
development for sale (including 17 projects in which the Group held
equity interests and 18 development management projects entrusted
by independent third parties).

In 2020, the Group recorded an increase in the new project saleable
area of 2,160,986 sg.m. with expected new project saleable value of
approximately RMB33.21 billion, in which new project GFA of 979,388
sg.m. (new project saleable area of 860,089 sg.m.) and expected new
project saleable value of approximately RMB11.27 billion are recorded
from the new project the Group held interest respectively. According to
the Company’s attributable equity interest in the new project, the
Group recorded a new project GFA of 683,066 sg.m. (new project
saleable area of 646,950 sqg.m.) as well as expected new project
saleable value of approximately RMB8.01 billion. During the period, the
Group obtained new entrusted development management projects
with GFA of 1,873,358 sg.m. (saleable area of 1,300,897 sg.m.) and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB21.94 billion. By
adhering to a consistently stable and prudent investment strategy, the
Group’s costs for acquiring land and asset have significant advantage
in resisting the market risk in the future.

¥BOE

SEER

AEBRE[EREZE(L  BERR (L RSB
bIMBERER  EREHEREM  E—FE
geMmEEmERLEN BN ZOoOMNAEEL
MEREDZ BERABRNNREESTHNZEIE
B ANWEEEREEERGES  EmMERK
B o

TETHFE - [HAFEel ENEEEHNAARKE

A1 9EBET(BREAEEN A ARE3I986ETRD

ERFEELZERECRERER) (ZE-NF : &

RARMEL04.9187TT) » 2KV EEH TE /2,333,585

K (BIEAER2251373 F KM D ERFE

EZAEEZELER) (ZF—NF 1 2,340,931 F
AR RZEBE—NFEARRFE -

RZTZTFE - ANEBHERTIBEER - HAF
RESER20ME - EBA15E  BEUIEE Y ARBIEE
AME(ERAEESGEREBEEI7E BUE=
FEMABERIEE 181@) o

RZZEZTFE - AEBFICHEHSEAMENE
HEA2,160,986 F 5K « FBRIAIEEENAARE
3321187 + ERAEEESERIE R LR EER
7%979,388F 750K + A & HE /3 860,089 F 5K * 7
AEEENAEARBEA127EITT - AEBE(LE
SER o T 2 SR T 75 4 683,066 F 5K ¢ AT E @A
/646,950 F 7oK - TBETAIE BEX A AR 80.1
B RAHHEASEN EZTHEEEEEZE
H1& /51,873,358 F /5 °K » Al B H & & 1,300,897 F
7oK BRI EEENAARK 2194187 - N&EE
FRH—EBEBRFENRERE T REEEEK
AEBREEED  BHREERRTISRAR

RS ERRAR/ S5 F% @



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had project reserves with saleable
area of 5,289,758 sg.m. and expected saleable value of approximately
RMB104.32 billion, in which saleable area of 1,947,043 sg.m. and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB37.64 billion secured for
the equity-held projects, with saleable area of 1,139,253 sg.m. and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB21.15 billion attributable
to the Group. The Group had also acquired a total of 48 development
management projects by entrusted independent third parties, with
saleable area of 3,342,715 sg.m. and expected saleable value of
approximately RMB66.68 billion. The Group held the leased properties
with total GFA of 165,632 sq.m. and the equity-held projects with GFA
of 91,082 sg.m..

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN THE PRC

For expansion of real estate development in the PRC, Landsea
continued to take a prudent and pragmatic approach. During the
period, the Group secured a total of 20 projects in cities such as
Nanjing, Suzhou, Wuxi, Jiaxing, Ningbo, Jinhua, Huizhou and Tianjin
with an additional saleable area of 1.61 million sg.m. and saleable value
of approximately RMB26.56 billion; Meanwhile, the Group had entered
into projects in relation to property development and management
services with independent third parties, with contract sum of
approximately RMB900 million (2019: RMB1.8 billion). In addition, at
the end of 2020, confirmed contracts of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB1.15 billion.
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN THE UNITED STATES
The Group’s property development business covers both the PRC and
the United States. Currently, Landsea Homes Incorporated (“Landsea
Homes”) ranks top 40 among real estate developers in the United
States. Since entering into the United States market in 2013, Landsea
has been implementing the localization strategy clearly from the four
dimensions of local market, local resources, local customers and local
team, and successively expanding to Greater New York, Boston, Los
Angeles, San Francisco and Arizona to develop mid-high end
residential market. At the same time, the Company also reviewed the
situation and set its sights on a more robust and stable market with
rigid demand. Assets of United States business accounted for
approximately 26.9% of the Group’s assets for the year ended 31
December 2020.

During the period, Landsea Homes secured 15 projects in cities
including Olinda, California and Phoenix, Arizona, with additional
saleable area of 0.55 million sgq.m. and saleable value of approximately
RMB6.65 billion.

CONTRACTED SALES IN WHICH THE GROUP HELD
EQUITY INTERESTS AND PROPERTIES SOLD BUT
NOT RECOGNISED

In 2020, the total contracted sales of the property projects in which the
Group held equity interests amounted to approximately RMB25.68
billion with contracted sales area of 1,410,828 sg.m., i.e. an average
selling price of RMB18,205 per sg.m.. The contracted sales were
mainly from the on-sale projects in Shanghai, Tianjin, Chongging,
Chengdu, Nanjing, Suzhou, Wuxi, Hefei and Zhongshan, etc. in the
PRC and first tier and second tier gateway cities in the United States.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s accumulated areas of properties
sold but not recognized were 2,681,693 sg.m. (31 December 2019:
2,402,004 sg.m.), amounting to approximately RMB43.65 billion (31
December 2019: approximately RMB39.78 billion), in which areas of
properties sold but not recognised attributable to the Group were
1,080,907 sg.m. (31 December 2019: 902,868 sg.m.), amounting to
approximately RMB17.41 billion (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB15.28 billion).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EXTERNAL CONTRACTS OF 2020

—ECEFHIMNEY

Average
Contracted Contracted
Equity Sales Contracted Sales Selling
Number  Projects Holding Amounts Sales GFA* Price
&aE EEHEE SEHE
=27 EH FE 25 LA HESH EEmBY FHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®FT) (FFHK) (AR¥TT)
1 Nanjing Youth Block 100.0% 2,622 - -
MRERHER
2 Nanjing Future Home 50.1% (423) — —
FRARRK
3 Nanjing Poly Landsea Weilan 49.9% 35,218 1,295 27,187
M RBARHR AR 8
4 Nanjing Xihua Mansion 19.0% 5,440 - -
MR ERERT
5 Nanjing Zixi Mansion 20.0% 1,093,719 61,659 17,738
MR R BRI
6 Sugian Weilan Elegant Yard 51.0% 662,232 62,539 10,589
BB ML
7 Sugian Weilan Court 51.0% 400,198 36,788 10,878
EERERD
8 Hefei Wanxin’s Hi-tech Court 49.0% 1,088,968 56,984 19,110
SRR
9 Shangshi Landsea Future Block 100.0% 710,433 38,445 18,479
FERKRER
10 Kunshan Langlu Garden 51.0% 15,300 - -
EILBA%IER
11 Kunshan Langyue Garden 51.0% 72,220 1,150 62,780
E L BAtR FEE
12 Wuxi Tiancui 100.0% 2,712 - -
R
13 Suzhou Green County of Taihu 55.0% 6,790 408 16,642
FRIN AR ED
14 Wuxi Luka Small Town 100.0% 9,628 (89) (106,846)
BB R/NE
# Contracted sales GFA does not include parking space i AREEREABETNREEMEE
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Average

Contracted Contracted
Equity Sales Contracted Sales Selling
Number Projects Holding Amounts Sales GFA* Price
aH EEHE EEHE
Fi 1HE FE 5 tb A HESH EEmE' FIHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR¥TFTT) (FFHK) (AR¥TT)
15 Suzhou 8 Renmin Road 100.0% 2,145 - -
M A R & 855%
16 Yixin Xindu Mansion 26.0% 39,230 500 78,454
H BT AR AT
17 Suzhou Blue Square 51.0% 79,036 5,016 15,757
w7 BE B
18 Suzhou Cheng Garden 0.1% 23,556 178 132,048
M EE
19 Suzhou Wuyue Xihua Elegant Court 15.0% 1,852,127 56,908 32,546
AR SR BERIEHESD
20 Wuxi Xihua Mansion 45.0% 1,637,052 69,318 23,617
P EREE AT
21 Changshu Landsea Crystal 51.0% 532,765 21,054 25,304
FARMREE
22 Zhangjiagang Le Mansion 50.1% 466,314 21,464 21,726
RK B HENT
23 Hangzhou Xihua Mansion 49.0% 53,650 449 119,572
TN BREE T
24 Hangzhou Le Mansion 50.0% 40,860 787 51,945
A EJ ]
25 Hangzhou Light of City 40.0% 5,028 = =
MM Z S
26 Ningbo Crystal Apartment 40.0% 5 — —
ERFES
27 Hangzhou Maple Union 50.0% 9,803 = =
MR E
28 Haining Oasis Jing Yuan 20.1% 465,785 35,493 13,123
BEARMNIRET
29 Wuhan Xihua Mansion 30.0% 61,000 1,627 37,490
FUEERIE T
# Contracted sales GFA does not include parking space i AREEREAB TN REEMEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR T

Average
Contracted Contracted
Equity Sales Contracted Sales Selling
Number Projects Holding Amounts Sales GFA* Price
&E EEHE BEHE
Fo 1HE Rz tb A HESH EEEBY FIHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)
(AR®TFIT) (FFHK) (AR¥TT)
30 Chengdu Southern Gate Green 25.0% 27,677 - -
P &R R PIAR AR
31 Chengdu Landsea Qingyang District Project 9.9% 985,266 47,958 20,544
PR B FRIE R
32 Chengdu Future Home 100.0% 2,953 — —
FERAR PR
33 Chengdu Xihua Mansion 33.0% 86,816 369 235,209
PXERER2E AT
34 Chongaing Yue Mansion 30.0% 725,077 52,427 13,830
B L
35 Chengdu Landsea Cuiyue 50.0% 16,576 77 23,123
FXERRA = 254
36 Chengdu Shanglin Xihua Mansion 33.3% 269,685 25,175 10,712
PCER_EMRERZE
37 Chendu Future Zhe 50.0% 1,266,049 41,417 30,569
BERA R
38 Chengdu Golden Mansion Future Block 51.0% 632,782 85,752 7,379
BB & = R RAR
39 Chengdu Le Mansion 50.6% 1,677,471 60,499 26,075
PEDLE T
40 Chendu XihuaTianxi 50.0% 2,501,126 91,909 27,213
X EREREE R E
41 Tianjin Emerald Lan Wan 75.0% 26,802 1,718 15,605
KRR E
42 Tianjin Cuiweilan Pavilion 35.0% 413,682 26,428 15,653
RERRE
43 Shijiazhuang Future Block 25.5% 189,263 21,262 8,902
ARERRETR
44 Xi’an Future Block 30.0% 143,253 9,646 14,850
PAR AR R AT
45 Zhongshan Landsea Dezhou Shangjun 34.5% 536,080 35,072 15,285
A 1L BA SR i AR
# Contracted sales GFA does not include parking space # AREEREEBTEEEMEER
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Average

Contracted Contracted

Equity Sales Contracted Sales Selling

Number Projects Holding Amounts Sales GFA* Price
&aE EEHE EEHE

s 1HE FE 5 tb A HESH EEmE' FIHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB)

(AR¥TFTT) (*F732K) (AR¥TT)

46 Iron Ridge 100.0% 965,693 33,150 29,131
47 Tevelde 100.0% 869,112 51,557 16,857
48 Sanctuary 100.0% 759,390 20,253 37,495
49 North Copper Canyon 100.0% 563,920 63,267 8,913
50 Verrado 100.0% 448,071 36,468 12,287
51 West Pointe 100.0% 445,142 40,534 10,982
52 Westerly 100.0% 400,827 15,695 25,539
58 Catalina 100.0% 347,101 6,897 50,326
54 Park Forest 100.0% 287,428 39,346 7,305
58 Avora 51.0% 252,353 4,456 56,632
56 Sundance 100.0% 226,985 20,978 10,820
57 Centerra 100.0% 203,828 18,273 11,155
58 Sonora Crossing 100.0% 186,564 13,561 13,758
59 Crestley 100.0% 185,808 7,187 25,853
60 Abigail Place 100.0% 173,622 4,643 37,394
61 Orinda 100.0% 163,270 3,293 49,581
62 Harvest Queen Creek 100.0% 127,296 9,851 12,922
63 Grand Village 100.0% 61,944 16,805 3,686
64 Germann Country Garden Estates 100.0% 58,470 3,706 15,777
65 Alamar 100.0% 56,373 5,000 11,275
66 Mountain Views 100.0% 54,652 11,435 4,779
67 Lido Villas 100.0% 30,322 347 87,383
68 Encanta 100.0% 29,124 3,190 9,130
69 Trenton park 100.0% 6,710 5,096 1,317
70 Bethany Ranch 100.0% 4,266 3,367 1,267
71 Eastmark 100.0% 1,999 151 13,238
Equity-held projects entered into by HK106 25,684,141 1,410,828 18,205

HK106#Ez=1E B %49

& Contracted sales GFA does not include parking space
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROJECT RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had project reserves with saleable
area of approximately 5,289,758 sg.m. and expected saleable value of
approximately RMB104.32 billion. In terms of equity interests, saleable
area attributable to the Group was approximately 1,139,253 sq.m. and
expected saleable value was approximately RMB21.15 billion. The
Group had also acquired a total of 48 development management
projects by entrusted independent third parties, with saleable area of
approximately 3,342,715 sg.m. and expected saleable value of
RMB66.68 billion.

HE @B

MRZZBEZZEFE+_A=+—B AEEHAHNIER
FERIEEEL 55,289,758 F H K » TRt &EEE
AR ARE1,0432187C ; ERTTE - NEEES
THE BRI EmEL A1,130,253 F 5K » TERTAI &
BEEANARARB2NSEL  ANEB2BIFE=F
LB EIRIEE H481E - A EEELA3,342,715
K BRI EEBEAARE666.81ETT ©

ACCUMULATED LAND RESERVE AT THE END OF 2020 T _EFERBIH L
GFA for
Equity Total  Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  Project Holding GFA GFA GFA development  ValueSold  GFA Sold Value GFA
BAT ¥RY  ARER
F# % Baltfl SEEER 0 WEER 0 WEEE 0 MEEE 0 BEEE  CEER 0 WEEE  TEER
(sq.m,) (sq.m.) (sqm) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sqm)  (RMB‘000) (sq.m.)

5K K

Pk (Fpk) (ARMTR)  (Fok) (ARMTR)  (FAK)

1 Shanghai Future Block 100.0% 233,791 233,791
FRRREE

2 Shanghai The Course of The Future 100.0% 106,622 106,622
e

3 Nanjing Youth Block 100.0% 314,804 314,84
EREAME

4 Nanjing Future Home 50.1% 133,530 133,630
BRARE

5 Suzhou Green County of Talhu 55.0% 438,677 438,677
BM ARG

6 Wuxi Tiancui 100.0% 48,772 48772
BHRE

7 Wuxi Luka Small Town 100.0% 139,689 138,919
BHGRE

8 Suzhou Oasis 20.0% 99,790 99,790
NN

9 Nanjing Poly Landsea Weilan 49.9% 260,567 260,067
BRI RHEE

10 Nanjing Xihua Mansion 19.0% 201,116 201,116
BREEN

11 Hangzhou Xihua Mansion 49.0% 139,152 139,152
MMEER

12 Hangzhou Le Mansion 50.0% 80,602 80,602
MR

13 Chengdu Landsea Qingyang District Project 9.9% 685,684 =
AR TRER

14 Tianjin Emerald Lan Wan 75.0% 142,156 142,156

REGREE
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2,824,838 149,587 98,060 =
= - 1318567 79,731 38492 1,242
- - 2927438 245414 68,208 =

= = 969,822 109,679 14970 =

= - 5,642,889 326,805 7,148 4
= = 499,004 34,793 4,502 200
= 5770 701,287 93,362 64,681 5,962
= - 1129223 73,580 1229 9
= - 5628769 196,680 32,680 847
= - 5,561,180 149,656 57,192 2917

= - 4323540 88,760 62,290 =

= - 2620391 54469 60,325 369
686,684 - 6200416 367,731 = =
= - 1,551,807 108,563 9,400 =



GFA for

Equity Total  Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable

Number  Project Holding GFA GFA GFA development  ValueSold ~ GFA Sold Value GFA
BRI BRR®  RRER

P %R Ealth AREER  NXER  NXER 0 MXER 2 GSERE  BEER 2 TEEE  TEER

(sq.m,) (sq.m.) (sqm) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sqm)  (RMB‘000) (sq.m.)

(Fk)  (¥a%)  (FpK)  (Fpk) (ARBFR)  (¥h%) (ARMTR)  (FK)

15 Tianjin Cuiwellan Paviion 35.0% 157,140 59,332 97,808 - 1485513 104,288 168,562 7677
RERHRH

16 Shanghai Changfenghui Silver Premier 100.0% 18,875 18,875 =
FEREERSEE

17 Suzhou Blue Square 51.0% 91,325 - 91,325
FMEERS

18 Wuhan Xihua Mansion 30.0% 140,553 - 140,653 - 61,000 1621 3436476 98,345
REREN

19 Changsha Lu Island Project 1.0% 266,216 80,301 112,098 73817 950,100 148987 86,422 13,657
RYERER

20 Chengdu Xihua Mansion 33.0% 367,753 367,753 - - 4287043 230,594 517,978 24817
RBEEFR

21 Hefei Wanxin's Hi-tech Court 49.0% 129919 - 129919 - 170089 83,203 238,065 7,821
aE&E#HER

2 Hangzhou Light of City 40.0% 94,095 94,095 - - 1434609 72,791 21,042 =
Tl 2 %

23 Chengdu Future Home 100.0% 146,733 146,733 - - 862,840 107,822 - -
RBARR

2 Chengdu Landsea Cuiyue 50.0% 30316 30,316 - - 131,344 9,592 42,663 1,641
PR

2 Hefel Feidong Jade Garden 10.0% 57,398 = 57,398 = 147220 8,584 365,935 31,838
AEERERLE

26 Yixing Xindu Mansion 26.0% 220,045 168,667 61,378 - 1,602,650 163,519 30436 -
ERH

2 Sugjan Weilan Court 51.0% 224,621 - 224,621 - 159,048 160,783 66,760 -
BRREZH

28 Sugjan Weilan Elegant Court 51.0% 200,522 77829 122,693 - 1446067 137,498 24,046 1,309
FERERS

P Chongaing Le Mansion 30.0% 332,649 62,121 228,608 190 299326 183634 1,805,710 86,303
BR4N

30 Nanjing Zixi Mansion 20.0% 209,504 - 209,504 - 1,227,869 70441 1768818 80,712
BRREN

31 Suzhou Cheng Garden 0.1% 12,450 12,450 = = 270,480 6,999 6,512 176
GMEE

32 Hangzhou Linglongyue 30.0% 153,746 = = 153,746 = - 1,990,000 121,214
U

3 Chengdu Golden Mansion Future Block 51.0% 384,307 - 306,236 78071 1577462 228,901 714,909 58,647
R ERRGR

34 Chengdu Shanglin Xihua Mansion 33.3% 265,576 = 265,576 - 1861409 132936 1,794,827 50410
RBLHRER

35 Suzhou Wuyue Xihua Elegant Gourt 15.0% 129,571 51,237 78,334 - 28171 87,061 14,825 543
N RHEER

36 Kunshan Langlu Garden 51.0% 43362 - 43362
RIBEIE

889,675 16,877 67,221 1,629

796,956 46940 134,069 16,691

666,260 26,336 = =
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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GFA for
Equity Total  Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  Project Holding GFA GFA GFA development  ValueSold ~ GFA Sold Value GFA
BRI ¥RT  ARER
F# % Baudl LREER 0 MXER 0 YXER 0 YXER 0 BEEE  CEER 0 UERE  TEER
(sq.m,) (sq.m.) (sqm) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sqm)  (RMB000) (sq.m.)
(Fax)  (FAx) (k) (¥5K) (ARETR)  (F5K) (ARETR)  (FA%)
37 Kunshan Langyue Garden 51.0% 4329 - 43294 - 682,910 27,645 - =
BB R
38 Shijiazhuang Future Block 25.5% 162,370 - 127,626 34,844 1,079,183 124,875 121,200 -
RFRARER
39 Nanjing Wangjiawan Project 60.0% 136,671 = 63,516 73,155 = - 187857 72,483
BRIFEAER
40 Xi'an Future Block 30.0% 85,111 - 85,111 - 724,333 55,343 93429 1,746
RZARER
41 Chendu Future Zhe 50.0% 216,938 - 190,318 26620 1,266,049 a4 1,622,049 149,094
HA~RE
1Y) Wuxi Xihua Mansion 450% 230,09 - 230,09 - 3598 138,146 291,449 3,264
ERRER
43 Zhongshan Landsea Dezhou Shangjun 34.5% 80,160 - 80,160 - 536,080 35,072 436,119 21922
B RN
4 Chengdu Le Mansion 50.6% 124,114 - 124,114 - 15174n 60,499 775454 23,507
PEL S
45 Chendu Xihua Tianxi 50.0% 190,204 - 190,204 - 2501126 91909 1,079470 32432
REEERE
46 Changshu Landsea Crystal 51.0% 4829 - 48292 - 532,765 21,054 315,665 11,193
FREEAE
47 Zhangjiagang Le Mansion 50.1% 123,233 - 123,233 - 466,314 21,464 1,470,440 66,117
e Jii
48 Haining Oasis Jing Yuan 20.1% 313,501 - 191,180 122,321 465,785 35493 3,061,461 189,128
BEGNER
49 Mianyang Xiaojian Project 60.0% 114,587 - - 114,587 - - 1,099,025 84,167
L
50 Chongaing Future Times 0.0% 188,273 - 188,273 - 364,631 47872 772,904 77,850
BRRANE
51 Nanjing Qixia G82 Project 0.0% 124,989 - - 124,989 - - 233290 112906
AREEGoER
5 0 Fuging Road Project 0.0% 39,175 - - 39,175 - - 563,410 25933
FrEROSIER
53 Nanjing G22 Project 0.0% 102,630 - 102,630 - - - 2546455 75,324
BRG2EE
54 Nanjing Landsea Linglongjun 0.0% 134,633 = 134,633 - 2,639,657 101,055 = =
BRI
5 Xi'an Langshiyan Nan 0.0% 68,441 - 68,441 - 677,358 40,908 9,154 519
RZMEmE
56 Nanjing Haiyue Metropol 0.0% 218,748 218,748 - - 9610126 205,963 25,465 -
BrEReH
57 Nanjing Landsea Golden Elephant Mangrove 0.0% 307,241 230,001 77,240 - 6046411 216,606 30,676 1,206
AR RALE
58 Nanjing Jiulong Xi'an 0.0% 257,064 180,538 76,516 - 3034249 119,033 308,637 10,697
ARNERR
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GFA for

Equity Total  Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable

Number  Project Holding GFA GFA GFA development  ValueSold ~ GFA Sold Value GFA
BRI BRR®  RRER

P %R Ealth AREER  NXER  NXER 0 MXER 2 GSERE  BEER 2 TEEE  TEER

(sq.m,) (sq.m.) (sqm) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sqm)  (RMB‘000) (sq.m.)

(Fk)  (¥a%)  (FpK)  (Fpk) (ARBFR)  (¥h%) (ARMTR)  (FK)

59 Hefei Landsea Green Gounty 0.0% 148,441 148,441 - - 1332040 102,268 10405 655
AL

60 Wuxi Landsea New County 0.0% 297,136 - 297,136 - 135,390 - 4051813 191,128
BRI

61 Suzhou Wuzhong Hongzhuang Project 0.0% 122,042 = 122,242 - 1,088,029 42,105 = =
SMRHTIER

62 Century Landsea Green County in

Yancheng Dongta 0.0% 200,269 36,248 88,688 75338 1242163 111,663 473939 43433

L UEET Rl

63 Nanjing G68 Project 0.0% 263,294 - 263,294 - - - 10,500,000 150,000
BRGo8 AR

64 Zhangjiakou Dongshan Yiyuan 0.0% 134,908 - 134,908 - 461,721 65,145 229,753 20447
FROFLRE

65 Nanjing Jiangning G5 Project 0.0% 142,633 - 142,633 - 912,489 21837 1,690,230 77,163
BRIEGHER

66 Wuhan West Coast 0.0% 171,838 43719 128,059 - 1088298 98,521 189,520 11482
RABES

67 Rugao Xihua Mansion 0.0% 292,587 - 292,587 - 2211209 158,776 1,247,158 91,310
MREER

68 Suzhou Wujiang Shangyi Project 0.0% 281,829 - 61,074 220,755 - - 1,484850 97,950
MR LEEE

69 Changzhou Xihua Mansion 0.0% 140,833 - 140,833 - 2360268 100,461 17,791 840
EHEER

70 Chengdu Yaclongwan 0.0% 188,652 - 188,652 = = - 807,550 106,727
e

I Chengdu Guanshanyue 0.0% 191,863 - 191,853 - 1,007,240 106,963 71,839 1,347
eI

n Wuxi Xiangbin Street 0.0% 58,294 - - 58,294 - - 845,290 42400
EoERE

73 Xi'an Huyugi 0.0% 28,835 - 28,83 - 325,016 20,018 - -
R

74 Wuhan Dongxi Lake Jinnan First Road Project 0.0% 595,139 180,000 193,949 221,190 = - 9,850,000 420,000
REREMem—IAER

75 Beiing Jianguo Apartment Project 0.0% 22,483 - 22,483 - - - 1,110,000 12,885
IREEAEEE

76 Beijing Zengguang Road Project 0.0% 14,729 - - 14,729 - - 1,000,000 9,109
JRERER

7 Kaifeng Bianjing Xihua Mansion 0.0% 278,468 - 278,468 - - - 2,218,586 212,212
R REER

78 Xi'an Yue Centre 0.0% 126,335 - - 126,335 - - - -
BZHARD

I Chengdu Tianfu Green 0.0% 216,474 - 147923 128,551 459,498 41398 1,163,308 101,568
HARFiE

RS ERRAR/ S5 F% Q



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&

GFA for
Equity Total  Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable
Number  Project Holding GFA GFA GFA development  ValueSold ~ GFA Sold Value GFA
BRI ¥RT  ARER
F#  EH Baudl LREER 0 MXER 0 YXER 0 YXER 0 BEEE  CEER 0 UERE  TEER
(sq.m,) (sq.m.) (sqm) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sqm)  (RMB000) (sq.m.)
(Fax)  (FAx) (k) (¥5K) (ARETR)  (F5K) (ARETR)  (FA%)
80 Suzhou Hefeng Xihua Elegant Gourt 0.0% 185,379 - 185,379 - 3031248 91554 1,548,600 39970
ENMREER
81 Xianyang Weichengfu 0.0% 394474 = 61,965 332,509 76,889 8314 3,086,563 271,834
R
82 Nanjing Hanzhong Gongguan 0.0% 12,603 = 12,653 = 297,521 891 134,220 3,681
AREPLE
83 Cuzhou Zhizaogu 0.0% 118,961 - - 118,961 - - 475,325 57,347
BHEES
84 Nantong Halyingli 0.0% 86,399 - - 86,399 - - 637,788 66,754
BRenE
85 Yangzhou Longpowan 0.0% 130,690 = 130,690 = 23,850 2,407 654,390 59,285
Bifeens
86 Suzhou Caohu Project 0.0% 132,740 - - 132,740 - - 2013200 92,105
&MEER
87 Suzhou Huangajao Project 0.0% 71,632 - - 71,632 - - 697,260 24,884
SMERER
88 Yixing Guaniin Project 0.0% 92,508 - - 92,508 - - 451,830 61,620
EREWER
89 Jiangyin Linggang Plot B 0.0% 79,145 - - 79,145 - - 908,750 7799
TREEBHR
90 Wuxi Yuull 0.0% 125,904 - 111,044 14,860 226,631 12472 1203919 67,423
s i
91 Suzhou Zhong'ou Project 0.0% 91,545 - 91,545 - 48732 2,338 416,737 16,761
SHNTBUAR
R Suzhou Wujiang Chengtou Project 0.0% 165,356 - - 155,356 - - 3088470 99,609
SMRIIHRTER
93 Jinhua Taoyuanli 0.0% 162,643 = 82,969 79,674 = - 1420780 10923
SEHRE
o Ningbo Hangzhouwan Project 0.0% 163,434 = = 163,434 = - 2204210 165,198
ERmMNEER
9% Tianjin Lanhujun Project 0.0% 77,762 - - 77,762 - - 981,000 93,143
REEMAER
9% Xi'an Le Mansion 0.0% 68,284 = = 68,284 = = 967,240 43,681
[ife S
97 Huizhou Longhai 2 Road 0.0% 139,637 - - 139,637 - - 2,187,700 97,152
0 i
9% Avora 51.0% 31,776 31,776 - - 1102422 18,420 380,327 5,409
9 The Westerly 100.0% 34,659 30279 4,280 = 770,369 33,009 20070 1,051
100 Iron Ridge 100.0% 143,457 124726 9,698 9083 2602302 126,208 483,632 17,249
101 Sanctuary 100.0% 269,655 263,418 6,237 - 2165740 269,655 6,524 -
102 Synagogue 90.0% 4,552 641 3911 - - - 554,813 3412
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GFA for

Equity Total  Developed  Developing future Saleable Saleable

Number  Project Holding GFA GFA GFA development  ValueSold ~ GFA Sold Value GFA
BRI BRR®  RRER

P %R Ealth AREER  NXER  NXER 0 MXER 2 GSERE  BEER 2 TEEE  TEER

(sq.m,) (sq.m.) (sqm) (sqm)  (RMB'000) (sqm)  (RMB‘000) (sq.m.)

(Fk)  (¥a%)  (FpK)  (Fpk) (ARBFR)  (¥h%) (ARMTR)  (FK)

108 Catalina 100.0% 15,249 8,827 6,422 - 405,929 8,671 381,103 6,578
104 Sonora Crossing 100.0% 14,623 6,346 5282 249 176,638 13,561 26,555 1,062
105 14th & Bth 95.0% 7,550 - 7,550 - - - 1,014,684 4952
106 Tevelde 100.0% 115,465 24,301 25,513 65,651 828,157 51,557 979,814 63908
107 Crestley 100.0% 16,660 3,763 4,089 7808 175,962 7,187 247,634 8,463
108 Novato 100.0% 10,628 - - 10,628 - - 380,973 10,628
109 Harvest Queen Creek 100.0% 19,699 2,134 7,080 10515 118,239 9,671 112,879 10,028
110 North Central Phoenix
(Madison Town & Gountry) 100.0% 10,124 - - 10,124 - - 225810 10,124

11 Alamer 100.0% 15,838 450 3,599 1,789 53,385 5,000 108,318 10838
12 Centerra 100.0% 45,047 16,001 2,342 26,704 193177 18,373 283,211 26,674
13 Eastmark 100.0% 29410 8,501 - 20909 88210 8,501 266,654 20909
14 Estrella 100.0% 32,908 9410 - 23498 44,565 4705 309,698 28,208
115 Verrado 100.0% 91,462 38,420 10,073 42,969 590,652 50,423 494,852 41,038
116 Ontario Vander Eyk 100.0% 47,074 - - 47,074 - - 926,256 47,074
17 Qrinda 100.0% 9,081 - 1,911 7170 164,617 3293 274,576 5,788
118 Germann Country Garden Estates 100.0% 4174 783 3,131 260 55,371 3,706 9,035 468
19 North Copper Canyon 100.0% 95,464 46926 5,044 43494 639,389 63,267 213897 32,197
120 Grand Village 100.0% 16,805 16,805 - - 168,038 16,805 - -
121 Mountain Views 100.0% 11,435 11,435 - - 19,127 11,435 - -
122 Bethany Ranch 100.0% 3,367 3367 - - 33,631 3,367 = =
123 Park Forest 100.0% 44128 33312 6,332 4,484 379,022 39,346 29,688 4782
124 Trenton park 100.0% 5,096 5,09 = = 51,776 5,096 = =
125 Sundance 100.0% 34,324 10,004 8,215 16,045 214,955 20978 91,184 13,345
126 West Pointe 100.0% 55,115 18,042 19,421 17,652 437,214 40,534 123,096 14,581
127 Northern Farms 100.0% 52,142 - - 52,142 - - 465,656 52,142
128 Sunset Farms 100.0% 28419 - - 28419 - - 206,794 28419
129 Saunrise Ranch 100.0% 99,809 - 10,079 89,780 - - 961,562 99,809
130 ElisTownCountry 100.0% 16,738 - - 16,738 - - 1,096,293 16,738
131 El Cidro 100.0% 76,204 - - 76,204 - - 810,271 76,204

Total 17823818 5286305 8549975 3987588 134547246 7306336 104,318801 5,289,758

4

Of Which: Subtotal of Equity-held Project 10056316 4188550 4502380  1,365380  95,766582 5573708 37637686 1,947,043

A ERREER NG

Subtotal of Entrusted Development and

Management Project 7767502 1,007,755 4047595 2622152 38780664 1782628 66,681,115 3342715

ERMYERER

RS ERRAR/ S5 F% @



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&

Equity
Projects Holding Status Usage GFA
HH RSBl kR JizEes EEEE
(sg.m.)
(FFHK)
Beijing Landsea Tower” 50.0%  Under renovation To be leased 21,906
SIS N FAEUE quliic|
Shanghai Huangxing Building 100.0%  Under renovation Partially leasing 11,427
FEEEAR KiEpuE zii T o
Shanghai Senlan Apartment* 50.0% Completed Leasing 43,543
labi=Fox NG % T H A
Shanghai Zhangjiang Landsea 30.0% Completed Leasing 10,489
Center*
EERTEARER % T H A
Shanghai Daning Landsea Tower* 50.0% Completed Leasing 19,390
EBRERFAE" % T mepiches
Guangzhou Jiefang Tower* 33.6% Completed Leasing 11,507
U5 ON ®T mepiches
Nanjing Huafei Apartment 100.0% Completed Leasing 5,729
ARERES % T H A
Nanjing Wangjiawan Building 60.0%  Under renovation Partially leasing 15,118
ARERERE FAEUE o HAEHR
Nanjing Tianlong Temple Project* 30.0% Completed Leasing 15,856
ARKESFEE” ®T mepiches
Wuxi Neighbourhood Union 100.0% Completed Leasing 10,667
EGMBE % T H A
165,632

The property is held by joint ventures of the Company.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue was
mainly derived from development and management services of
approximately RMB690 million (2019: approximately RMB1.05 billion),
from sale of properties of approximately RMB8.28 billion (2019:
approximately RMB7.48 billion) and rental and property management
fee income of approximately RMB28 million (2019: approximately
RMB32 million), which in aggregate was approximately RMB8.99 billion
(2019: approximately RMB8.56 billion), representing an increase of
approximately 5.1% as compared with 2019. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the recognised sales income of joint ventures and
associates attributable to the Group were approximately RMB5.55
billion (2019: approximately RMB3.09 billion), representing an increase
of 79.4% as compared with 2019. The revenue recognized by the
Group and off-balance sheet recognised sales income of joint ventures
and associates attributable to the Group was RMB14.54 billion (2019:
approximately RMB11.65 billion), representing an increase of
approximately 24.8% as compared with 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the gross profit of the Group
was approximately RMB1.71 billion (2019: approximately RMB2.42
billion), the off-balance sheet recognised gross profit of joint ventures
and associates attributable to the Group was approximately RMB1.31
billion (2019: approximately RMB930 million), aggregating to
approximately RMB3.02 billion (2019: approximately RMB3.34 billion);
the gross profit margin was approximately 19.0% (2019: approximately
28.3%), representing a decrease of approximately 9.3% as compared
with 2019. The off-balance sheet recognised average gross profit
margin of joint ventures and associates attributable to the Group was
approximately 23.7% (2019: approximately 29.9%), representing a
decrease of 6.2% as compared with 2019. The on-balance sheet and
off-balance sheet average gross profit margin of joint ventures and
associates attributable to the Group was approximately 20.8% (2019:
approximately 28.7%), representing a decrease of 7.9 percentage
points as compared with 2019.

Bt % B R

KAREF
HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=1+—HLFE £A£EZ
EERATERERNARREERBEBADAAR
Be9BIL(ZE—NF: HAAREK105ET)
MEBEEBRADNAEARE8EIL(ZT—HLF:
NEANRET48BT) UWRHSRMESEERA
HBARE028ETL(ZE—NF : HAARK0.32
BIt) BTN AARKESIEIL(ZE—NF :
HNR/ARESSBIETT) BT —NFLAKS1% o
HEZZ-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE A5EHE
DS TAERBE T EEREERANABAR
Bes 5T (ZE—NF : HAR/AREI09ET) -
BT F EA4979.4% c REBLEWAERK
EERIIEEEE TEERBEARTRAZTAA
RE1454BT(ZZE—NF : HRARKE116518
L) BMZE—NFLEFAH24.8% ©

HEZZT-ZTF+-A=+—HILFE £TKEE
%IJ%@E,AE%W.MEE —E-NF:HBARE
24.21870)  RIMNEEHEZR T A & K& A aEF 4
ABAREASABIT(ZZE NG 9ABARKIIE
TT) BT BARES02EBT(ZE—NE : 95
ARES3.41ETT) : EMELNAR19.0%(ZF—14F :
#/R28.3%) BZZT—NEFETMREII% ~EEXK
NELMEETEERBERRTEHENELN A
287%(ZZE—NF : 89829.9%) B=ZT—NF
TF%6. 21IE DB RABERINEGER N6 R
ENRREFTHENEE2008%(ZF—NF : 4
28.7%) RZE—NFETHE7IEBHE -

BRSEHMERRDAR/ T _THFFR e



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWR D

RECOGNIZED SALES OF PROPERTIES OF
SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognized revenue
of approximately RMB8.99 billion (2019: approximately RMB8.56
billion), representing an increase of approximately 5.1%. In which, the
consolidated subsidiaries of the Group recognised revenue from sales
of properties and total sales area of approximately RMB8.28 billion
(2019: approximately RMB7.48 billion) and 491,995 sqg.m. respectively,
mainly attributable to Shanghai Future Block, Tianjin Emerald Lan Wan,
Suzhou Green County of Taihu in the PRC, and the Iron Ridge Project,
Sanctuary Project, North Copper Canyon Project, Verrado Project,
Catalina Project, etc. in the United States. The average selling price in
the PRC was approximately RMB14,179 per sq.m., while the average
selling price in the United States was approximately RMB16,882 per
sg.m..

RECOGNISED SALES OF PROPERTIES OF JOINT
VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the recognised sales of joint
ventures and associates attributable to the Group was approximately
RMB5.55 hillion (2019: approximately RMBS3.09 billion), with 250,956
sg.m. in gross floor areas attributable to the Group. Sales attributable
to the Group were mainly generated from Tianjin Cuiweilan Pavilion,
Chengdu Xihua Mansion, Chengdu Landsea Cuiyue, Chongqging Le
Mansion, Hangzhou Xihua Mansion, Hangzhou Le Mansion, Hangzhou
Maple Union, Hangzhou Light of City, Hangzhou Weilan Block, Yixing
Xindu Mansion, Sugian Weilan Elegant Court in the PRC, and Avora
Project in the United States. The average selling price in the PRC was
approximately RMB21,794 per sq.m. and the average selling price in
the United States was approximately RMB56,622 per sg.m..

INCOME FROM PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND
MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Benefiting from the full commencement of “asset-light” strategy of the
Group, the Group recorded property development and management
services income of approximately RMB690 million (2019: approximately
RMB1.05 billion) for the year ended 31 December 2020. Gross profit
margin of property development and management services income
was maintained at 39%. Meanwhile, the Group had entered into
contracts in relation to property development and management
services with independent third parties, with contract sum of
approximately RMB900 million (2019: RMB1.80 billion). In addition, the
value of confirmed contracts of the Group was approximately RMB1.15
billion at the end of 2020.
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EANMBEARERMEHEWARAHERED A
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BARREE - REBFBRRE - #HMN A BB
Hb[& IronRidge * Sanctuary + North Copper Canyon *
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INCOME FROM RENTAL AND MANAGEMENT FEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recognised rental and
management fee income of approximately RMB28 million (2019:
approximately RMB32 million), representing a decrease of 11.3% as
compared with 2019.

FAIR VALUE GAIN ON INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties included Huafei Apartment in
Nanjing, Neighbourhood Union in Wuxi, Huangxing Building in
Shanghai and Wangjiawan Building in Nanjing located in the PRC.
Leveraging prime location and quality property management services
of investment properties, they maintained a high occupancy rate during
the period. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s fair
value gain on the investment properties was approximately RMB81
million* (2019: RMB4 million). The fair value of investment properties
was determined by a competent independent valuer based on the
property’s current business model adopted by the Group and its
expected income to be generated.

SELLING EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded selling
expenses of approximately RMB407 million (2019: approximately
RMB249 million), representing an increase of 63.5% as compared with
corresponding period of last year. The increase in selling expenses was
attributable to the year-on-year increase in sales scale growth as well
as the strengthened stimulating policies to promote sales due to the
effect of the pandemic.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
administrative expenses of approximately RMB909 million (2019:
approximately RMB634 million), representing an increase of
approximately 43.3% as compared with 2019. The increase in
administrative expenses was mainly attributable to the Company’s
increased R&D investment in green differentiated products during the
period and an increase in headcounts resulting from the acquisition of
Garrett Walker Homes as well as the increase in spin-off and listing
expenses in the United States.

# Including the fair value gain on Landsea Tower in Shenzhen which was sold in 2020

HeREEBWRA
R-ZF-_FF+-_A=1—H AEEEAEELRK
EBBEWRAARKOBET(ZZE—NF: OBRA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWR D

NET PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON
FINANCIAL ASSETS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s net provision for
impairment loss on financial assets was approximately RMB381 million
(2019: approximately RMB85 million). The Company’s net provision for
impairment loss on financial assets was provided using the expected
credit loss rate for financial assets such as trade and other receivables
in accordance with the standard requirement of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. The increase in the current period was mainly due to
selling prices of real estate development projects in the PRC of the
Group and the Group’s certain joint ventures and associates fell below
expectation due to factors such as adjustment and controls in the
domestic real estate market. The Group provided for impairment under
prudent principle.

OTHER GAINS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded other
gains of approximately RMB9 million (2019: approximately RMB137
million). The decrease in other gains was the combined effect of: (i) the
increase in the unrealized foreign exchange losses of approximately
RMB193 million (2019: foreign exchange gains of approximately
RMB68 million) arising from foreign currency loans and current
accounts between the subsidiaries of the Group during the year; and (ii)
the disposal of subsidiary by the Group during the year resulting in
increase in gains of RMB194 million (2019: RMB26 million).

FINANCE COSTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded interest
expense (excluding the finance cost of RMB156 million recognized for
advanced receipts) of approximately RMB723 million (2019:
approximately RMB715 million). The capitalization rate of interest
expenses was 33.5% in 2020 (2019: 45.1%). For the year ended 31
December 2020, the expensed finance costs of the Group were
approximately RMB481 million (2019: approximately RMB392 million).
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the interest income of the
Group was approximately RMB157 million. Net finance costs were
approximately RMB324 million (2019: approximately RMB207 million).
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the on-balance sheet weighted
average finance cost was approximately 7.6% (31 December 2019:
7.6%).
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TAXATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded taxation
charge of approximately RMB489 million (2019: approximately
RMB598 million).

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group realized a net core
profit (net profit excluding exchange gain/loss, spin-off and listing
expense in the United States and change of fair value on investment
property) amounted to approximately RMB250 million (2019:
approximately RMB1.41 billion), representing a decrease of
approximately 82.2% as compared with the corresponding period of
last year; the net core profit attributable to the shareholders of the
Company was approximately RMB120 million (2019: approximately
RMB1.09 billion), representing a decrease of approximately 89.1% as
compared with 2019. During the period, due to increase in listing
expense in the United States and exchange losses, the Group’s net
profit decrease to RMB33 million (2019: approximately RMB1.498
billion),
corresponding period of last year.

representing a decrease of 97.8% as compared with

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Cash positions

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash amounted to approximately RMB5.25 billion (As at 31
December 2019: approximately RMB4.76 billion). As at 31 December
2020, the Group’s current ratio (current assets divided by current
liabilities) was approximately 1.5 times (As at 31 December 2019: 1.3
times).

INDEBTEDNESS

As at 31 December 2020, the total indebtedness of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB6.55 billion (As at 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB6.96 billion). The Group’s indebtedness mainly
included shareholder’s loans, secured bank loans, senior notes and
EB-5 financing. As at 31 December 2020, total net debts* were
approximately RMB1.42 billion (As at 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB2.46 billion). As at 31 December 2020, the
proportion of short-term debts was 13.1% (As at 31 December 2019:
33.7%) and long-term debts was 86.9% (As at 31 December 2019:
66.3%). Long-term debts of the Company accounted for a greater
proportion, maintaining reasonable structure of long-term and short-
term debt to facilitate sufficient liquidity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Analysis of Indebtedness: BIFEDT -

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

—E-_EBHF+-_A=+-H —ZE-NAF+-A=+—H
RMB’000 percentage RMB’000 Percentage
ARET T MBS ARETF T RED
Analysis of total indebtedness BEFS A S E G DM
by settlement currency:
Denominated in RMB IARESESR 1,552,193 23.68% 2,239,283 32.17%
Denominated in USD LAETTEE 5,001,399 76.32% 4,488,949 64.49%
Denominated in HK$ LA TS - 0.00% 232,908 3.34%
6,553,592 100.00% 6,961,140 100.00%
Analysis of total indebtedness HBETELAZIEA B 47T
by maturity:
Within one year F—FN 856,706 13.07% 2,344,439 33.68%
Between one and two years E—FEME 3,000,814 45.79% 1,913,374 27.49%
Between two and five years F_FERF 1,896,831 28.94% 1,812,805 26.04%
Five years or above AFMNUE 799,241 12.20% 890,522 12.79%
6,553,592 100.00% 6,961,140 100.00%
GEARING RATIOS BELE

AEE-HEEHEBECLEAREESEE R_F_F
F+—A=+—8" $%E@?§W/$E\T§#Eﬁﬂx$ﬁé

The Group has been working hard on optimizing its capital and debt
structure. As at 31 December 2020, the on-balance sheet net debts*

to equity ratio of the Group was approximately 25.9% (As at 31
December 2019: 40.2%), representing a decrease of 14.3 percentage
points as compared with 31 December 2019, which remains low in the
industry. The Group’s debt to total assets ratio (total borrowings
divided by total assets) was approximately 26.5% as at 31 December
2020 (As at 31 December 2019: 26.9%). In addition, the debt to assets
ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was 77.8% (As at 31
December 2019: 76.4%), which remained stable as compared with 31
December 2019. The management will continue to monitor the Group’s
capital and debt structure from time to time with aim of controlling
short-term debt ratio and mitigating its exposure to the risk of gearing.

i net debts = total debts less cash and cash equivalents (excluding restricted cash)
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowings of the Group were secured
by one or a combination of the following items: properties under
development for sale, properties, restricted cash, equity interest of
certain subsidiaries of the Group, guarantees provided by the
controlling shareholder and equity interests and properties under
development for sale of certain non-subsidiary of the Group. Senior
notes were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Company. EB-5
loans were guaranteed by a subsidiary.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND CURRENCY RISK

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong
dollar and United States dollar. The functional currency of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the United States is United States dollar while that of the
Hong Kong subsidiaries is Hong Kong dollar, and that of the Mainland
China subsidiaries is Renminbi. As at 31 December 2020, the
borrowing of RMB918 million to the Group’s subsidiary in the United
States from the ultimate controlling shareholder was the long-term
financial support to the Group. The amounts of RMB2.17 billion of the
Group’s Hong Kong subsidiary due to its PRC subsidiary were the
internal funds transfer of the Group. The exchange rate changes in the
said amounts resulted in exchange losses recorded by the Group of
RMB193 million (2019: exchange gains of RMB68 million). As at 31
December 2020, the Group’s assets denominated in USD were
USD1.017 billion (equivalent to RMB6.64 billion), representing 27% of
the total assets, and the liabilities denominated in USD were USD868
million (equivalent to RMB5.67 billion), representing 29% of the total
liabilities, and assets denominated in USD exceeds liabilities
denominated in USD by 1.17 times. As foreign currency assets are in
line with the foreign currency liabilities, no financial instrument is
required for hedging purposes.

ISSUE OF SENIOR NOTES

On 15 January 2020, the Company issued the US$200,000,000
10.75% green senior notes due 2022 pursuant to the purchase
agreement dated 15 January 2020 and the Company used the net
proceeds for refinancing the Company’s medium to long-term offshore
indebtedness which would become due within one year and in
accordance with the Company’s green bond framework.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR T

INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31 December 2020, the debts payable borne with fixed interest
rate accounted for approximately 56.0% (As at 31 December 2019:
65.1%) of the total debts of the Group. The Group will continue to
monitor the trend of interest rates in the market closely and seek to
adopt appropriate risk management measures for mitigating the
exposure to the interest rate risk. In this regard, the Group considered
the exposure to interest rate risk low.

MAJOR INVESTMENTS, MAJOR ACQUISITION AND

DISPOSAL

(1)  On 8 January 2020, Landsea Homes of Arizona, LLC (the
“Landsea Arizona”) and Landsea Homes, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, Longhorn Wyoming, LLC, ZKL,
LLC and GGW Funding, LLC (collectively the “Sellers”), Jacob S.
Walker, Jeffrey M. Garrett and F. Michael Geddes and GWH
Holdings, LLC (“GWH?”) entered into the membership interest
purchase agreement, pursuant to which Landsea Arizona
conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Sellers conditionally
agreed to sell all of the issued and outstanding membership
interests of GWH. Upon completion of the acquisition on 15
January 2020, GWH and its subsidiaries became wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company. The acquisition constituted a
discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
8 January 2020.

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020

F = 2 B

RZZEZTF+ZA=+—H ' AKEEEFNEH
FE T B BERLD56.0%(R_E—LE+ A
=+—H:651%) - AEE KR ERMIHHE
BRkeSKEENRBRERER - LUREFER
R o Bt E - AEERABFERRRIE -

EARE EAKNBRHEESENHE

1) RZZ=ZTF—ANR " AARNZEWEBEA
7] Landsea Homes of Arizona, LLC ([ Landsea
Arizona]) M lLandsea Homes £ Longhorn
Wyoming, LLC * ZKL, LLC &% GGW Funding,
LLC(# B[ F & 75 1) ~ Jacob S. Walker »
Jeffrey M. Garrett &2 F. Michael Geddes A K&
GWH Holdings, LLC (TGWH.) T 37 A% 5 # &=
EE W% - 1Bt © Landsea Arizona B &R =
BELRZEETAGHERELEGWHRAER
BOIREFETEIIIR R ER - RZE_FF—
A+HABKREBEERE®E GWHREKBA
ANAARARINEEMB AR - WEEIEBX
EBMARSMERARFSFLEMMRA( Em
R DB VUEMRERARANATRERS °
E—PHFBEHRLEARFBAS T F —
ANBRRE -



On 31 August 2020 (US time), Landsea Homes and Landsea
Holdings Corporation, both are indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, entered into the conditional merger
agreement (the “Merger Agreement”) with LF Capital Acquisition
Corp. (“LF Capital”), a special purpose acquisition company in
the United States, and LFCA Merger Sub, Inc. (“Merger Sub”) in
relation to a business combination transaction by which Merger
Sub merges with and into Landsea Homes with Landsea Homes
being the surviving entity of such merger (the “Merger”). Merger
Sub is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LF Capital. Following the
Merger, Landsea Homes will become a wholly-owned subsidiary
of LF Capital, the LF Common Stock, public warrants and units
of which are listed on Nasdaqg. The Merger consideration is
USD343,805,119.68 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,681,679,933), which shall be payable in the form of Class
A common stock in LF Capital.

Under Paragraph 3(f) of Practice Note 15 of the Listing Rules
(“PN15”), a listed issuer is required to have due regard to the
interests of its existing shareholders by providing them with an
assured entitlement to shares in the spin-off entity, either by way
of a distribution in specie of existing shares in the spin-off entity
or by way of preferred application in any offering of existing or
new shares in the spin-off entity. Based on a number of factors,
the Board did not consider that the provision of assured
entitlement is practicable nor in the interest of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. Therefore, shareholders approval to
waive the assured entitlement is required.
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The Merger constituted a spin-off of the Company which is
subject to the applicable requirements in PN15 which has been
approved by the Stock Exchange on 18 December 2020. The
Merger and spin-off also constituted a major transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules which is subject
to the approval of the shareholders under paragraph 3(e)(1) of
PN15 and Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. As no shareholders of
the Company has a material interest in the Merger and the spin-
off (save that the controlling shareholders of the Company are
required to abstain from voting on the resolution to waive the
assured entitlement), (i) Greensheid Corporation (“Greensheid”) is
wholly-owned by Landsea International Holdings Limited
(“Landsea International”); (i) Landsea International is wholly-
owned by Landsea Group Co., Ltd., which is in turn owned as to
34.15% by Nanjing Ding Chong Investment Management
Consultants Ltd., a company wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Tian Ming (“Mr. Tian”), and as to 15.85% by Mr. Tian; and (iii)
Easycorps Corporation (“Easycorps”) is a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Tian. Each of Mr. Tian, Greensheid,
Landsea International and Easycorps held 8,901,500 shares,
1,997,961,187 shares, 367,914,894 shares and 361,493,785
shares of the Company respectively, together representing
approximately 57.95% of the issued share capital of the
Company giving the right to attend and vote at general meetings
of the Company, have given to the Company the written approval
in lieu of holding a general meeting of the Company.

A special general meeting of the Company was convened and
held on 7 January 2021 and the shareholders of the Company
(other than the controlling shareholders) have approved the
waiver on the assured entitlement. The Merger Agreement was
consummated completed on 7 January 2021.

For details of the Merger Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 21 December 2020.
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On 18 December 2020, B4 812 & B AR A F](Nanjing
Langming Properties Group Co., Ltd.”) (“Nanjing Langming”),
Xi’an Jiapeng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Xi’an
Jiapeng”), RAEMIEEEEEGR A A (Minsheng Royal Asset
Management Co., Ltd.*) (“Minsheng Royal Asset Management”)
and MR EBERIEEEE AR QA (Nanjing Xinhuisheng
Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) (“Nanjing Xinhuisheng”)
entered into the equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which
Minsheng Royal Asset Management (being an asset manager)
agreed to transfer the entire equity interests of Nanjing
Xinhuisheng on behalf of Minsheng Royal Asset Management’s
asset management plan and Nanjing Langming and Xi’an
Jiapeng agreed to purchase 74% and 26% equity interests of
Nanjing Xinhuisheng respectively at the total consideration of
RMB531,783,806.66, in which Nanjing Langming shall pay
RMB393,520,016.93.

Xi'an Jiapeng is a joint venture company owned as to 30% by
the Group and 70% by R & EEEEMERESIKEEBR
& 1K) (Nanjing Luode Dening Real Estate Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership))*.

Nanjing Xinhuisheng holds 49.9% equity interests in B RE%E &
%2 AR A7 (Nanjing Xueheng Properties Co., Limited*) which in
turn holds the land situated at R MIE R BRBAES N
(Heban Village, Maigaogiao Street, Qixia District, Nanjing, the
PRC*), which will be developed into a residential project with
ground commercial facilities.

The agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder
constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, and it was completed on 24
December 2020. Upon completion of the transfer, Nanjing
Xinhuisheng owned as to 74% by Nanjing Langming and as to
26% by Xi’an Jiapeng. Nanjing Xinhuisheng continues to be a
subsidiary of the Group and its financial results continues to be
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the
Company. For details of the transactions, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 18 December 2020.
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4) On 29 December 2020, FE{EEEXER QA (China
Information Industry Limited*) (“China Information”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as vendor, Nanjing Langming,
FYITRIEE TEEE AR A A (Shenzhen Kofa Industry and
Trade Group Co., Ltd.*) (“Shenzhen Kofa”), as purchaser and &
KEBEE(RINER AT (Dawning Information Industry
(Shenzhen) Limited*) (“Dawning Information”) entered into the
equity transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”)
pursuant to which China Information agreed to sell and Shenzhen
Kofa agreed to purchase 100% equity interest in Dawning
Information at the initial consideration of RMB500,000,000
(subject to adjustment).

Dawning Information owns the building named Landsea Tower
situated in Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

The Equity Transfer Agreement and the transaction contemplated
thereunder constituted a discloseable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, and it was
completed on 29 December 2020. For details of the transaction,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29
December 2020.

GUARANTEE

The Group cooperates with various financial institutions to arrange
mortgage loan facilities for the purchasers of its properties and
provides guarantees to secure such purchasers’ obligations of
repayment. As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB1.52 billion (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB1.34 billion).

As at 31 December 2020, there were certain corporate guarantees
provided by the subsidiaries of the Group for each other in respect of
their borrowings. The management considered that the subsidiaries
had sufficient financial resources to fulffill their obligations.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2020.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 1,614 employees (as at 31
December 2019: 1,390) who were responsible for the managerial,
administrative, technical and general functions in Hong Kong, the
United States and the PRC. The increase in headcounts is mainly due
to an increase in the number of staff employed for the business
development arising from the merger and acquisition in the United
States and new property development projects in the PRC. The
increment levels of the employees’ emolument, promotion and
remuneration were determined with reference to their duties,
performance and professional experience. Other employee benefits
included mandatory provident fund scheme, insurance and medical
coverage. According to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
adopted on 25 April 2012 and the Share Award Scheme adopted on 2
July 2014, the Company will grant share options or awarded shares to
the Group’s management and staff based on their individual
performance.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 8 February 2021, the Group acquired 70% equity interest of Xi'an
Jiapeng from third parties at a total consideration of RMB42,000,000.
After completion of the acquisition, Xi’an Jiapeng became a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEEARE

The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders
and quality of disclosure, transparency and accountability to
shareholders for the sake of maximizing returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code
of corporate governance.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Tian Ming, the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director, was also the Chief Executive Officer
before the appointment of Mr. Huang Zheng as the Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 27 March 2020. The Board believed that the
aforesaid arrangement did not impair the balance of power and
authority. The aforesaid deviation from CG Code provision A.2.1 is
rectified on 27 March 2020 upon the appointment of Mr. Huang Zheng
as an executive Director and Chief Executive Officer with effect from 27
March 2020 and Mr. Tian Ming simultaneously ceased to be the Chief
Executive Officer and remains as the Chairman of the Board. Since
then, the role of chairman and chief executive officer is separated and
performed by different individuals.

Save for the deviation as mentioned above, in the opinion of the
Directors, the Company was in compliance with all the relevant code
provisions under the CG Code during the year ended 31 December
2020.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions.

The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all

Directors, all Directors have complied with the required standards as
set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well
as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
overall Group’s strategy, major acquisitions and disposals, annual
budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or re-appointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The
management was delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board meetings
that are required for significant and important issues, and for statutory
purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the Group’s
latest developments and thus can assist them in discharging their
duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board
meetings and drafts of which will be circulated to all Directors for their
review, comments and approval after the meetings. The minutes books
are kept by the Company Secretary and will be open for inspection by
the Directors upon request. All Directors have access to the advice and
service of the Company Secretary who is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the procedures are followed and that all applicable laws
and regulations are complied with.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEEARE

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The Board currently consists of three executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Zheng (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 27 March 2020)

Mr. Jiang Chao (Executive Vice President)
(appointed on 27 March 2020)

Ms. Zhou Qin (retired upon conclusion of the
annual general meeting held on 19 June 2020)

Mr. Xie Yuanijian (retired upon conclusion of the
annual general meeting held on 19 June 2020)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Ms. Shen Leying (Re-designated from executive

Director to non-executive Director on 20 November 2020)
Mr. Zhou Yimin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie (retired upon conclusion of
the annual general meeting held on 19 June 2020)
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan
Mr. Rui Meng

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business
and family relationship among members of the Board. The biographies
of the Directors are set out on pages 28 to 33 under the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars or in-house briefing relating to their role as
director of the Company/taking part in business-related training/acting
as speaker for seminars and refreshed their knowledge and skills and
provided to the Company a record of training they received for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also continuously updated Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is summarized below:

Attending or
participating in
seminars/in-house

BE_T_ZHFE+_A=+—"BHULMRFE =8
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briefing relevant HESSH
to the business, BRER -
regulatory updates BHEERRIR
and director’s ESREY
Name of Directors duties  EE% e/ RiER
Executive Directors: HITEE
Mr. Tian Ming v  Ef%E v
Mr. Huang Zheng (appointed on 27 March 2020) v BiiEE(R=Z ?ﬁ A=t BEZRT) v
Mr. Jiang Chao (appointed on 27 March 2020) v BEBEE(MZTZF=A-+tBEZM) v
Ms. Zhou Qin (retired on 19 June 2020) N/A Fgat(R= z:zi/\ﬂ THhERE) TER
Mr. Xie Yuanjian (retired on 19 June 2020) N/A HERTEMZZE_ZF ATNARA) NER
Non-executive Directors: FHTEE
Ms. Shen Leying v =P Yo v
Mr. Zhou Yimin v IREr# v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTEE
Mr. Xu Xiaonian v  ENEERE v
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie (retired on 19 June 2020) N/A FHREE (NZBZ2F A ATLARE) TER
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan v BZETLEE v
Mr. Rui Meng v WEREE v

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating in suitable
training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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CEEARE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Tian Ming, the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director, was also the Chief Executive Officer
before the appointment of Mr. Huang Zheng as the Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 27 March 2020. The Board believed that the
aforesaid arrangement did not impair the balance of power and
authority. The aforesaid deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code is rectified on 27 March 2020 upon the appointment of Mr.
Huang Zheng as an executive Director and Chief Executive Officer with
effect from 27 March 2020 and Mr. Tian Ming simultaneously ceased
to be the Chief Executive Officer and remained as the Chairman of the
Board. Since then, the role of chairman and chief executive officer is
separated and performed by different individuals.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a
specific term and they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws and the
CG Code.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference, which is responsible for, among others, identifying
suitable individuals to become Board members and reviewing the
structure, size and diversity of the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
As required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed sufficient number of independent non-
executive Directors.

Mr. Xu Xiaonian is a famous Chinese economist and was granted the
highest award of economics study in China, the “Sun Yefang Economic
Science Award”. Mr. Xu has more than 35 years’ experience in
economics analysis.
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Mr. Chen Tai-yuan is a tenured Full Professor of Accounting, and
Associate Dean and the Director of MBA programs at the School of
Business and Management at Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He has more than 12 years of experiences of teaching
financial and managerial accounting to MBA and EMBA students, and
in executive education programs.

Mr. Rui Meng is professionally designated as a Certified Financial
Analyst by the Association for Investment Management and Research
since September 2000 and a Financial Risk Manager by the Global
Association of Risk Professionals since April 2010. He currently acts as
independent non-executive directors for several listed companies.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 30 August 2013
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company recognises that increasing
diversity at the Board level will support the attainment of the
Company'’s strategic objectives and sustainable development. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss
and review the necessities to set measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD MEETINGS E=Z=/FS23RHERHE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 4 Board meetings were EHE-_Z-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HItFE E=/Z
held. All Directors were given an opportunity to include any matter in 174k @x% - 2 EEEHEHK N EETRERS
the agenda for regular Board meetings and were given sufficient time  ZZERIMAFEMBHEESE > WEREFTWERR
to review the documents and information to be discussed in Board EERE@HBITAIENE Film2XERER -
meetings in advance.

Number of
Name of Directors meetings attended EENE HESBNE
Executive Directors: HITESE :
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 4/4 HeRLEE () 4/4
Mr. Huang Zheng (Note 1) 3/8  HAESEAE (KizE1) 3/3
Mr. Jiang Chao (Note 1) 3/3 BBk (MIsE1) 3/3
Ms. Zhou Qin (Note 2) 1/1 B4+ (fiE2) 1/1
Mr. Xie Yuanijian (Note 2) 1/1 A e A (eE2) 11
Non-executive Directors: IEHITESE -
Ms. Shen Leying 4/4 R4+ 4/4
Mr. Zhou Yimin 4/4 PERIEE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHHITESE -
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 4/4 FFNE S A 4/4
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie (Note 2) 11 A& (B E2) 1/1
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 4/4 PRIZTLIT A& 4/4
Mr. Rui Meng 4/4 WA A 4/4
Notes: X
1. Mr. Huang Zheng and Mr. Jiang Chao were appointed on 27 March 2020, and 3 B BAELCERBBEAEN_F_FTF=-_A_tLRAKRT-
Board meetings were held after their appointment. RERZTERBRITINESTRER °
2. Ms. Zhou Qin, Mr. Xie Yuanjian and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie retired upon 2. ~ BE#Z+t SERLEERFHREER T -FFA
conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 19 June 2020, and 1 Board TABRTZBRRBEFAEEREET RERTAGR
meeting was held before their retirement. TIREZREHE -
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT GENERAL MEETINGS KRR AESHFEDL &
During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, 1 general meeting #HZ=—Z_ZT&+_-_A=+—H JJ:WIBZ FE AR
of the Company was held, being the annual general meeting held on A B BT 1RBRR KRS - EUHA_ 2 A

19 June 2020 (“2020 AGM). ARTZBRRAFAG([ZZT_TFRFTAFK
g

Number of
Name of Directors meeting attended BEHA HEERRE
Executive Directors: BITESE
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 1/1 HERELE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Huang Zheng 0/1 EAE A& 0/1
Mr. Jiang Chao 1/1 LA 11
Ms. Zhou Qin 1/1 IEE Rt 11
Mr. Xie Yuanjian 1/1 HRESLE 11
Non-executive Directors: FHHITESE -
Ms. Shen Leying 11 FHE4 &4+ 1/
Mr. Zhou Yimin 0/1 BmEREE on
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHTESE :
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 1/1 NS A 11
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie 11 S A 1/1
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 1/1 PRZ=TL I AE 11
Mr. Rui Meng 1/1 PR ST A 11

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with  E= 56 SR FISEFREYHE - CHERFAS
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other K& siHMWE R AL HERER  THERES
general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their fn- EERTFFEUNEZEZES - IEE4EZ B2 LT
participation. The Chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the Audit F{ZEexX@EHE HE Lt E ke @ BERESE
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration R URERE=H -

Committee attended the abovementioned general meeting to answer

questions and collect views of shareholders.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees under the Board,
namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Executive Committee and the Sustainable Development
Supervision Committee, to oversee different aspects of the Group’s
affairs and to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee currently comprises one non-executive Director, Mr.
Zhou Yimin, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Rui Meng (as chairman) and Mr. Chen Tai-yuan. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are currently made available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim and
annual reports and financial statements of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the
Company’s financial reporting function and their training arrangement
and budget, and to review the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the
interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit
Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
reporting and accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee held 2 & E_—_ZE_ZTF+_A=+—BILFE E%ZEE

meetings. Each committee meeting has supplied with the necessary & & 55‘%{7 2XRGH - BARZECLRHYREMKEZ

financial information of the Group for members to consider, review and AKEBEFBER  UHEZESKEEE - BRI NLT

access significant issues arising from the work conducted. EFTET I EEAZEARAET °
Number of

Name of Members

BEHSR HEERRH

meetings attended

Mr. Rui Meng (Committee Chairman) 2/2 NEREE(ZE2 L E) 2/2
Mr. Zhou Yimin 2/2 BmEREE 2/2
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 2/2 PRZE T A& 2/2
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie (Note) 1/1 FHHEE () 1/1

Note: Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee
following his retirement as independent non-executive Director upon conclusion of

the 2020 AGM, and 1 Audit Committee meeting was held before his retirement.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the

following work:

— reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June

MicE: THREER S _TERABFEASERKRIEBILIF
WITESRR RTIBEAEZEZEGKE  RRENZE
TIRBREEGEE -

REBEFER  BREE@2THENT :

— FHEEZE-NEFIT-A=+—RHILEFEZ
PFEEENBE T _FFA=THIEAE

2020; Rz HIZEE

— discussed with the management of the Company over the — R -—FT—FTFhHNEFUERERE - H
completeness, fairness and adequacy of reporting and AAREEENHmAEBR ZHENNSTEL N
accounting standards and policies of the Group in the BHEEATE - A FRESH
preparation of the 2020 interim and annual financial statements;

— reviewed and discussed with the external auditor over the — AR RZEREST K EINEZSENRE
financial reporting of the Company; BEETE TR

— recommended to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of — THEHEZEZHEMAESRIELES @ UWER

the re-appointment of auditor;

— reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group

and relevant reports from external auditor; and

— reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of

the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee in accordance with requirements of the
Stock Exchange and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code. The Remuneration Committee shall comprise at least three
members with majority of independent non-executive Directors, and an
independent non-executive Director should take up the role of
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises one non-executive Director, Ms. Shen
Leying, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Chen Tai-yuan (as chairman), Mr. Xu Xiaonian and Mr. Rui Meng. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are currently made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy, to review
and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting. At the meeting, the committee members
reviewed the remuneration policies and structure of the Directors and
senior management and recommended to the Board the proposed
remuneration of the Directors and senior management; discussed the
assessment plan of the management for the year 2020 and considered
the management share award plan for the year 2020.

HE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—BLFE FHEE
SERITIREZ -NeHEL ZEERNERTE
EREREBABZTHBRRREBRRES RS
REBABZEZBFMRAESRRELESR  sTm=
T TFEEEETMERER_SSFEZ
EEERD RS -

Number of
Name of Members meeting attended REHR HEEERRE
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan (Committee Chairman) 1/1 BRETLSEE(ZEEEF/E) 11
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 1/1 FRNEFERE 1/1
Ms. Shen Leying (Note) N/A FAZEL A7 (FffE) N3 R
Mr. Rui Meng 1/1 NHEASEAE 11
Ms. Zhou Qin (Note) 1/1 A gz + (fEE) 11
Note: Ms. Zhou Qin ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee following Wiz : ALt R - E-_TERFTAEASERBTEINITESE

her retirement as executive Director upon conclusion of the 2020 AGM, and 1
Remuneration Committee meeting was held before her retirement. Ms. Shen Leying
was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee in place of Ms. Zhou
Qin on 19 June 2020 and no Remuneration Committee meeting was held after her
appointment.

The emolument payable to Directors and senior management will
depend on their respective contractual terms under the employment
agreements, if any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the performance of
the Group, their duties and responsibilities, remuneration benchmark in
the industry and the prevailing market conditions. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management are set out in
note 14 and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee shall comprise at least three members with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors, and the Chairman of
the Board or an independent non-executive Director should take up
the role of chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Xu Xiaonian (as chairman), Mr.
Rui Meng and Mr. Chen Tai-yuan. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are currently made available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s strategy; to identify qualified individuals to
become members of the Board; to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-election of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered
necessary), including periodical review of such plans. The appointment
of a new Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy
as and when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for
decision by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee.
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The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified

shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the

affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as

well as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities

which, in particular, are set out as follows:

@

participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (in the case of
candidate for non-executive Director) and other relevant Board
committees, if invited;

bringing a range of business and financial experience to the
Board, giving the Board and any committees on which he or she
serves the benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied
backgrounds and qualifications and diversity through attendance
and participation in the Board/committee meetings;

scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform
their powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by
legislation or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.
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If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made
by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality
of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also
be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise for filling the office of an independent non-
executive Director with such qualifications or expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting. At the meeting, the committee members reviewed the
structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of services) of the Board; assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; considered
the re-election of Directors; and considered the nomination of executive
Directors before putting forth for discussion and approval by the Board.

REAZBEZERBUIFNTES  HBUME
R (AR E1E) WA RIS A GMIIERET
il MERRNEE R AR L EET - EEAH
BRT - RIEETWRBNZES.10Q) 6 - B EREA
MHERE ERNMERUEEFEEEHEAEED
EXERSESHEANM B EEFTREME - JE
R IERITEF AR

HE-_ZT-_THF+-_A=1+—HILEE  ERZE8
TERITIREHZ - -NEHEL TEEHERRER
EERWMEIER  RIESHEE ABK
B Z b (B (BTRM) MR - Fie - ERHE
BES 1Bk BELR - - MBRRBGES
FE) HEBMIERTEZ BN ERES
BEFEE RERBTEFREER -

Number of
Name of Members meeting attended REHKR RE
Mr. Xu Xiaonian (Committee Chairman) 1/1 FNFEEE(ZEZEE) 1/
Mr. Rui Meng 1/1 PR ST A 1/1
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan 1/1 PR LA E 1/1
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie (Note) 1/1 =S A& (M) 11
Note: Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee Mizr: ZHBEEER - E-_EERFTBAEANSERFREBIIE

following his retirement as independent non-executive Director upon conclusion of
the 2020 AGM, and 1 Nomination Committee meeting was held before his

retirement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions were performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements and make
recommendations to the Board, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors, and
to review the Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has
reviewed the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management and reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee (formerly named as “Operational Committee”)
of the Company was established on 18 March 2005, was reformed
and renamed to “Executive Committee” with all of the executive
Directors as its members and a new set of terms of reference was
adopted on 31 July 2013, which has been subsequently amended to
reflect the powers, authorities and discretions delegated by the Board
from time to time.

The Executive Committee meets on ad hoc basis in accordance with
its written terms of reference.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.
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The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 115 to 128.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any matters uncertainly relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out below:

RRB ZSNE BB RGBS At BT E 5P A
E@ﬁﬁ&i&%’%ﬁﬂ#ﬁ%ziﬁ % BREINE 11552128
BZ B RBEHREA -

ESKFE—UREEWRER  REFMAM -
EERNRERE  BRELTHBEMRATEYARRREE
REENEREARBZEERIENZ THEERRE

BT &
HE_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—RHILFE BN E
AR B A% SRR 28 Fo B ok 38 & 5T R B 15 FT 2 i & 40
T

RMB’000
AR® T

Services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers 7ok BRSSPI 2 BRFS
Audit services ZERTS 2,540
Non-audit services B RS 2,080
4,620
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-17), to
provide compliance and full range of company secretarial services to
the Group in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing
regulatory environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella, the representative of Uni-1, is the named
Company Secretary of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
Chan are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”.

Mr. Chan Chun Kit, the financial controller of the Company, is the
primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms.
Chan has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The amount of any dividends that the Company may declare and pay
in the future will be subject to the discretion of the Board and will be
based upon the Group’s overall results of operation, financial condition,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, liquidity
position, future expansion plans, amount of retained earnings,
distributable reserves and any other conditions that the Directors
consider relevant. Any declaration and payment of dividends may also
be limited by restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s
constitutional documents, the Listing Rules and any other applicable
laws and regulations. The amounts of dividend distributions that the
Group has declared and made in the past are not indicative of the
dividends that the Company may pay in the future.
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The Directors may recommend a payment of dividends after taking into
account the general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and any other internal and external factors that may
affect the business and financial performance and position of the
Group in addition to the above-mentioned criteria. Any future
declaration of dividends may or may not reflect the historical
declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion of the
Directors.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy from time to time. The Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general
meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the
Companies Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to
convene a special general meeting are set out in the document entitled
“Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director”, which is currently available on the Company’s website.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO
THE BOARD

To ensure effective communications between the Board and the
shareholders and the investment community at large, the Company
has adopted a set of shareholders communication policy (the “Policy”)
on 12 March 2012. Under the Policy, the Company’s information shall
be communicated to the shareholders and the investment community
mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim reports and
annual reports), and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. Shareholders and the investment community may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available. Any such questions shall be first
directed to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward
a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@  any number of members holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.
The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the

requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the
necessary procedures.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company’s annual general meeting is a valuable
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of each of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee together with the external auditor are present to answer
shareholders’ questions. The annual report together with annual
general meeting circular is distributed to all the shareholders at least 20
clear business days before the annual general meeting.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the 2021 annual
general meeting will be voted by poll.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the development and
maintenance of risk management and internal control of the Company
and evaluation of their effectiveness. The Company adopts a
comprehensive risk management and internal control structure to
handle and manage its risks. The Company has set up strict
procedures to ensure that no assets would be subject to unauthorized
use or disposal and appropriate accounting records are kept for the
preparation of reliable financial reports in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020

BEEXHF
REFE  ARRZBEXHLBEE -

BRRRREEZBER

EESRANEEBERESRIBBZERN - K
RAZBRAFASRHEER S REETRERA
RRER EFERIFUNNEREZES  REBEE
SRFMEE LR ERINEZBEEE HFEK
RBFRE  MERRER - FRERABRFRE
FAEZBHNERBFRERTMEL _+ET
ERFREBEE -

BIRZEHTARIR

Riz EHRRIE 13.394) 1% - FREFEABREERR
AR ERTHAREAREFRITHREE RBRNAR
FHARRI  RBRRAE L BRRAIEEARR
BAARRTAET - Bt R-F-—FRRE
FREBEMHEEHPRBRSURETARR -

B B & A ER R

EZRERABARAAREEMARNEZR 2EY
M NEREHARMAS - ARREBREEAR
e IR K NEREE R R B ATE IR R W A B IR AR » K
RARBBBNEFAREEEETERERET
ERUEE  FREZNGFLEATIEREMNT
BiE - WETERNERER -



The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management,
internal control and financial control systems. It discusses with the
management regarding the risk management and internal control
systems to ensure they have performed their duties to establish
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for ensuring that the internal review
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate stand within the
Company, and reviewing the adequacy of qualifications and
experience, training programs and relevant budgets of staff in charge
of accounting, financial reporting and internal audit of the Company.

Based on the information and confirmation of the management and
internal audit department, the internal control system of the Group
covers all of its activities and transactions, and the management shall
conduct regular risk assessment (at least annually) and monitor and
report the progress of actions taken to cope with significant risks from
time to time. The Audit Committee considers that, for the year ended
31 December 2020, the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company were comprehensive and effective. The Company has
set up a supervisory and audit office which carries out audit and
supervisory work independently under the guidance and supervision of
the Board, and directly reports to the Chairman of the Board and the
Audit Committee. The accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
personnel have sufficient qualifications and experience and have
received adequate training within the review period.

IMPROVING INTERNAL CONTROL MECHANISM
The Group has formulated a comprehensive Manual of System
Development Procedures of Landsea Green Properties ( B34k £330,
EE R ZREHIE F M) ), which covers all important aspects
including the project positioning, design management, cost
management, project management, sales management, customer
management, brand management, financial management, operation
management and human resources, to optimize the internal control
system and safeguard a stable operation and management. The Group
has also formulated process standards such as “Management
Measures on Operation (& & Z#7%)” and amended “Management
Measures on Verification Change (% &2 % &2 #)%)” and
BHX)” in
accordance with business lines to further, to further improve the

“Management Measures for Company Seal (El1Z &

management of business risks and regulate the management of
business processes.
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OPTIMIZING INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES
Based on the characteristics of different risks and business segments,
the Company adopts various specific measures in respect of market
risk, financial risk, product risk, operational risk and information system
security in order to enhance the internal control standards. The
Company has also formulated the Cultural Strategy Handbook ( {32{t
B BEF M) ), the Landsea Brand Handbook ( {BAz% @2 F M) ) and
the Staff Handbook to strengthen the behavioral management and
regulatory guidance of staff.

CLEARLY DEFINING AUTHORITY OF
MANAGEMENT

Through a series of systemized and standardized measures including
the revision of Handbook of Authorities and Responsibilities ( {#£& F
fit) ), the Company has strengthened the daily authorization
management and the authorization system, which has laid the
foundation of the existing authorization management system of the
Company.

HIGHLY EMPHASIZING PREVENTION AND
CONTROL OF SIGNIFICANT RISKS

The Company attaches high importance in the prevention, control and
investigation of significant risks. Pursuant to the principle of “Full
Coverage and Comprehensive Investigation to Control Risk”, the
Company conducts investigation with focuses on major areas including
tender and procurement, housing maintenance and marketing, and
implements rectification measures against each of the problems
identified for effective prevention and solution.

STRENGTHENING INTERNAL AUDIT AND
RECTIFICATION

The internal audit department of the Company has conducted audit on
the financial and internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries,
including the financial management, budget management, cost
management, procurement management and expense management,
and provide advice on rectification and risk prevention aiming to
improve systems, standardize procedures and optimize mechanisms.
Improvement has been made in response to the rectifying opinions for
the year.

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020

BERIPE TR
RARRARER N RBREFGMER AL - Gt
AT SRR PERR EmER - EZR
% BARRLZEETEZRIE - GHRAME
FETRABIEHIKE  RRBESIE TCUEBEEF
i) (A REFMYECE TFM) - feB TiT5H
EEMRESE -

RAHEREETETLE

ARRBBER  TE(EETFM)F—RIHE
o~ RSN - MR T EEREERE LT
BRREBRER EEAARARTEEEENHEE

/:Eo

ER S EREEGE

AREmEERERBRERHEMES TIE - KK
(2HEEZ Z—HE - 2FRER] WRAIBRSE
T VEKRR B EHEBTERELN B
LR BRGER BN - AR Mg
B o

iR ERF A R B R

RRABIA BB EPIEARR R REM B QR B
BEE BEEE RAETE RBEHE  BRE
BEMBRAEETES HKR2HE  RER
B cERGIETH REBXNMERHEER -
REFREONENERYENRE -



IMPROVING ANTI-CORRUPTION MECHANISM
AND STRENGTHENING CASE MANAGEMENT
With strict legal compliance adhering to the core value of “people-
oriented, positive and green”, all of the Company’s employees ought to
develop sound legal awareness and act in compliance with laws and
regulations. The Company has established the Code of Anti-corruption
and set up the Work Ethics Committee as the highest executive
function for the Group’s anti-corruption work, with duties mainly
including promotion of anti-corruption measures, coordination of
anticorruption work and handling and making decisions in relation to
relevant issues. The Work Ethics Committee is chaired by Mr. Tian
Ming, the Chairman of the Board, with members comprising all
executive Directors, senior management and staff representatives. The
Company’s monitoring department is a dedicated function operating
under the Work Ethics Committee to carry out investigation in
corruption-related matters and reports directly to the Chairman of the
Company. Cases will be filed, investigated and handled in an
independent, objective and just manner. The Company has set up
reporting email, reporting hotline and WeChat reporting platform, and
announcements are made to the relevant internal and external units
and personnel. The Company encourages autonym whistleblowing,
and all such cases will be filed and investigated, while the
whistleblowers will be informed of the result under various measures
that safeguard their legal rights. The Company has zero tolerance
towards corruption. Therefore, in the event of any corruption, the
Company will impose penalty in accordance with the Code of
Anticorruption, including dismissal and reporting to judicial authority.

In addition, the Group regulates the handling and announcement of
inside information as set out in the corporate responsibility policy and
all subsidiary procedures in order to ensure that the inside information
shall be kept confidential until disclosure with proper approval and the
relevant information shall be announced in an effective and consistent
manner.
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Appropriate policy and supervision have been designed and put in
place to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposal, ensure
compliance with relevant rules and regulations, maintain reliable
financial and accounting records pursuant to applicable accounting
standards and regulatory requirement on reporting and properly identify
and manage the major risks which may affect the performance of the
Group. The relevant system and internal control can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss as they are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business targets.

The internal audit department of the Group carries out auditing work
aiming to control risks. Its annual working plan covers all major works
and procedures of the operational, business and service units of the
Group and special review will be conducted in accordance with the
requirement of the management. The results of audit shall be submitted
to the Audit Committee. The internal audit department will review and
follow up on issues raised during the audit to ensure effective
implementation and regularly report the progress to the Audit
Committee.

The internal audit department of the Group shall independently confirm
to each of the Board, the Audit Committee and the administrative
management of the Group that the internal control system of the Group
is sufficient and effective. The head of the internal audit department of
the Group shall directly report to the chairman of the Audit Committee,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.

The management is responsible for the design, implementation and
supervision of risk management and internal control system, and shall
regularly report to the Board and/or the Audit Committee regarding the
effectiveness of the relevant system.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the internal control system of
the Company was comprehensive and effective, and was neither
subject to any significant or major internal control deficiency nor
material issues which may affect the financial control, operational
control, compliance control and risk management function of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERHEE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41
to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
129 to 132.

The Directors recommended to the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 30 June 2021 (“AGM”) the distribution of a final dividend
of HK cents 3.00 (equivalent to RMB cents 2.50)
contributed surplus of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020.

per share out of

There is no arrangement that any shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any shares during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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DEBENTURES

On 15 January 2020, the Company issued the US$200 million 10.75%
green senior notes due 2022 in accordance with the purchase
agreement dated 15 January 2020.

The Company has privately repurchased and cancelled part of the
US$200 million 9.625% senior notes due 2020 in an aggregate amount
of US$10 million in April 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified in
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review of the Group’s
business, a discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, future development in the Company’s business and analysis
using financial key performance indicators, are set out in the sections
headed “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT”, “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS” and “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” in this
annual report. The above sections form an integral part of this directors’
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are contained the information required
under Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules will be published on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website within three months
after publication of the Company’s 2020 annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the
Company is subject to relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda. In
addition, the Company is registered as a non-Hong Kong company
under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance and therefore is subject to
the relevant provisions under the Companies Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules including
the disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions
therein.

Under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”), the Company is required to maintain a register
of interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to
disclose price sensitive or inside information.

The Group is principally engaged in properties development in the PRC
and the United States and therefore is subject to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and the United States.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company recognised that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus, the Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. The Group also
understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with
business partners and bank enterprises to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, the management have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them
when appropriate. During the year under review, there was no material
and significant dispute between the Group and its business partners or
bank enterprises.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 24 June 2021 to Wednesday,
30 June 2021, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be effected. All transfer of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 23 June 2021.

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the proposed
distribution, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 12 July 2021 to Thursday, 15 July 2021, both dates
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In
order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 9 July 2021.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year-end
date. The net increase in fair value of RMB80,790,000 has been
credited directly to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Details of the movements in the investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in notes
18 and 19 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account in the amount of RMB24,366,000
may be distributable in the form of fully paid bonus shares. Under the
laws of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus account may be
distributed under certain circumstances, as at 31 December 2020, the
balance of the account was RMB604,036,000.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Zheng (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 27 March 2020)

Mr. Jiang Chao (Executive Vice President)
(appointed on 27 March 2020)

Ms. Zhou Qin
(retired upon conclusion of the annual general meeting held
on 19 June 2020)

Mr. Xie Yuanijian (Vice President)
(retired upon conclusion of the annual general meeting held
on 19 June 2020)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Ms. Shen Leying
(re-designated from executive Director to non-executive Director
on 20 November 2020)

Mr. Zhou Yimin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie
(retired upon conclusion of the annual general meeting held
on 19 June 2020)
Mr. Chen Tai-yuan
Mr. Rui Meng

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 87(1), Mr. Tian Ming, Ms.
Shen Leying and Mr. Zhou Yimin will retire by rotation at the AGM, Mr.
Zhou Yimin will not offer himself for re-election at the AGM as he would
like to spend more time pursuing his own business. Mr. Tian Ming and

Ms. Shen Leying, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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The Company entered into service contract with:

(i) Mr. Tian Ming on 27 March 2020 for the continuous appointment
as an executive Director and Chairman of the Board for a term of
three years commencing from 1 August 2019; and

(i)  each of Mr. Huang Zheng and Mr. Jiang Chao on 27 March 2020
for the appointment as executive Directors for a term of three
years commencing from 27 March 2020.

The Company entered into appointment letter with:

(1) Ms. Shen Leying on 20 November 2020 for the appointment as a
non-executive Director for a term of three years commencing
from 20 November 2020;

(2)  Mr. Zhou Yimin on 17 November 2018 for the continuous
appointment as a non-executive Director for a term of three years
commencing from 17 November 2018;

(8 Mr. Xu Xiaonian on 27 March 2020 for the continuous
appointment as an independent non-executive Director for a term
of three years commencing from 1 August 2019;

(4)  Mr. Chen Tai-yuan on 22 March 2019 for the appointment as an
independent non-executive Director for a term of three years
commencing from 22 March 2019; and

(5) Mr. Rui Meng on 27 May 2019 for the appointment as an
independent non-executive Director for a term of three years
commencing from 27 May 2019.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES OF
HK$0.01 EACH OF THE COMPANY

EERFTETBRAERKRS - HER®D
SEE- ek £
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FXR  MRBELEMBETAETETESFRINEGE
EFRI(BRETFR D ASTHEARARR RBRZAZ
R MORRIT

RAEQRRBREEOIBIEERZ
%R

Approximate

Number of percentage in

ordinary shares total number of

Name of Director Capacity held issued shares

HERITROBH

EERE 54 R 88 BB D

Mr. Tian Ming (“Mr. Tian”) Interest of controlled corporation 2,727,369,866 57.75%
HBAsE A ([AEE]D) REGDEE R (Notes 1 and 2)
(MisE1 & 2)

Beneficial owner 8,901,500 0.19%

EnREBA

Mr. Huang Zheng Beneficial owner 20,000,000 0.42%
R (lbitas EnlEEA (Note 3)
(M45E3)

Mr. Jiang Chao Beneficial owner 10,000,000 0.21%
BHEE EnlEEA (Note 3)
(B&E3)

Ms. Shen Leying Beneficial owner 2,214,500 0.04%
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Notes:

(1) These include (i) 1,997,961,187 ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) held
through Greensheid Corporation (“Greensheid”); (i) 361,493,785 Shares held
through Easycorps Group Limited (“Easycorps”); and (i) 367,914,894 Shares held
through Landsea International Holdings Limited (“Landsea International”).

2 Greensheid is wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn wholly-owned
by Landsea Group. Landsea Group is owned as to 34.15% by Ninjing Ding Chong
Investment Management Consultants Ltd. (“Nanjing Ding Chong”) and 15.85% by
Mr. Tian. Nanjing Ding Chong is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Tian. Mr. Tian is regarded as the controlling shareholder of Landsea Group.
Easycorps is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian. Therefore, Mr.
Tian is deemed to be interested in these 2,727,369,866 Shares pursuant to the
SFO.

(©)) These are restricted shares granted by the Company pursuant to the restricted
share award scheme adopted by the Board on 2 July 2014. For details, please refer
to the section headed “Restricted Share Award Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company and their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were required
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Transactions” in note 38 to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or its subsidiaries were a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Each of the Directors has confirmed that none of them is engaged in,
or interested in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Transactions” in note 38 to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020, at no time during the year had the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or any
contract of significance for the provision of services by the controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, the Group had charitable donation of RMB815,000
(2019: RMB1,057,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and the restricted share award
scheme of the Company as set out below in this report and also note
32 to the financial statements, there was no equity-linked agreement
entered into by the Group during the year or subsisting at the end of
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

EENHEFRETNES
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 2 July 2014, the Board adopted a restricted share award scheme
(“Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive to recognise the contributions
by employees and to give incentives to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, as well as attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. The Directors strongly
believe that the continued success of the Group is closely tied with the
commitment and efforts of the employees of the Group. The shares
subject to restrictions (“Restricted Shares”) can serve as an incentive to
motivate them to further contribute to the Group. The Restricted
Shares to be awarded will be with reference to the performance,
operating and financial targets and other criteria determined by the
Board from time to time. The Share Award Scheme is effective for a
term of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption subject to any
early termination as may be determined by the Board.

The summary of the principal terms and conditions of Share Award
Scheme were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 2 July
2014. As at 31 December 2020, an aggregate of 35,262,500
Restricted Shares were granted to reward the eligible awardees, details

PR 5 14 AR 40 2R B =t &

R-_T—MELA R - EFRHTAREIER 12
Bhat 81 ([ It BBt 81 ) AZFHER 2 BB - BB
MASAEEZFELEMBERHEE N > AR
SEE-—BPERWIEAAT - EFH®E A%H
ZRERINEAEBRE ZAERB HETRE -
SRR (TR B MR (D 1) AT CAYE 2% — TR B bA 12
EfE— P HAREERTR - B TFREZRS
HEBRDH2ERR AEERKZE MFBRETARH
EE RN EMEEEE 2 R MIREEE - ki ZE)
AEIRRABHEER  RBTF  RIEKEEZR
RERFRIE

IR BB T &l 2 E B ERRAGHBEEER IR AR A
BA-T—NELtA_BZRAERN - RZTE=-F
F+ZA=+—H ' BE&RMHE 35,262,500 3% R #l
MEAR (7 LA B2 B & B AR BB A L - RAF BRI 1 AR

of movement of the Restricted Shares during the year are set out as {9z & &hzEBFEH 0T :
below:
Date of grant Outstanding Number of Distributed and Outstanding at
of Restricted at 1 January Restricted cancelled during 31 December
Awardees Shares 2020 Shares Granted the year 2020
IJ-A— = — 7 qE
BT R &I R=ZB=FF 2 % H BR Hil 1 +=HA=+—8
ERBAL BRHBEE —A—BHZz#&& ROHBE FRIEKREH 2
Directors
oy
Mr. Huang Zheng 31 March 2020 - 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
=T AE e (Note 1)
=A=+—H (Bt 1)
Mr. Jiang Chao 31 March 2020 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
BHLE —E-TF (Note 1)
=A=+—H (f3E1)
Sub-total - 30,000,000 — 30,000,000
it
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Date of grant Outstanding Number of Distributed and  Outstanding at
of Restricted at 1 January Restricted cancelled during 31 December
Awardees Shares 2020 Shares Granted the year 2020
R-ZE-EHF
BT REI% R=Z=BF 2 1% H BR il 1 +=A=+—8
ERBAL BRHBBEH —A—HZ&& BRHEBE FROEREH ZEERR
Other Employees 19 November 2014 980,000 - - 980,000
HftEE —T-mE
+—A+hrA
8 April 2016 309,750 - - 309,750
—E—RF
MANE
31 March 2020 - 64,600,000 1,800,000 62,800,000
T (Note 2)
=A=+—H (BEE2)
Sub-total
Net 1,289,750 64,600,000 1,800,000 64,089,750
Total
#st 1,289,750 94,600,000 1,800,000 94,089,750
Vesting Conditions: BERYE

RZZF-—OE+—-ATNABREZRHIMER

7ANEN
-

()  Restricted Shares granted on 19 November 2014: 0)

(1)  Subject to fulfillment of the year’s preset performance, (1) EARCESREERNBRATCFERE
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the wRE - HERVBEE
Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of two years @ EmEEMEGEEE  BLAMSTZE
is required [BHA

(i)  Restricted Shares granted on 8 April 2016: i) R-ZT—NEMANBELE RIS

(1)  Subject to fulfillment of the year’s preset performance, (1) EARCESREERNBRATCFERE

operation and financial targets at the discretion of the wRE - HERVBEE

Board

@ ®EmEFOEGER AEBAFZE
BH

BRSEHMERRDAR/ T _THFFR @

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of five years is
required
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(i) Restricted Shares granted on 31 March 2020:

(1)  Subject to fulfilment of the year’s preset performance,
operation and financial targets at the discretion of the
Board

(2)  After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of five years is
required

Notes:

1. Subject to the fulfilment of the vesting conditions, half of the Restricted Shares
granted are exercisable into Shares at HK$0.66 each, and half of the Restricted

Shares are exercisable at nil consideration.

2. Subject to the fulfilment of the vesting conditions, there are 18,000,000 Restricted
Shares granted are exercisable into Shares at HK$0.66 each, and the remaining
46,600,000 Restricted Shares are exercisable at nil consideration.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER UNDER RULE
13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not have any disclosure
obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted and became
effective upon passing relevant ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2012. Summary of
the principal terms of the Scheme were set out in the circular to the
Company’s shareholders on 22 March 2012. No share option was
granted under the Scheme since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Options” and
“Restricted Share Award Scheme” above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Company’s Directors or chief executives to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain Directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of
the Company:

ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.01 EACH OF THE
COMPANY

FERRK

AZEZTFT_H=1T—H ARFARBEESFK
HEKPIECCKRTFECLEIEREELMAET B
EXBEEEEETEERETZTHRAB 2ER
Sh ATREBAE RN HEAARAEEHITR
Rz B :

RAFEBREEC.O1EBTHNEER

Number of  Percentage in

Long position/ ordinary total number of

Name of Shareholder Short position Shares held  issued Shares

HERTRE

RREE 8 #e/ KA FrisEERgA BYFIL

Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1) R BRHBRAR (FE1) Long position 2,365,876,081 50.10%
8

Landsea International (Note 1) Landsea International (Fi{#E 1) Long position 2,365,876,081 50.10%
A

Nanjing Ding Chong Investment Management  FIRREREEIREM Long position 2,365,876,081 50.10%
Consultants Ltd. (Note 1) BRAR (KizE1) HeE

Greensheid (Note 1) Greensheid (FfEE1) Long position 1,997,961,187 42.31%
8

Easycorps (Note 2) Easycorps (fiFF2) Long position 361,498,785 7.66%
A

Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of FEE R (SB)RMEBAE  Long position 327,002,604 6.92%
China, Ltd. (Note 3) (M=E3) e

Short position 327,002,604 6.92%
e

Ping An Life Insurance Company of REF R ABRBRROERAF Long position 327,002,604 6.92%
China Ltd. (Note 3) (Ff5E3) Sy

Short position 327,002,604 6.92%
KE

Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance F B2 E R RO BR A A Long position 327,002,604 6.92%
Company of China, Ltd. (Note 3) (Ft7E3) e

Short position 327,002,604 6.92%
KB

RS ERRAR/ S5 F% @
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Number of  Percentage in
Long position/ ordinary total number of
Name of Shareholder Short position Shares held  issued Shares
HEBRTRG
RREE 28 BE/ %R Gigsizgalie E BYFIL
Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. (Note 3) TerBERRAR (FEE3) Long position 327,002,604 6.92%
A
Short position 327,002,604 6.92%
KB
Pingan Real Estate Capital Ltd. (Note 3) T eEERGR AR (K3F3)  Long position 327,002,604 6.92%
e
Short position 327,002,604 6.92%
#A
Fuji Investment Management Limited (Note 3) =& #®&EEEBER AR (fF3) Long position 327,002,604 6.92%
50}
Short position 327,002,604 6.92%
)
Ting Wang (Note 4) T% (fi34) Long position 331,376,970 7.02%
A
State-owned Assets Supervision And HRMARBRRAEESRE Long position 314,507,927 6.66%
Administration Commission of EBEE 2 (H:5) )
Nanjing Municipal Government (Note 5)
Nanjing Urban Construction Investment ARMAMERREER(SE) Long position 314,507,927 6.66%
Holding (Group) Co,. Ltd. (Note 5) BRET AR (HES) e
Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & ARMBEBEEREERZER (£E) Long position 314,507,927 6.66%
Management Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. BERFFAE(Mz5) HE
(Note 5)
Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. (Note 5) ARKEEBAREM AR (HFE5)  Long position 314,507,927 6.66%
A
Nanjing Textiles Import & Export Corp., Ltd.  FAR#&mE L ARG ER A E] Long position 314,507,927 6.66%
(Note 9) (Fft5E5) 50}
Hong Kong Newdawn International Hong Kong Newdawn International Long position 314,507,927 6.66%
Co., Limited (Note 5) Co., Limited (FifzE5) e
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Notes:

Save

These include (i) 1,997,961,187 Shares held through Greensheid; and (ii)
367,914,894 Shares held through Landsea International.

Greensheid is wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn wholly-owned
by Landsea Group. Landsea Group is owned as to 34.15% by Nanjing Ding Chong.
Nanjing Ding Chong is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian.
Therefore, Landsea International is deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Greensheid, and Landsea Group is deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Landsea International and Greensheid, as well as Nanjing Ding Chong is deemed to
be interested in the shares held by Greensheid and Landsea International pursuant
to the SFO.

Easycorps is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian.

These include () 327,002,604 Shares held by Fuiji Investment Management Limited.
Fuiji Investment Management Limited is wholly-owned by Pingan Real Estate Capital
Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Ping An Real Estate Company Limited.
Ping An Real Estate Company Limited is owned as to 49.5% by Ping An Life
Insurance Company of China Ltd. and 35% by Ping An Property & Casualty
Insurance Company of China, Ltd. Each of Ping An Life Insurance Company of
China Ltd. and Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Company of China, Ltd is
owned as to 99.51% by Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd.
Therefore, each of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd., Ping An Life
Insurance Company of China Ltd., Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Company
of China, Ltd., Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. and Pingan Real Estate Capital
Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fuji Investment Management
Limited pursuant to the SFO.

These include 252,608,635 Shares beneficially owned by Mr. Ting Wang (“Mr. Ting”)
and 78,768,335 Shares held through Ding Capital Management Limited (“Ding
Capital”). Ding Capital is wholly-owned by Mr. Ting.

Hong Kong Newdawn International Co., Limited is wholly-owned by Nanjing Textiles
Import & Export Corp., Ltd. Nanjing Textiles Import & Export Corp., Ltd. is owned
as to 34.99% by Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd.
is owned as to 60% by Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding (Group)
Co,. Ltd. and 40% by Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. and Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding
(Group) Co,. Ltd. are both wholly-owned by State-owned Assets Supervision And
Administration Commission of Nanjing Municipal Government. Therefore, each of
State-owned Assets Supervision And Administration Commission of Nanjing
Municipal Government, Nanjing State-Owned Assets Investment & Management
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd., Nanjing Urban Construction Investment Holding (Group)
Co,. Ltd., Nanjing Tourism Group Co., Ltd. Nanjing Textiles Import & Export Corp.,
Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Hong Kong Newdawn
International Co., Limited pursuant to the SFO.

as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any

other relevant interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying

shares of the Company as at 31 December 2020.

GEE

B EXXPTREEE S

B3 ()1,997,961,187 % i 8 Greensheid 3 A 2 & 17 :
367,914,894 i§ 3% i Landsea International A 2 f& {7 °
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International Al R RAFF R B2 EHEE - BIFSEHEREE
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Al e FEt - IREBEH K EE &G - Landsea International 1%
R A Greensheid T A Z R P Az - MAIFEE
48 & 17 Landsea International & Greensheid FT#5 8 2 & (7
A R 2 DA R R R & 4 AR /3 7 Greensheid & Landsea
International FT#8 2 iR 15 P #E A 2 o

oj

Easycorps A EEZEBESBEEZ A

BH()327,002, 604 ELHREERARATRA 2B
EERABEARATATRIDEEAERAREZERE
B MFPRTBHEEAARATNBFLZTHEERAT
2EHEE - FRTBEARAADHATETFRASRRE
BRA7 AR A B K B F 22 81 EE RBR BRI B IR 1A RIBE R 49.6%
K 35% s - MHEFRASRBRMDARAR R EF
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RABGEE 99.561% 2 o Et - RIFFFRAK KD - F
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BERAREFLZTIHEEARABRARZARGEANETE
EERBARARMBEZRNPHEBRESR -

BEATRZEE(T L] B E 252,608,635 A
123838 Ding Capital Management Limited ([ Ding Capital ) #55
#)78,768,335 &A% 15 ° Ding Capital 8 T St £ 2= EHER ©

Hong Kong Newdawn International Co., Limited 1 B3 = 47 4%
mEH ORNDERDB2ERER - MRABDEH ARG
BRAR HERIKEEEGREERAIZEAS 34.99% 5
MEARKEEEFRETAA DA EEEMRMERZE
ER(EE)ERETARKMAMEAEERE EEER
(RE) R ETA RS 60% K 40%#Ex - IRTEAE
EREERZER(EE)GRETAR KRR MERIE
BER(EE)BEREARRAYAEBRTARKNREAEE
EEERLER2AES - Bt REEHFKBAEKRN -
ERTARBMNEEEEEBERZE S MRATEEE
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements. Some of those transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions and have complied
with the relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has the following
connected transactions:

(1) On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into the
shareholder loan framework agreement (“Framework Agreement”)
with Landsea Group, pursuant to which Landsea Group agreed
to grant shareholder loan(s) in an aggregate principal amount of
not exceeding RMB4,000,000,000 (or Hong Kong Dollar
equivalent) to the Company and/or its subsidiaries during the
two-year period up to 31 December 2017 at an interest rate of
5.5% per annum and the amounts are interest free since 1
January 2018. As at 31 December 2020, Landsea International,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Landsea Group has granted an
aggregate of RMB92,470,000 to the Company which remains
outstanding.

(2)  Apart from the grant of shareholder’s loan under the Framework
Agreement above, Landsea Group has also granted to Landsea
Holdings Corporation, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, certain loans in an aggregate principal amount of
RMB1,665,000,000 with interest rate ranging from 5.294% to
6.6345% per annum repayable in 5 years from the respective
date of drawdown. As at 31 December 2020, an aggregate of
RMB917,577,000 remain outstanding.
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On 21 December 2018, &M EAHEEHGRE AR (Suzhou
Langkun Property Limited”) (“Suzhou Langkun”) entered into the
supplemental agreements to the (i) two loan agreements (the
“Loan Agreements |”) with ;L& EZE R EFR AR (Jiangsu
Guotai Huading Investment Company Limited*) (“Jiangsu
Huading”), being a 22.5% owner of Suzhou Langkun, in relation
to the provision of a loan of RMB285,750,000 to Jiangsu
Huading; and (i) two loan agreements (the “Loan Agreements II”)
with JT# B R RSB EER AR AR (Jiangsu Guotai Zijin
Technology Development Company Limited®) (“diangsu Zijin”),
being a 22.5% owner of Suzhou Langkun, in relation to the
provision of loan of RMB285,750,000 to Jiangsu Zijin. Pursuant
to the supplemental agreements, Suzhou Langkun agreed to
adjust certain terms under the Loan Agreements | and Loan
Agreements Il. Including the loan principal of the loans under
each of Loan Agreements | and Loan Agreements Il was adjusted
to up to RMB327,270,000 for a term extended from 31
December 2018 to 31 December 2021 at an interest rate of
4.35% per annum.

Suzhou Langkun is owned as to 55% by the Group, and 22.5%
each by Jiangsu Huading and Jiangsu Zijin, therefore, Jiangsu
Huading and Jiangsu Zijin are regarded as connected persons at
subsidiary level. The transactions contemplated under the (i) Loan
Agreements | and the Loan Agreements II, and (i) the respective
supplemental agreement to the Loan Agreements | and the Loan
Agreements Il constituted connected transactions for the
Company at subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and are subject to notification and announcement
requirements but exempt from the circular, independent financial
advice and shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

On 28 December 2020, the Company and Landsea Group
entered into the deed of termination (“Deed of Termination”),
pursuant to which the parties have agreed to terminate the
Properties Services and Properties Consulting Agreement (as
defined below) with effect from 31 December 2020.

RZZE—NE+-A=+—0H  HMNHhEE
ER AT ([#RINBAR]) FELA TN S IBE] Zf7
& (B IHERESRERR AR ([IEFE
S ERERN B EER 22.5% ) FTR] LA
7 1) VL &k 25 R 1R B A R # 285,750,000 7T
WmGHBER (B BED K 8T &
ERLSRRERERAR(NIFES ] &
R ERIN BRI HE G 22.5% %) FTE] S A BA AT
B RHE AR 285,750,000 7T A /D
Eximz (BB - BREMTHE @ &
NEAHREARER HH I REXBRINET
B BIERERBGZ I RERBZIETER
MERASHEIRNAEARa AR
327,270,0007t * FHBH =T —-—NF+=A
=t+t—BiERE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H "
FFIE A 4.35% o

R M BA 3 P AN ER B R B 55% B ak - T T BRI
SATERRE D RIHAE 22.5% #a - Bt
THERMIHXSRESHBE LR EENE
BAL - RIBEETRAF 14AE - () BRI
EERBEI M) ERBE BERBENF
BT HER MRETHR SEEARREN
BAREENBERSWAETBRMAR NG
MTE - MEREARRIE LR RIS 14A.101 fRE
RN ~ BN B SRR R MR LR IRE o

K-T-EE+-A=F)\A  AAFAEER
SET TR R (RIERE]) - AR L2
RIS LR (TRRTX)  A=8=
BETZAST—BELR -
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has the following
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

1. Nanjing Xinbeisheng Investment Management Limited (3528
RIS EEIRGRR A F) (“Xinbeisheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as landlord and Nanjing Landsea Apartment
Commercial Management Limited (A RS BRI X EBEARA
A)) (“Nanjing Landsea Apartment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shanghai Landsea Apartment Industry Development Co., Ltd.*
(HERFEE £ E AR A F), as tenant, entered into the rental
agreement (the “Rental Agreement”) on 1 February 2017,
pursuant to which Xinbeisheng agreed to lease the property at
the 11 buildings at Chang Ying Cun, Mai Gao Qiao to Nanjing
Landsea Apartment for a term of 15 years from 1 February 2017
to 30 January 2031.

Nanjing Landsea Apartment is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Landsea Group, and therefore a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Landsea Group.

The monthly rental paid/payable to Nanjing Landsea Apartment
under the Tenancy Agreement was RMB223,999.99 (tax
inclusive).

2. On 25 December 2017, the Company entered into the framework
agreement in relation to the development and constructed
management services and sales agency services (“Project
Management Services Agreement”) with Landsea Group,
pursuant to which the Group shall provide development and
construction management services and sales agency services
(“Project Management Services”) to Landsea Group and its
subsidiaries for term of three years commencing from 25
December 2017 to 24 December 2020 at an annual cap of
RMB120 million per year.

The actual transaction amount under the Project Management

Services Agreement for period from 1 January 2020 to 24
December 2020 is approximately RMB59,219,000.
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On 18 February 2018, the Company entered into the green
architecture technological services agreement with Shanghai
Landleaf Architecture Technology Co., Ltd.* (/GRA4RIESER
I3 A BR A 7)) (“Landleaf Architecture Technology”) (“Architecture
Technological Services Agreement”), pursuant to which Landleaf
Architecture Technology shall provide green architecture
technological services (“Green Architecture Technological
Services”) to the Group for a term of three years commencing
from 13 February 2018 to 31 December 2020 at the respective
annual caps of RMB70 million, RMB50 million and RMB50
million.

The actual transaction amount under the Architecture
Technological Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2020 is approximately RMB13,938,000.

On 13 February 2018, the Company also entered into the
decoration services agreement with Landsea Group (“Decoration
Services Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group will entrust
Landsea Group or its subsidiaries for the provision of decoration
services during the development and construction process or
operation process of the properties development projects of the
Group for a term of three years commencing from 13 February
2018 to 31 December 2020 at the respective annual caps of
RMB20 million, RMB20 million and RMB20 million.

The actual transaction amount under the Decoration Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 is
approximately RMB187,000.

On 2 November 2018, the Company entered into the services
framework agreement (“Services Framework Agreement”) with
Landsea Group, pursuant to which the Group shall entrust
Landsea Group or its subsidiaries to provide venues, facilities and
equipment rental for application testing of green residential
products and promotional display services for a term of three
years from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021 at the
respective annual caps of RMB12 million, RMB14 million and
RMB16 million.

The actual transaction amount under the Services Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 is
approximately RMB13,643,000.
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On 10 May 2019, the Company and Shanghai Landsea Planning
and Architectural Design Co., Ltd.* (E/8BE:F R IR ERAAR
A \)) (“Shanghai Landsea P&A”) entered into the framework
construction design service agreement (“Construction Design
Service Agreement”) to govern the provision of construction
design services by Shanghai Landsea P&A to the Group for a
fixed term from 26 June 2019 to 31 December 2021.

Shanghai Landsea P&A is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Landsea
Group, and therefore a connected person of the Company by
virtue of being an associate of Landsea Group.

The annual caps for the construction design services and
construction design consulting services under the Construction
Design Service Agreement for the period from 26 June 2019 to
31 December 2021 are RMB9 million, RMB9 million and RMB3.5
million respectively.

The actual transaction amount under the Construction Design
Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 is
approximately RMB2,949,000.

On 10 May 2019, the Company and Landsea Group entered into
the framework property management service agreement (the
“Property Management Service Agreement”) pursuant to which
Landsea Group and its subsidiaries shall provide property
management services and property consulting services to the
Group for a fixed term from 26 June 2019 to 31 December 2021.

The annual caps for the property services and property
consulting services under the Property Management Service
Agreement for the period from 26 June 2019 to 31 December
2021 are RMB50 million per year respectively.

The actual transaction amount under the Property Management
Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 is
approximately RMB49,917,000.
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The Property Management Service Agreement was terminated
with effect from 31 December 2020 pursuant to the deed of
termination entered into between the Company and Landsea
Group on 28 December 2020, and was replaced by the New
Property Services and Property Consulting Agreement (as
defined below).

On 28 December 2020, the Company (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) and Nanjing Landsea Property Management
Limited* (A REAFYWEEEGR A A

Property Management”) (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)

) (“Nanjing Landsea

entered into the framework agreement (“New Properties Services
and Properties Consulting Agreement”), pursuant to which
Landsea Group and its subsidiaries shall provide property
management services and property consulting services to the
Group for a fixed term of three years commencing from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2023 at the respective annual
caps of RMB75 million, RMB78 million and RMB82 million.

The services include (i) property management services, including
but not limited to, preliminary property management services for
property projects prior to their delivery to the property owners,
management services for property units and car parking lots
which remain unsold and house repairing services; (i) sales
agency services for residential properties, commercial properties
and car parking lots of property projects which remain unsold;
and (iii) pre-delivery property consultancy and management
services, including but not limited to, preliminary planning and
design consultancy services and display units managements
services.

Nanjing Landsea Property Management is indirectly held as to
49.5% by Mr. Tian, and therefore is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tian.
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10.

On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the project
management services agreement with Landsea Group (“2020
Project Management Services Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Group shall continue to provide Project Management
Services to Landsea Group and its subsidiaries for a term of
three years commencing from 28 December 2020 to 27
December 2023. The respective annual caps are as follows:

RZZEZTF+=A=+N\RH ' NARHEAF
SEEFIVIERE BEESHZ( ZE=FF18H
EERSHE] - Bt AEBBEERAR
SEREMBARREEEEERE B
—EF+ A+ N\BE-E_=ZF+=A
Z++tR - RHI=F c BEAFELRIT :

Period Annual cap
HAR FE LR

RMB’ million

ARBEETT
28 December 2020 to 27 December 2021 —ZE-_ZT&E+_-_A-+N\AZE-_E-_—F+-_A-++H 85
28 December 2021 to 27 December 2022 —ZT-—F+ - A"+ \HE-T-—F+-A-++H 85
28 December 2022 to 27 December 2023 —E-—&F+ - A+ \HE-T-=F+-HF-++H 85

On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the green
architecture technological services agreement (“2020 Green
Architecture Technological Services Agreement”) with Landleaf
Architecture Technology, pursuant to which Landleaf Architecture
Technology shall continue to provide Green Architecture
Technological Services to the Group for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 at the
respective annual caps of RMB25 million, RMB28 million and
RMB31 million.

* English translations are for identification purpose only
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Connected Parties Relationship

M

(i)

(i)

Landsea Group through its direct and indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries, is interested in 2,365,876,081 Shares, representing
approximately 50.1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Mr.
Tian, the Chairman and an executive Director of the Company, is
beneficially interested in 50% of Landsea Group, Landsea Group
is regarded as an associate of Mr. Tian. Landsea Group, being
the controlling Shareholder of the Company and an associate of
Mr. Tian, is regarded as a connected person of the Company;

Nanjing Landsea Property Management is indirectly held as to
49.5% by Mr. Tian. Therefore, Nanjing Landsea Property
Management is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being an associate of Mr. Tian; and

As Mr. Tian also controls approximately 65.67% of Landleaf
Architecture Technology, Landleaf Architecture Technology is
regarded as an associate of Mr. Tian. Landleaf Architecture
Technology, being an associate of Mr. Tian, is also regarded as a
connected person of the Company.

Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under each of (1) the

Rental Agreement, (2) the Project Management Services Agreement, (3)

the Architecture Technological Services Agreement, (4) the Decoration

Services Agreement, (5) the Services Framework Agreement, (6) the

Construction Design Service Agreement, (7) the Property Management

Service Agreement, (8) the New Properties Services and Properties

Consulting Agreement, (9) 2020 Project Management Services

Agreement, and (10) 2020 Green Architecture Technological Services

Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the

Company and are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual

review requirements but exempt from independent shareholders’

approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BEA LR

) PFEEEAEHERMEEZAMBAR ®

2,365,876,081 D R #E B = - HHE m
BTN EHEA501% « A%kLE - BARRAT]

FRATEE BERBEEAFEES0%
It BAFRERRESARECHEA - FFE
BAARRRERBRREBEEZBEA - 47
RARARZBEANL

(i) FIRBAFFYEEIE R EREFE 49.5%
= o At ARERFYEEIE SHABLE
ZHEA  WBAATZHEEAL &

(i) EPAHE LA TRIEHIRAAR R LRI F4)65.67%
Hit - AR EER R ABELEEZHEA
PR RERIIEABEEZHEA - THEEA
RARZAEANL -

At - (WHEEHZ - (BB EERF e - Q) 4k
B R 5 1% ~ (4 )’L‘*ﬁfﬁ’“‘*ﬂkﬁﬁﬂ‘%ﬁ;’ﬁ% * (B) BRTSHEZR
Wk - O)VRERTRBHZE  WEEERS B

g (8)%ﬁ¢%%ﬁ&?r%&¢%%uﬁu@ﬁ% O ZFETF
BB EERG R (10 = F S FEREM RS

HEETRETHARSERARRZHERER
5 BETIHHBFEMAENRE  AEREE
EHRT  BERCETIHE R RAERTE ©

BRSEHMERRDAR/ T _THFFR @



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EER%E

The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to report the
continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unmodified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this
report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and based on
the unmodified letter issued by the auditor of the Company noted
above, confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary course and usual course of business of the
Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board would like to confirm that the connected transactions and
the continuing connected transactions carried out during the year
ended 31 December 2020 and as disclosed in this report have
complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchased from the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 14.6% of the Group’s total purchases
and purchased from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 4.2% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the Group’s revenue from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 2.0% of the Group’s total revenue and
revenue from the largest customer included therein accounted for
approximately 0.5% of the Group’s total revenue.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company, their
associates, nor any shareholder which to the best knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2020, other than those purchased by the trustee for the
Share Award Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when the Report of the Board of
the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of
Hong Kong).
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SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. Intending
holders and investors of the Company’s shares are recommended to
consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to the
taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing,
holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It is emphasized that none of
the Company or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility
for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal of or
dealing in such shares.

AUDITOR
The Company has not changed its external auditor during the past
three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.

Huang Zheng
Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BE RS

To the Shareholders of Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. BEFEEHESRATRRE
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREZEFMLE T ZBRAA])
OPINION =R

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED EPMEETHARR

The consolidated financial statements of Landsea Green Properties BRiEsrE#ESR AT (LA NEE (&2 T ) kA
Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set outon BAT (A T&HE[ESEE ) JHNRE129E 3258

pages 129 to 325, which comprise: ARG BB RE - B
e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020; e N E_TEFEA+-_A=+—HNELEEERE
=

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the o  EHEZHIIFEHNEE 2 EWZEE

year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the yearthen o & ZEZHIFEERGAEREE) %
ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then o EHEZHIIFEMNGAES TSR &
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include e REMBHRENTE  BEEESTBEEHME -
a summary of significant accounting policies.

OUR OPINION EMPNER

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair  H IR A @ ZEESMERERCBRESTSSHA
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 @HEGHNC(EBVEHRESER)EE M 5 it <R
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance andits 7 EBE&£ER-_ZE-_TF+-A=+—HH4SE
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with RN EEEZZHILFENGESMERIELES
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the E4& % & @ W BREB(A TN OB EEEL
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and  A#i o

have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M AR

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate;
° Revenue recognition for development management service;

° Impairment assessment of trade receivables, contract assets and
other receivables.
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Key Audit Matter
ARESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ES AR ERRETSEIE

Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate
KBAE - EELERBENGNTE

Refer to note 4(a) (Classification of subsidiary, joint venture
and associate), note 16 (Interests in associates), note 17
(Interests in joint ventures) and note 37 (Disposal of
subsidiaries) of the consolidated financial statements.
F2HEEUBRENT4) (MBAR &t EREER
A S ) - MiEE1e (REERRNER) ~ W17 (Ra
EhENER) KME37 (HEMBAR) -

The Group invests in certain properties projects with various
other parties under various arrangements. According to the
terms of these arrangements, the Group classifies the
investments into subsidiary, joint venture or associate. As of
31 December 2020, the Group had investments in associates
and joint ventures with carrying amount of RMB2,141.083
million and RMB2,405.75 million , respectively. At the same
time, the Group has non-wholly owned subsidiaries with total
non-controlling interest of RMB511.65 million.
ERERBRETHETREMESRESE TYWERIER - R
BRETHNGR - BEXEEZERESBRMEAR -
AECESBENR - NZT_FF+=-A=+—H =&
SEBEEBENRILRAERERE  RHENNIRARE
2,141.03BBTRARK2,405. 7588 - AR+ B&EE
BEIEZEMBAR - HIEEHIMERERAARKS11.65
BET °

We understood, evaluated and tested the relevant control over
the Group’s classification of subsidiary, joint venture and
associate.

BMTH FhEEkgER SSEENELR a2 bEREE
NEIN D EATAAERERIEE -

For material investments, individually or in aggregate, we
challenged management’s assessment and performed the
following audit procedures:
HERKRE (ERHAFT)ME
EITA TR

BPEREEENGE X

We examined the legal documents associated with the
investments that the Group made during the period, to
determine the key terms, including rights of the investors,
terms of shareholders’ agreements, dispute resolution
provisions, termination provisions, governance structures and
profit-sharing arrangements, and assessed these key terms
against the classification criteria.

BHMEEE SSREHNMEREBHMNEEXXY - ETE
BRIGER - BREREENEN  RRBEHIRK - FHAER
iR~ BRAEIR - EVRRBRABE KR - REERD R
ERFF A ZBERAK -

When there have been subsequent changes to the
shareholders’ existing agreements or governance structures,
we assessed whether these changes would impact the initial
assessments by management.
ERRIRE RN E REBLBEREZHE - HAFEZE
SYHRETETERENLNM -

BRSEHMERRDAR/ T _THFFR @
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B M AR

Key Audit Matter
ARESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ET AR ERRETEE

The classification and change of classification of the Group’s
investment involves significant judgement in determining the
levels of control and influence based on a number of criteria.
The classification has significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and
consolidated balance sheet due to their effect on consolidation
scope.
BEREREARZIREREENEEROEGIE R E
TRBRRDEEHSREZHE - PRFAEEGAHENT
BEA A EEENGEIEKERRGEEERER
BERTE -

We, therefore, consider classification of subsidiary, joint
venture and associate a Key Audit Matter.

Bt - BARRWELR - 6 CERBE NGNS HENR
REAEE -
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We sought for written confirmations or communicated verbally
with the contract parties, on a sample basis, to confirm the
contract clauses and completeness of contracts and
agreements we obtained and whether there are any
subsequent supplementary contracts and agreements or
amendments.

BfREREKERBERSETA T ORER - SRR
MENEHRBENGERLRTEY  UARRTEREMRA
H) R B AEET ©

We assessed whether the considerations paid for acquisitions
or received from disposals of investments represent the fair
market value in an arm’s length transactions when there was
acquisition or disposal.

BT A TRRBRER I NI EREFRRNRERS
REVBBIRENRTFRZGPHRTFHE -

We evaluated the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in
respect of the classification and carrying values of subsidiary,
joint venture, and associate against the accounting standards
adopted by the Group.

BMET EXEEHNELR a2 CERBEQTNS
ERHEREENEBREEAR EEEEMANSTEINZES
R e

7

Based on our audit procedures performed, we consider the
judgements made by management regarding the classification
of subsidiary, joint venture and associate were supported by
evidences we obtained.

ERBMBTNETET  RMRABTEEHMEAR &
EhE NI E R TN D EHHE SR R PIPAES BRER S



Key Audit Matter
ARESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ES AR ERRETSEIE

Revenue recognition for development management services recognized over period

FRB 0 7 53 Y ) 3% 2 AR 5 A 73R

Refer to note 2.28(a)(ii) (Accounting policy for revenue
recognition of management services), note 4(h) (Critical
accounting estimates and judgements for revenue recognition
for management services recognized over period) and note 5
(Revenue) of the consolidated financial statements.
BRHRE VIEREM E2.28(a)i) (BRRERKABRNE
STER) - MiEEah) (R—BRERERHNE RRES KA MR
B ST hET B ) KFIEESs (A) -

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
revenue from development management services recognized
over period amounted to RMB256.95 million (note 5),
representing approximately 2.9% of the Group’s total revenue.
BHE_Z-_ZEF+-_A=1+—HILFE - EBESERHAE
REFEERRBBARARK256.958 &7 (Fizs5) 48
B ESRERKAL2.9% -

The Group provides development management services for
fixed amount or variable amount and recognizes revenue from
services over period of time. High degree of estimation
uncertainty and use of subjective assumptions are involved in
the determination of progress towards complete satisfaction
of performance, the cost budget and the projected sales.
EEERETHIHBREFEEERG - UNHRER
RIS - BET LROEEE S RS E G T T ERE
REXERR - BEKATEE RATHER -

We, therefore, consider the revenue recognition for
development management services recognized over period a
Key Audit Matter.

FHit - IR AN — R AR 5% T RS WA RER S
RAREAEIE -

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of revenue recognition for
development management services and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as subjectivity.

BATREIRRER R E TR A TR A A BB &Y
HEFF > WEBE R T EEENIZE REMES RERE
E(PIaEEM) KT - FHEHIREBRERBA A E B R -

We evaluated and tested the key controls over revenue
recognition for development management services recognized
over period.

BT ER - AT RARER P HA A SR 0 A B B TR AR TG W A RERR
PTAEEEGIEE -

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
progress towards complete satisfaction of performance, the
cost budget and the projected sales for development
management services to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process.

B E—HRRAZEEEREN T IRAOERESER - KA
RENMETHER - AL ER B AR -

We assessed if the estimate on progress towards complete
satisfaction of performance obligation based on the Group’s
inputs is reasonable and consistently applied. In respect of
cost incurred and cost to completion, we tested actual costs
incurred to supporting evidence, performed site visit to project,
and agreed cost to completion to approved budgets on a
sample basis.
HPFABRBEREENBAEHAENERN T IRAOBED
ERMATEEABEAERER - BREEEKRN SR TRA
BHAREEREENAEFILERE  ETREEHESR
I BEM AR A IR T RN = 75 BRI HE TR EARAT ©
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Key Audit Matter
ARESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ET AR ERRETEE

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020

We assessed the reasonableness and sensitivity of
management estimation for cost to completion with
comparison to similar projects of the Group and actual costs
variance to budget by stage.

BM@EALER ESEMEMER  SRERERKAHEEES
ZHREEEEIREER TR Z (EETE & IR REURIE -

For estimation in respect of projected sales, we compared, on
a sample basis, projected sales volume and price to similar
projects and available market data including registered selling
prices for transaction, and also offer prices of properties nearby
with similar characteristics.

FEETHEMET A E - BAIBER L EELIER AT HER &
BERMZSMEEBRFEMEENOYMEREFRAEMS
i -

Based on the procedure performed, we considered the
accounting estimates used in revenue recognition for
development management services recognized over period
were supported by the evidences we obtained.
E%ﬁéiﬂ??ﬂﬁi%f“' BMRRBEMPAIGBRE A IFREAR
REFEE R RSB AERAERAO A -



Key Audit Matter
ARESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ES AR ERRETSEIE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables

FEWERS, - ERIEER A E W AR B BT

Refer to note 3.1(b) (Credit risk), note 5.2 (Assets and liabilities
related to contracts with customers) and note 26 (Trade and
other receivables, prepayments and deposits) of the
consolidated financial statements.
FE2HEE U BRERME10) FERR) - M52 (EER
BREBNEERARE) KM 26 (USRI H A UK -
BRRRES) °

As at 31 December 2020, net book value of the Group’s trade
receivables, contract assets and other receivables was
RMB683.99 million, RMB179.23 million and RMB5,758.32
million respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group recognized impairment provision of RMB100.60 million,
RMB1.88 million and RMB278.70 million respectively against
trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables.
RZZZZEF+_A=+—HB ' BEEBEEWERER GHNEE
K H AhEURIENREFES B A/ARKEGS3.9BET - A
RUEA7T923EBB T RARKES758.32BB L - BHEZT_F
FTZA=T—HILFE - BEXKEIRRERER  a0&
ERAEMERIERRBREREBEARK10060BET - AR
K188 BEBTRARK2787T0EETT °

To measure the expected credit loss, trade receivables,
contract assets and other receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and ageing profiles.
The expected credit loss is estimated based on historical data,
including the past settlement profile and incurred credit loss in
observed period, with adjustment to reflect forward looking
factors.

RETETRBEREL  BUERN - aNEEREMEKKIER
BREARNEERREBRERRELETOE BRRERE
KBRBELBIRML  ERBEEEBARBEHRNEEN
EEEE  WHETARURMATIEEEE -

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of impairment assessment of
trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

BB EIREHEUERN - &KV EE K E M EUGIERERT
BB KA BEE - WERE R I HEE MRE R E
B AR EERRKTE - fIanErieE - T8I EPREH
XEERREIMFNTE - s ERERR AN E S A o

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
impairment provision against trade receivables, contract assets
and other receivables to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process.
BFEHE B REE R KR - @B E KRR
ERENTEER - AT A ERE AT BENMR -

We evaluated and tested the key controls over the Group’s
assessment of impairment provision for trade receivables,
contract assets and other receivables.

BFEHEROBE EEEHRKIRR - @B E RHMEKK
BRRERFERT Y E %) -
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Key Audit Matter
ARESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ET AR ERRETEE

For trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables
with objective evidence of impairment, the Group assessed the
credit risk and the expected credit loss by considering the
nature of transactions, relationship with the debtors and their
financial position, etc. on an individual by individual basis.

SEAAFERERBENRBUER AHNEEMEMEKRIR

ms X BEXEEBEER %EE‘%F%AM@%&%M%
ARERE - @RFHEERRRLAREREL -

We consider impairment assessment of trade receivables,
contract assets and other receivables a key audit matter
because the estimation of the impairment provision is subject to
high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in
relation to the impairment assessment of trade receivables,
contract assets and other receivables is considered significant
due to the complexity of the models, subjectivity of significant
assumptions used, and significant judgements involved in
selecting data.

HARREKER  GRNEEREMBKRFIBENRET LR
BRETEE  RERRERGBNEIFESETETEM - A
MBI EERE - IERAERRRH EH I SE EHIERR
BRERAE - BPIRREREER - S0EEKH MR
BREFEFEEANER AR -
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B {THIRLE -

We agreed historical data, including past settlement profile,
incurred credit loss, on a sample basis, to the accounting and
operating records of the Group.
BPRmEEE  RAERLHIE  BEBERE
ERBLE BEEENGTRCERH B -

St
A
H

nBEE

We assessed the economic indicators selected by
management in determining forward looking factors based on
our understanding of the relevant industry and with reference
to external data source.
HIPMRIBEERATT RN - W2 ZIMNBEIERIR
BT RE A ZREENKERER

FEER

We assessed the key assumptions and data used in
management’s estimate of expected credit loss by agreeing
information to relevant supporting documents and comparing
with relevant data of companies in the same industry for
individually assessed trade receivables, contract assets and
other receivables, on a sample basis.
BRI B A RER BBREERNE 3 AR —1TERAN
MRESUR R E R R AR YRR - S OB E R EMREURIEE
&MEEFHJEW#%E%W%%IxF“
iz -



Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ARESE RPN ES AR ERRETSEIE

We tested, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of trade
receivables, contract assets and other receivables.
TPIHEOR F IR R - BB E KA E W IER RIS
;E/ o

We tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of
impairment provision of trade receivables, contract assets and
other receivables.
BIFPAIHEUERR - &HEE MR IR RERETED
HEMTAEREME o

Based on the procedures performed, we consider the estimate
used in the assessment of impairment provision of trade
receivables, contract assets and other receivables were
supported by the evidences we obtained.

RIBFTHITIER - HRMIRBRTEEUERR - SHNEEREME
WK TR B0 (B B s 5 FR B0 (A S TS BN R PP ERIS /R A8 S % o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
chairman’s statement and management discussion and analysis (but
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the corporate information, major events and accolades of
Landsea Green Properties in 2020, biographical details of directors and
senior management, corporate governance report, directors’ report,
financial summary and particulars of investment properties which are
expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the corporate information, major events and accolades
of Landsea Green Properties in 2020, biographical details of directors
and senior management, corporate governance report, directors’
report, financial summary and particulars of investment properties, if
we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to Audit Committee and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

EERBERZEERGEUBERE
EENERE

BERREFARBREE LGN ASHEMN(ES
RS R REBCR BRG] ) 0B AR E
BEEMRENEAMBEHRE  LHERRRELRS
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BET RS

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we EEZXEZEE € EBNEETD - H I EYLLEE
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of ¥ ARHIE4R SRR BAZAEE - B MK
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are FA#ETEE - KM ERBEMA RS s L=
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our I8 BRIEFEEFR AT ABEEELEIE KT
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure  fkimZE B HER T » RS IBFEHAER MRS T8
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we BEEIFEKNAEZRBBESENARHNZ - 8l
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report  F AT NEERES P /BEBZEE -

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent  H EAE #ZHENREMEIEE A2 AR -
auditor’s report is Esmond S. C. Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers EOERKEET ST
Certified Public Accountants HESLAD
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021 B T —F=A=+H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEZHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT_FTF+-_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended

BZEUTHAHILEEE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE—NF
+=ZA=+—H8 +ZH=1+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR®TF T ARET T
Continuing operations BEREET
Revenue WA 5 8,991,903 8,558,735
Cost of sales and services HE KRS 9 (7,283,701) (6,140,072)
Gross profit EF 1,708,202 2,418,663
Other income H bWz 7 178,806 234,963
Selling expenses HEEH 9 (406,890) (248,922)
Administrative expenses THER 9 (908,853) (634,017)
Net provision for impairment loss on S REERERIEEFE
financial assets 3.1(b) (381,184) (84,625)
Fair value gain on investment properties WEMYERN R EEBEFIF 18 80,790 3,870
Other gains — net H A F1S 558 8 8,774 137,100
Operating profit KT 279,645 1,827,032
Finance income RS UTA 10 27,028 16,208
Finance costs H5E R 10 (480,607) (392,489)
Finance costs — net W5 B R E5E 10 (453,579) (376,281)
Share of net profit of associates FE(GEE = N B E A 16 452,771 651,501
Share of net profit/(loss) of joint ventures FEREEMEFERE, (E8) 17 242,902 (20,414)
Profit before income tax R B 15 84 A0 A 521,739 2,081,838
Income tax expenses FriSii & A 11 (489,148) (597,984)
Profit from continuing operations SIS ZE TR T 32,591 1,483,854
Profit from discontinued operation B EFEBHE - 14,280
Profit for the year FERH 32,591 1,498,134
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEZHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended

BEUTAHLEEE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EIERF —E-NEF
+=A=+—-H +ZHA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
tiEzs ARBT AREETTT
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hit2mEkzs -~ (B8
Items that may be reclassified to AJEEHT D B H A -
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation of — BMEBINRBELNELZHE
foreign operations 129,391 (53,068)
Items that will not be reclassified to T EEN D EE BB
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation — BB IEESIMEERARE
of foreign operations attributable TGINFETSEEERIIE H =58
to non-controlling interests (2,373) -
— Revaluation gain on the property — BTHE - ITHMEEEEE
transferring from property, plant and HEEMENMES LG
equipment to investment properties - 1,383
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEHMZEKSE S (FE) -
for the year, net of tax MBRBEIE 127,018 (51,685)
Total comprehensive income FEXHEKNZHERE
for the year 159,609 1,446,449
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: F£E (&ig) /FIEZEEBR :
— The shareholders of the Company — RNARRE (100,572) 1,171,943
— Non-controlling interests — FEIE I RE S 133,163 326,191
32,591 1,498,134
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to SFERAATRRNEE
the shareholders of the Company (&) /AERkE :
arises from:
— Continuing operations — BEBEREE (100,572) 1,157,663
— Discontinued operation — BRIEEK - 14,280
(100,572) 1,171,943
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For the year ended

BEUTHAHLEE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EIERF —E-NEF
+=ZA=+—H8 +ZH=1+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
tiEzs ARBT T AREETTT
Total comprehensive income FE2AKNZLERERN -
for the year attributable to:
— The shareholders of the Company — AR RIREE 28,819 1,117,345
— Non-controlling interests — FEFEA RS 130,790 329,104
159,609 1,446,449
Total comprehensive income FBEREAARBRRNEE
for the year attributable to the 2EWSEATEEE
shareholders of the Company
arises from:
— Continuing operations — HELEES 28,819 1,103,065
— Discontinued operation — BRIEERS - 14,280
28,819 1,117,345
(Loss)/earnings per share for profit from SFER A A TR RIS ESEER
continuing operations attributable to ~ FEEESER (BE) WEH
the shareholders of the Company (UAEBRARYEIIR)
for the year (expressed in RMB
per share)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share FIREAR (FR),/FE RMBARYT RMBARMT
12 (0.022) 0.249
Diluted (loss)/earings per share TR E(BE)FIE RMBARMT RMBART
12 (0.022) 0.249
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEZHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended

BEUTHHLEE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NEF
+=A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
tiEzs AR¥T R AREETTT
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable to ZBRAQATRRNEESR
the shareholders of the Company (B58) /F8
for the year (expressed in RMB (AR ARESIR)
per share)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share TRER (BB) /FIH RMBAR#¥T RMBARKT
12 (0.022) 0.252
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share shwE (5B FIE RMBAR¥T RMBARKTT
12 (0.022) 0.252

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should = ZL4R & 2 T W & 5% FE B2 BB BT P 7 —OF B 38 -
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERER

As at 31 December 2020 W—_Z-_ZTF+_HF=+—H

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—EIERF —T-hF
t=A=+-8 +=A=t1—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
bz ARET T AREBTFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties REMM=E 18 674,900 852,500
Property, plant and equipment TEE - THEERE 19 251,893 254,242
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 54,253 57,469
Interests in associates AN s o 16 2,141,030 1,858,413
Interests in joint ventures NE B ERER 17 2,405,748 2,329,032
Trade and other receivables, prepayments &I BR 7k K Eo 4t fE R~
and deposits AR ERE 26 974,877 2,178,006
Deferred income tax assets BEFSTHERE 30 567,900 507,984
Goodwill [EES 21 135,097 37,078
7,205,698 8,074,724
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale BEEEWE 22 1,186,481 1,167,926
Properties under development for sale R IFERME 24 5,158,500 6,590,927
Inventories E1F 23 51,565 55,324
Contract assets BREE 5.2 179,226 154,106
Trade and other receivables, JE LT B SR B L Ath PR LUK
prepayments and deposits AR EES 26 5,666,240 5,039,037
Restricted cash XRHRE 27 121,407 255,771
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEEY 27 5,131,678 4,504,393
17,495,097 17,767,484
Total assets EEHRE 24,700,795 25,842,208
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SEEERER

As at 31 December 2020 W-_Z-_ZTF+_H=+—8H

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
= —TNF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=t+—8H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR%TR AREEFTT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Trade and other payables JEIS BR S N B FE AT 3R 28 1,771,862 1,495,431
Advance from lessees A AR B 38(f) 25,794 28,393
Lease liabilities HE&E 20 38,354 38,860
Borrowings e 29 5,696,886 4,616,701
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFMSHARE 30 160,761 169,120
7,693,657 6,348,505
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables JEIS BR S N B FE AT 3R 28 9,518,171 7,191,726
Advance from lessees R A A AR B 38(f) 2,692 2,692
Contract liabilities AREE 5.2 304,896 3,046,969
Lease liabilities HEEaE 20 19,519 23,520
Borrowings & 29 856,706 2,344,439
Current income tax liabilities BIERFR 1S B (& 810,015 780,126
11,511,999 13,389,472
Total liabilities EEHE 19,205,656 19,737,977
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31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—B-®F T NF
t=A=+-8 +=A=t1—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥T ARETTT
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to the FEEBRAATRRNELRFE
shareholders of the Company
Share capital &7 31 38,702 38,702
Reserves =& 33 4,944,784 5,259,996
4,983,486 5,298,698
Non-controlling interests JEFE I MERE 2 34 511,653 805,533
Total equity FERAEEE 5,495,139 6,104,231
Total liabilities and equity BERERETE 24,700,795 25,842,208

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction — _Filt4na & B B (&3 fEEapa s —0F 3038 o
with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 129 to 325 were approved by the  F129F325 B FRE NI EHMAR DN —_E-_—F =1

Board of Directors on 30 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf. —“+HLKEERIE - WHNA TATREEE -
Huang Zheng Jiang Chao

EE B

Director Director

E EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to the shareholders
of the Company

HERNARFRE
Non-
Share controlling Total
Capital ~ Reserves Total interests equity
FESEHIE
[N & s #Et R HrEa
(note 31) (note 33) (note 34)
(MtzE31)  (FM47E33) (M$7E34)

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0O00 RMB'000  RMB'000
M ARBTIT ARBTTE ARETIT ARBTIT AR®TT

At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—h&E—HF—H 38,702 4,352,669 4,391,371 377,340 4,768,711
Profit for the year FERH - 1,171,943 1,171,943 326,191 1,498,134
Other comprehensive loss Hftt 2 HEE
Revaluation gain on the BNEE - THNREE

property transferring from &R E 1 EE VISR

property, plant and M EHFIF

equipment to

investment properties - 1,383 1,383 = 1,383
Exchange differences on HMEBINETSE £ 1

translation of PEH =58

foreign operations - (55,981) (65,981) 2,913 (63,068)

Total comprehensive FEZERREE

income for the year - 1,117,345 1,117,345 329,104 1,446,449
Movement of employee EERMNIETHRE

share trust account 88 - (29,154) (29,154) - (29,154)
Contribution from IHE RS E

non-controlling interests 34 - - - 2,424 2,424
Acquisition of subsidiaries  UYiEM B A A) = = = 104,153 104,153
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMHEB AT - - - (2,693) (2,693)
Transaction with ERJEPR S SR 5

non-controlling interests 34 - - - (4,795) (4,795)
Dividend e 13 - (180,864) (180,864) - (180,864)

Subtotal of transactions EERERIZ H /it
with shareholders - (210,018) (210,018) 99,089  (110,929)

At 31 December 2019 R=-B—-h&E
+=ZHB=+—H 38,702 5,259,996 5,298,698 805,533 6,104,231
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Attributable to the shareholders
of the Company

EERAATRR
Non-
Share controlling Total
Capital Reserves Total interests equity
FEHEEHIME
;&N @ et ER B
(note 31) (note 33) (note 34)
(BF=E31)  (Pft=£33) (B £ 34)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mizr AR®BTR AR%BTR ARB®TR AR®TR AR%®TR
At 1 January 2020 R=-ZE-_ZEF—HF—H 38,702 5,259,996 5,298,698 805,533 6,104,231
(Loss)/profit for the year £ (E5i8) /FI5E - (100,572) (100,572) 133,163 32,591
Other comprehensive Hit2HEEER
income
Exchange differences on BB GINETFEE LR
translation of N =5
foreign operations - 129,391 129,391 (2,373) 127,018
Total comprehensive FEZEKZELE
income for the year - 28,819 28,819 130,790 159,609
Movement of employee BB {EERE
share trust account 32 - (20,284) (20,284) - (20,284)
Employee share 1 8 AR #R B
based compensation 32 - 24,666 24,666 - 24,666
Contribution from ISR E
non-controlling interests 34 - - - 1,360 1,360
Transaction with ERJEP MRS R 5
non-controlling interests 34 - 3,170 3,170 (146,027) (142,857)
Distribution to R FE42 ) 1 e 2 20 Ik
non-controlling interests 34 - - - (176,294) (176,294)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEW B AT 37 - - - (103,709) (103,709)
Dividend g 13 - (351,583) (351,583) - (351,583)
Subtotal of transactions B35 /it
with shareholders -  (344,031) (344,031) (424,670) (768,701)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-FF
+=—B=+—H 38,702 4,944,784 4,983,486 511,653 5,495,139

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

AR A HE an B B R R EELE B B R — DB o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended

BEZUTHHILEEE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
+=A=+—-H +ZHA=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiEE AR®F T ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHNRERE
Cash generated from operations IR TSI S 35 2,706,627 703,496
Taxes paid [N (408,766) (471,875)
Interest paid EfFE (564,954) (906,696)
Net cash generated from/(used in) ARESEE R (B )
operating activities I HER 1,732,907 (675,075)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNHRERE
Interest received B W B 92,834 33,338
Capital injection to joint ventures REEEETE 17 (81,360) (533,825)
Collection of investment in joint ventures WEIRE L ENIKE 17 60,700 383,396
Capital injection to associates REtZENREE 16 (404,800) (10,200)
Collection of investment in associates W Bl PA B & A RIHIR B 16 64,600 401
Dividend from joint ventures REEEPEMRE 17 97,782 58,037
Dividend from associates KA E AT S 368,379 94,719
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, net  H & K& A 7155518 -
of cash and cash equivalents KBRS RIS EEY 37 399,375 (25,062)
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, net Uz BT &8 A 71 5 -
of cash and cash equivalents HBRESRRSZEEY 36 (1,006,215) (91,382)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE T&)E « T N &RE (26,157) (62,292)
Leasehold long-term rental apartment PHAREAEEES T
renovation expenditure - (145,715)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HETHE - TRMEE
and equipment FEES | 990 11
Development expenditure for internally A B0 R B B A B AR
generated software 21 - (1,434)
Funding to related parties Bk (1,509,607) (1,788,961)
Collection of funding to related parties e m R s IR E 38(h) 1,766,907 1,888,147
Advance to non-controlling interests A FEYE | 1 R ZS BTN (19,476) (156,900)
Repayment from advance to Wz [B] 1) S 478 ) 1 2 3 5K
non-controlling interests 70,000 -
Collection of lending to third parties I el M58 = FEH BB 3K 16,984 -
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HEEARBEG AERZN
through profit or loss CREEE - 178,924
Collection of investing related restricted cash Uz [E1 % & 188 X [R #1128 & 20,063 40,000
Payment for investing related restricted cash 7 {~H& & 18R R 2R & 27 - (20,063)
Net cash used in investing activities RETE IR & FE5E (89,001) (158,861)
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For the year ended

HEUTAHLEEFE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECERF —E-NF
+=ZA=+—H8 +ZH=1+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiEE AR%T T ARETT
Cash flows from financing activities RETEHNESRE
Proceeds from borrowings BERETEIE 35 5,448,677 4,538,511
Repayment of borrowings EEER 35 (5,316,391) (4,115,078)
Proceeds from related parties el R 38(h) 190,050 328,608
Repayment to related parties [ BB 77 3= K 38(h) (825,264) (619,745)
Repayment of funding from [ S22 ) M R 2B K
non-controlling interests - (178,000)
Contribution from non-controlling interests FEFE GRS A 34 1,360 2,424
Distribution to non-controlling interests M IEZE S MR 2 R 34 (176,294)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests L B S 42 o5 A 2 (20,657) (4,795)
Dividends to shareholders of the Company B4 AFIJEE E’] A% 2 13 (190,118) (149,007)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRAEH 35 (20,314) (111,210)
Shares bought back for employee share trust Fi{& 8 & H 15 E{Eﬁ EEE) 32 (22,075) (32,017)
Consideration received for restricted share  gEFR Hil 1A% {7 22 Eh =1 21 2 YR (B
award scheme 32 13,805 =
Payment for financing related restricted cash =7 {° gl & 188 1R 28 & (8,901) (14,338)
Collection of financing related restricted cash U [2] g & A8 7 = R HI28 & - 221,964
Net cash used in financing activities BE T BT % F5E (926,122) (132,683)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERBEEEEY
cash equivalents i, (Rd) B 58 717,784 (966,619)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BHREEKBEEY 4,504,393 5,404,956
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes YN SR S B S (90,499) 66,056
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=A=+—HHRER
31 December HEEEY 27 5,131,678 4,504,393
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  _Fili4R &30 & 7 & 5K 8 B BE P Ff 5 —GF 338 -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. was incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The
addresses of its registered office and principal place of business
are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11,
Bermuda and Unit 5103, 51/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK?”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are referred to as the “Group” hereinafter. The Group
is principally engaged in development and sales of properties,
provision of management services and leasing of properties.

The immediate holding company and the ultimate controlling
company of the Company are Greensheid Corporation, a
company established in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and
BB AR A7 (Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (“Landsea
Group”)), a company established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), respectively. The ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company is FHBA (“Mr. Tian”), a director of the
Company.

The financial statements are presented in thousands of Renminbi
(“RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2021.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements are set out below. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the

Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“HKCO?”)
The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs and
disclosure requirements of HKCO.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for certain financial assets and investment properties
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

2 IESHHERE

ARG EVBHRERAEANE R ST HRE
RT3 e BRREHRBIN - LEBRERAIIR
MERFREERER - ARENMHHREEHE
ARRIRENBAF]

21 REEEE
(a) BFEBHBHEEL ([EEHKE
HEER ) RBE B R AR ([EB
2 EEA))
AEENGAWKBRCRRES
Erg e e S )& SN - 2 ok
TR

(b) ELBEFEH
iR e MR B RIBE L AANE S
wmE - EETEREERRENLY
KR AEEFERN -

B & B AW REERN IS
BRBERETHARS A &
BENRERBARES RSB
RARELHE - PR EHE XD
FEERENRE S REEEY
BHRRERERBRR MG
PAMTEE 4 R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

A number of new or revised standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards are
mandatory for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2020:

o Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 —
Definition of material

. Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The Group also elected to early adopt the following
amendments which is mandatory for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020:

° Amendment to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions

The standards, amendments and interpretations
described above are either currently not relevant to
the Group or had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2 FESHBERE®)

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d)

21 wREEEE)
New standards and interpretations not yet (d)
adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards have been

published that are not mandatory for the financial

year beginning 1 January 2020 and relevant to the

Group and have not been early adopted by the

Group.

TRRTERA o

Standards, amendments and interpretations

R - SR RE

[ R ER A 1Y #7 5T 2 R R 22

AT LR  HAELNE
B ERBDREM  BRAR T
TFE— A — BRI B R
R BAEE B R A REYL &

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

LT B 8
Z BB
FEHBEXR

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

BRGETERE 95 - BB HRE
ZRIE 458 - BBV KRS ER
ET - BEUBREENE IR
NEEMBHRELERIFE 1658 (B2

Amendments to HKAS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2
FIREENE — FH

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before intended use
TEE - TMKERE — ERE
P& R R PR 1S 3R
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling

EH o= RS 165 ((82)

Amendments to HKAS 37
a Contract

B GRS 37 5% (&) EEEH — BITAKRIKAE

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

BRI wEER S 35 (&) RS AESR

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

ERUBHREEN T —N\F
E_TE_TENFERE

Improvements to HKFRS 9, 16, 1 and
HKAS 41

BEMBREERF O -
E£165% - B1RRBEBGTER
41 R BUE

1 January 2021

T —F
—H—H

1 January 2022

—E-F
—H—H
1 January 2022

—E-F
—H—H
1 January 2022

—E-F
—A—H
1 January 2022

—E-F
—H—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESBERE %)

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(d) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations

R - BN RE

21 wEEEE)

(d) FERERARFTERIRZRE ()

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after
R B sk
2B
FEHBER

Amendments to HKAS 1

FEGRTERIZE 1 5% (1B

HKFRS 17
BAMBHEENETH

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BB RS ENZ10HR
BB R RIS 285 (1E20)

The above standards, amendments and
interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the current or future reporting

periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

BEIERRB LIRS

Insurance contracts

REEE#

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture

KEEBEERENRIHEGERE
ZENEELEILE

1 January 2023

—E-=F
—H—H

1 January 2023
—E-=F
—H—H

To be determined

BE

B LR - B kB AL
[ B Ak R K 3R & HAR S B AT R
KR ZWEBAZE -



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HERE &)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 SUBSIDIARIES 22 WEAF

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations under common control

The Group incorporates the financial statement items of the
entities or businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined from the
date when the entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognized in
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income
include the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the common control combination.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by those
entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between combining
entities or businesses are eliminated.

MEAREASESEBEA TR
EER(PEARER) EXASERZ
/\uxﬁaaﬁﬁg@f‘—ﬁ%@#ﬁﬁlﬂﬂMEJZ¥'E—
""""" BommEs WER N EBEZE
E“E’Jﬁéﬁ%; 255 O He by - AN @ B4z
HlZERE  WEAREEHREEREAR
SEEAREAE AR WHRIESIRELLE
ERRINEGE AR -

H ST BT E GF
AEBBEERREHEHOEERE
BHUVBERREEMA  BOEEZE
BRAEKEAZEHGEGHEBRED
aff e

EHERBIEHTNEEFERITH TN
RRKREEETAH - EEHNDRER
BRDMBERT - KRES A 6L &
Eﬁ?éﬁ%él’ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁEI’JEIE%&
ANEE RERIARBNIFFELZ
EmBHAANE D R TR

FErHPaREREAHERAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Business combinations not under common control
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations not under common control by
the Group (refer to note 2.7).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
balance sheet, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

ASSOCIATES

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see
note 2.5 below), after initially being recognized at cost.

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Joint arrangements are classified as either joint ventures or
joint operations depending on the contracted rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see note 2.5 below), after initially being recognized
at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

EQUITY ACCOUNTING

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognize the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognized as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group’s share of net loss in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealized losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is
tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.14.

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity shareholders of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling interests and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or
received is recognized in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company.

2 FEEHEERBE®R

2.5

2.6

EEETHE

REBER G GE REVBRKARE
% BERETHABRAERANEEEIGZ
BREHSBEaR EWKERERD W&
AEBERGEZREHFNE M2 E RS
MEMPEKEED - O W B =
REAREELENREER BHIRIRE
BAREE °

BEAKEMEAES ARKENFER
HERHBAERZERNER (B3E
AE M EERRARE)  AKETE
ERE—TEER  RIFERAKREGBER
EEBERIELRABBHISN

AEEBEHEBERTREELERIH
AERMSEELEE - ARNEERZ
SEEBNEDRAR BRIFEARBEBRX
SHBEREERTRE  TRIRER
BIETEHE IS ARNREHR
VEETHRERE RN B ERIELEE - R
BLRNERB PR ER AN BR — 2K -

N AR ENREERENE2.14
PR BRI TRV BRI -

BEREESNED

RE BRI R ET I ERK
E 1R IR ) 32 5 /% BN SR [ A i S BRUE
TR - BARERNEHEHNE
HIE R R S IE R M S AR EE
TR URBRIRER M E QA E R
o FFEHE R FBAREED MK
BRI R E 2 HrZEBR AR RBR
FEIG s RSB W o

RS ERRAR/ S5 F% @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2 FESHBERE®)

POLICIES (continued)

2.6 CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS 26 BHEREERNES(#E)
(Continued)
When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account BN E A Sk R R [E] e ) A
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control & K%%ﬁﬁﬂ' B EZEE AR LARE
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is FAE REEMREBESEERRF
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying HEREEEHETNFTEAALEBE - ZA
amount recognized in profit or loss. This fair value becomes REEFRERBEN NG A& EXE
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently BEEMNREBESHARMS K AL
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint BRMEE o AN LRI EMMEE N ZETE
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts REZEREEN TR S ZBIRBINAE
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in BEEERLEF@EEEXEBEMNTAA
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had BRo WRERENTEMEEKERER
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may MESRBEERELENBRE LR
mean that amounts previously recognized in other SR B AR RN EREE R —
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or gD o
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is MRELEDENBE N A E’]Tﬁ‘gﬁ$§$ =
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, WAOEMRBHERZESENERTE
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously BEZLRIEREME ﬁﬂ&mﬁ\]ﬁ&? EOps7
recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified LhELSEeRNBEE B R NEHDLE
to profit or loss where appropriate. Y= Fal

2.7 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 2.7 (K50

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former shareholders of the
acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEFEE®)

POLICIES (continued)
2.7 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 2.7 ¥BE6&E)
e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a o HARELHELENENEERE

contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

QOver the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognized directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognized in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognized in profit or loss.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported to
the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major business and service lines.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”), which is Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), Renminbi (RMB) and US dollars
(US$) respectively. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognized in profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within “other gains/(losses) — net”.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing date of
that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions), and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.10 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(Continued)
(c) Group companies (Continued)
o all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
shareholders of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

2.11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
historical cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HEREs&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 211 AEE  IRERESE)

(Continued)
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values, over the shorter
of their estimated useful lives or, in case of leasehold
improvements, as follows:
Leasehold improvements QOver the shorter of their
estimated useful lives
or lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and 3-10 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Buildings 20 years

The assets’ residual value and useful life are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.14).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognized as “other gains/(losses) — net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.12INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by
the Group. It also include properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€:BERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.12INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 212 REME (&)

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in fair value gains or losses on
investment properties.

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item as at the date of transfer is treated in
the same way as a revaluation under HKAS 16. Any
resulting increase in the carrying amount of the property is
recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a
previous impairment loss, with any remaining increase
recognized in other comprehensive income and increased
directly to equity in revaluation surplus within equity. Any
resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the property is
initially charged in other comprehensive income against any
previously recognized revaluation surplus, with any
remaining decrease charged to profit or loss.

2.13INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.7.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwiill relating to the entity sold.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating
segments (note 6).

Software

Costs associated with maintaining software programs
are recognized as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the
design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group are recognized as
intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

° it is technically feasible to complete the
software so that it will be available for use

° management intends to complete the software
and use or sell it

o there is an ability to use or sell the software

° it can be demonstrated how the software will
generate probable future economic benefits

o adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the software are available, and

o the expenditure attributable to the software
during its development can be reliably
measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Software (Continued)
Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part
of the software include employee costs and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalized development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortized from the point at
which the asset is ready for use.

(c) Research and development
Research expenditure and development expenditure
that do not meet the criteria above are recognized as
an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognized as an expense are not
recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.

(d) Amortisation methods and periods
The Group amortizes intangible assets with a limited
useful life using the straight-line method over 10
years.

Software 10 Years

2.14 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Goodwill is not subject to amortization and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HEREs&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT OR 215 BT ERTEHEY =

HELD FOR SALE

Properties under development and held for sale are stated
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Development
cost of properties comprises cost of leasehold or freehold
land payments, construction costs and borrowing costs
incurred during the construction period. Upon completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held
for sale.

Net realizable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realized, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development and held for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is expected to
complete beyond normal operating cycle.

All land in the Mainland China is stated-owned or
collectively-owned and no individual ownership right exists.
Land use rights are acquired by the Group for development
of properties. Land use rights held for development for sale
are inventories and measured at lower of cost and net
realizable value, of which those within normal operating
cycle are classified as current assets and included in
properties under development or held for sale, while those
out of the normal operating cycle are classified as non-
current assets. Land use rights fall within investment
properties are classified as investment properties (note
2.12).

2.16 INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

3 R ) 3% S R SH B WD SR IR A A ) 7]
B FEMENREEINR MEER
EABERE LHMEENHE L
AR AR - BEKRA KA
RRA - RERTH WESEBEERE
HECDERYE -

A #RFERAHREE TEROER
RERA R BB HE &R R IR TR

58

FRIFFRMMAEEERZERB ELHR
TREEBREER  BRIFEF R
RIEHENEDBRRBEE

REAME A i1 BB A R
B THEEEAMEE - ARESEL
HofE FARECARA B D 5 - R DA
ENTMEREATE WAL
BRENREENE  HPEFLER
HAmTEREIBERRBEE 5
AREFYMERAFIEHEYE  MRIE
FEBEPANMN T ERER D AR
FRPDEE - BRIREEYERN L HE
RESBRREEYE (HF2.12)

216 EfF

EFERA R ERFEMENREE
SRR o RRARAINIE T EEFEE o 7] &
BREREREBEETOMGETERE
TR B SRR R T I E P F b at
PR o

RS ERRAR/ S5 F% @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

(a

(b)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (OCI), or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortized cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortized cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in “other income”
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognized directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other gains/(losses) — net”,
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognized in profit
and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognized in “other
gains/(losses) — net”. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in “other
income” using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in “other gains/(losses) — net”
and impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognized and presented net in profit or loss
within “other gains/(losses) — net” in the period
in which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investments. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognized in profit or loss as “other
income” when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets carried at
FVPL are recognized in “other gains/(losses) — net”
in profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortized cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. Note 3.1 (b) details how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognized from initial recognition of the receivables,
see note 3.1(b) for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.18 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers arising
from sales of properties or providing management services.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
See note 2.17 and note 3.1 (b) for further information about
the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Restricted cash is excluded from cash
and cash equivalents.

2.21 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares
are deducted from share premium to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HEREs&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2.22 FEBRF R Lt FE 1 K

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 12
months after the reporting period (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

2.23 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized
as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortized over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognized in profit or loss as finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.23 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

(Continued)

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are capitalized during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)
Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss,

except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this

case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Current income tax also includes Mainland China land
appreciation tax which is levied on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including land cost,
borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
properties that are measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be recovered
entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognized
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit obligations in the balance
sheet.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by the employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognized until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans which are available to all
relevant employees. These plans are generally funded
through payments to schemes established by
governments or trustee administered funds. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays contributions on mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods.
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans are expensed as incurred and, in most cases,
are not reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognized
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are
expected to be settled within twelve months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances

Employees of the Group in Mainland China are
entitled to participate in various government-
supervised housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurance plan. The Group contributes
on a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject
to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability in respect of
these funds is limited to the contributions payable in
each year. Contributions to the housing funds,
medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(e)

Restricted share award scheme

The Group operates a restricted share award scheme
to recognize the contributions by employees. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of restricted share is recognized as
employee benefit expense.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the value of the
restricted shares granted:

o including any market performance conditions;

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions; and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognized over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of restricted share awards
that are expected to be vested. It recognizes the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
other reserves.

Employee share trust is established, for the purposes
of awarding shares to eligible employees under the
restricted share award scheme.

The employee share trust is administered by an
independent trustee and is funded by the Group’s
cash contributions and recorded as contributions to
employee share trusts, an equity component. The
administrator of the employee share trust buys the
Company’s shares in the open market for award to
employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(e) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)
Upon vesting, the corresponding awards in the
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred
to the employee share trust for shares awarded to
employees.

2.26 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

2.27 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of

° the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9, and

o the amount initially recognized less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognized in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020

2 FESHBERE®)

225 BEE®/A(£)

(e) MRFMEIRGEEE (&)
REBE - LB SEREERE
NHHERBEREERERMNE
5t PATE B R R 28R -

2.26 #B1&

EASEEBESMHAERBIARAME
ERME MEKRETREANEERER
mit - BSREEHAEAENIBIRT
TEEREE BTERARKEEBR
R B

fAEE TRUEE  REEEKET
SREYERRER  BEERBRET
B/h - BMERBEEEPEM—REH
BRmA AT &R - e mERRE -

BRERATRANEREENGEAER
ERFNRXREFE  ZANXRRE
RmsEENKREENEEEETERR
AR o BEE SR B K Mg e BB
ERAFEER

227 YBEREN

MHBERAONBLERFER S SR
BfE- ABEVIRAAEBEMNE  Hi
BATMERNRSEE

o REBBMBHRELENFEIRZA
HERBRARUEBENSHE &

o  MFHERTTR(WNER)REEE
B ig S ERIE155F R R
WALEE -



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEFEE®)

POLICIES (continued)

2.27 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 227 I EREN (&)
(Continued)
The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based MISIEROAABEEETABISTAFR
on the present value of the difference in cash flows EAENR R EEERIBE N TRANKE
between the contractual payments required under the debt ReERe=8RE FE-HFRETT
instrument and the payments that would be required MENE=F8E:T25E -

without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of HEE AT E RS HMENMTIERA
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair mERMTS HEAAALABEEASTEA
values are accounted for as contributions and recognized IR ERBIREKAR—H5H °

as part of the cost of the investment.

2.28 REVENUE RECOGNITION 2.28 AR
(a) The Group develops and sells properties, and (a AEBRZENEEDE TREFP

provides management services to its customers. TR B IR ARTS o AR & B 2= il 4

Revenues are recognized when the control of the B ERPEER - KTALIER

asset is transferred to the customer. Depending on RERARESHREEZERM  BE

the terms of the contract and the laws and rules that 2 R ] 4B — RS R S K — B

apply to the contract, control of the asset may EEER - WAKEERLBRESD

transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of the B NHIMEE - BE S| EEKE

asset is transferred over time if the Group’s — R

performance:

e  provides all of the benefits received and o REEIXFZE G MEFINE
consumed simultaneously by the customer; or HUEIAEFEARBEFIZS ¢ =k

° creates and enhances an asset that the o BIZWRANEFHELHREE
customer controls as the Group performs; or BRTiEHl R EE ¢ 3¢

e do not create an asset with an alternative use s UWEABRHASEEmMSAEHE
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable AT EE  MAKEFA
right to payment for performance completed to SRE|ITEHERN KW E 25
date. SBETKELE D HIFKIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.28 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognized over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognized at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the asset.

() Property development and sales

The Group develops and sells residential
properties in Mainland China and US. Revenue
is recognized at a point in time when the
property is delivered to the customer, the
customer has accepted the property in
accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provision have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue is
recognized over the development period by
reference to the costs incurred up to the end of
reporting period as a percentage of the total
expected costs to complete the contract.
Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of
progress toward completion are revised if
circumstances change. Any resulting increases
or decreases in estimated revenues or costs
are reflected in profit or loss in the period in
which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision become known by the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.28 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(Continued)

(a)

(i)

Management services

The Group provides management services to
its customers at fixed or variable amount. If the
consideration is variable, revenue is only
recognized to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. The Group recognizes revenue from
management services over period of time
where the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group or the Group’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.
Otherwise revenue was recognized at a point in
time. For revenue recognized over period of
time, the Group measures the progress
towards complete satisfaction of performance
obligation on the basis of the actual costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period
as a percentage of total estimated costs for
each contract or on basis of direct
measurements of the value transferred to the
customer. Where the outcome of a contract
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is
recognized only to the extent that the expenses
incurred are eligible to be recovered. Provision
is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they
are anticipated by the Group.

(b) Contract costs — costs of obtaining a contract

The costs of obtaining a contract with a customer are

immaterial and are expensed when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.28 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

2 FESHBERE®)

2.28 WARER (&)

(c) Financing component (c) HEZHS
The Group adjusts the transaction price for the time AP EBEAENERHRBER
value of money where the period between the BEMNZOBHEBE—F AEE
transfer of the promised goods or services to the NS EEEESRFERELHA
customer and payments by the customer exceeds B BHEREEARIZ RH5E
one year considering it provides a potential significant ReFRAAEBRHEZRERELRGA
benefit. The transaction price is adjusted by the BRITETERMR S /EEIR X
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate o
financing transaction between the Group and its
customer at contract inception.

(d) Multiple performance obligations (d) ZEBEBHEME
Where the contracts include multiple performance MENHFE R ZIEBHET 5B
obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to BEERNBYEEIRESERL
each performance obligation based on the stand- B o WAEBESEBETNEEERE
alone selling prices. Where these are not directly 5+ BIZE R TE B A A5 A0 A1) B = {
observable, they are estimated based on expected o
cost plus margin.

(e) Contract assets and contract liabilities (e) BHEBEERESHEME

As agreed in the contracts, the customer pays fixed
or variable amount based on a payment schedule. If
the services or goods rendered by the Group exceed
the payment, a contract asset is recognized. If the
payments exceed the services or goods rendered, a
contract liability is recognized. Any unconditional
rights to consideration are presented separately as
receivables.

2.29 INTEREST INCOME
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in

the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortized cost and

financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective

interest method is recognized in profit or loss as part of

“other income”.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HEREs&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 INTEREST INCOME (Continued) 2.29 R Bz (&)

Interest income is presented as “finance income” where it
is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 10 below.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the expected credit
loss).

2.30 DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at
FVPL and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognized as “other
income” in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this case,
the dividend is recognized in OCI if it relates to an
investment measured at FVOCI. However, the investment
may need to be tested for impairment as a consequence.

2.31 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognized in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs they are intended
to compensate. Government grants that become receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
are recognized as income of the period in which they
become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.32 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

o by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

° the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.33 LEASES
Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HEREs&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.33 LEASES (Continued) 233#E&E &)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.33 LEASES (Continued)

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which
are not included in the lease liability until they take effect.
When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or
rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and
adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property are measured at fair value applying the fair value

model.

Other right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

o any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2:HEREs&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.33 LEASES (Continued) 233#E&E &)

Right-of-use assets which do not meet the definition of
investment property are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less without a purchase option. Low-value
assets mainly comprise IT equipment.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognized as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature.

2.34 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Dividend distribution to the Shareholders of the Company
is recognized as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Shareholders of the
Company.

2.35 EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AND SHARES HELD

FOR SHARE AWARD SCHEME

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs. Respective distributions if and when declared are
treated as equity dividends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.35 EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AND SHARES HELD

FOR SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share
buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the Shareholders of the Company as
treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the shareholders
of the Company.

Shares held by the Company’s Employee Share Trust are
disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from equity
attributable to the shareholders of the Company.

2.36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT

ASSETS

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognized because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognized but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognized as a
provision.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT

2 FESHBERE®)

236 FIARBBRIAAREE (£)

ASSETS (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognized.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. According to
the Group’s risk management policies, the financial risks
shall be assessed continuously by the management taking
into account of the prevailing conditions of the financial
market and other relevant variables to avoid excessive
concentrations of risk. The Group has not used any
derivatives or other instruments for hedging purpose. The
most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed to are described as below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates
and invests in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
US and with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB, HK$ and
US$ respectively. Foreign exchange risk mainly
arises from certain borrowings and other
current liabilities of the Company (with
functional currency of HK$) and other
subsidiaries located in US (with functional
currency of US$) which are denominated in
RMB.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ and US$,
respectively, with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2020 would have been
approximately RMB185,015,000 (2019:
RMB214,235,000) higher/lower, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange differences on
translation of RMB denominated borrowings.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest — bearing
assets and liabilities other than bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank balances and borrowings
at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group’s exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to bank balances which bear floating
interest rates. Management monitors the
interest rate risk and performs sensitivity
analysis on a regular basis.

At 31 December 2020, if interest rates on bank
balances and borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year would
have been approximately RMB14,416,000
(2019:RMB12,356,000) lower/higher. The
sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The credit
risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, contract assets, trade
and other receivables and deposits. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on Group’s cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings. The credit risk on the Group’s
investments in debt instruments measured at FVPL is
limited because the debt instruments are either
bonds issued by policy bank or wealth management
product managed by large multinational bank. In
respect of contract assets, trade and other
receivables and deposits, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all debtors. These evaluations focus
on the debtors’ past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the debtors as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
debtors operate. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a large number of counterparties and customers.
The Group does not obtain collateral from customers
or counterparties in respect of certain receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of
properties for an amount up to 70% of the total
purchase price of the property. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of its mortgage loan during the
guarantee period, the bank holding the guarantee
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
amount under the loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is
able to retain the customer’s deposit and re-sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the bank. In this regard, the directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
Detailed disclosure of these guarantees is made in
note 39.

The Group provides guarantees in respect of related
parties’ borrowings to banks jointly with other
investors of the related parity. Typically, the related
party guaranteed by the Group is a property
development or property holding entity which could
liquidate or sell some or all of its assets to repay the
borrowings immediately. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. Detailed disclosure of these guarantees is
made in note 39.

The following credit risk modelling applies:

The Group has the following types of financial assets
that are subject to expected credit loss model:

° Trade receivables

° Contract assets

o Amount due from related parties
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BERRER &)
3.1 BEAREZ®)
(b) EEEREE)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

° Amount due from non-controlling interests

o Other financial assets carried at amortized cost

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information, which could include:

internal credit rating

o external credit rating

o actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

° actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

° significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower

° significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the borrower.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B¥ERBREEE)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 BBREMEEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1=ERE(E)
(i) Contract assets and trade receivables () BHEERENKRA
The Group applies the simplified approach to REERBEFBYEREE
provide for expected credit losses prescribed Bl oSk e At 7 XBLTE
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime EA{= BB B - %
expected credit loss provision for contract BIR A a B E R EWE
assets and trade receivables. To measure the PEAEEFEHOTEE B
expected credit losses, contract assets and BREE - RETERHER
trade receivables were grouped based on Bk AHNBEENMERERR
shared credit risk characteristics and the days BIELREER RS LA
past due. HIH#S4 -
As at 31 December 2020, the expected credit RZE_EF+_A=1+—
loss provision was determined as follows. The H BHERABXEEDN
expected credit loss provision below also T o LA TNTEH{ZE BB LG
incorporated forward-looking information. B IERTHE &R} o
Third parties
g5
Related ~ Less than More than
—E-EE parties iyear 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years  Hyears Total
31 December 2020 t=A=1-A BEA  OME 1B 0E3E  3B4E 4BSE HBSE Azt
Expected credtossrate ~ BEIERBAR 1%-10%  3%-10% 10%-25% 25%-75% 75%-100% N/ATER NATER
Gross carying amount FHEE
— Contract assets - AEE 89,712 79,365 14,920 - - - - 183,997
— Trade receivables — MR
(note 26) (Kizroe) 204508 92004 302449 41149 38345 - - 858745
304220 171,659 407,369 41,149 38,345 - - 1,042,742
Expected creditloss provision AR BB
— Contract assets - RlEE (897 (2382 (1492 - - - - m
— Trade receivables - RAER (16255 (2769) (91,162 (30,058  (34516) - - (174760)
(17,152 (5,151)  (92,654) (30,058  (34,516) - - (179,531)
Total contract assets and ANBERERER
trade receivables a5 367,068 166,508 314,715 11,001 3,829 - - 863211
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HH¥EKRERE#)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 BBEMEEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1=ERE(E)
()  Contract assets and trade receivables () BHBERENERN(E)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2019, the expected credit RZEBE—NAF+_A=+—
loss provision was determined as follows. The H EBEHAEREXEHRGN
expected credit loss provision below also T o LATNTEHA (= BB KB
incorporated forward-looking information. VB IERTHE &R} o
Third parties
F=h
Related  Lessthan More than
“B-NE parties Tyear 1-2yeas 2-3yeas S-dyeas  4-byears 5 years Total
31 December 2019 tA=1-A BEr  OME 1EF 0E3F SME 4E5F BESE Bt
Expected creditlossrate  EEREAER 1% 8%-10% 10%-20% 20%-50% NATER NATER NATER
(Gross carrying amount FHEE
— Contract assets - ANBE 92,361 64,463 - 174 - - - 156998
— Trade receivables — MR
(note 26) (FizE26) 74008 566,168 46879 56,973 - = - 044048
366,389 630,631 46,879 57,147 - - - 1,101,046
Expected creditloss provision AR B4R
— Contract assefs - AlEE 4 (1,939 = (39) = = - R
— Trade receivables - RAER Q740 (@355 (0376  (28487) - - - (4159
BO64 (5488 0378 (8522 - - - T80
Total contract assetsand ~ A4TAERENER
trade receivables ag 362,725 595,143 37,508 28,625 - - - 1,023,996
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HXRKREREE)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 MBEMEZEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1=ERE(E)
()  Contract assets and trade receivables () BHBEREWRN(E)
(Continued)
The expected credit loss provision for contract BHEBEENEWRERERNR_-Z
assets and trade receivables as at 31 —EF+-_A=+—HNHE
December 2020 reconciles to the opening HA(Z 1B Sk B B HR ) 78 HR
expected credit loss provision are as follows: EREBRBENSERNT
Contract Trade
assets receivables Total
EHEE PEUBR X et

RMB'000 ~ RMB'0O00  RMB'000
AERBTT ARBTT ARETT

Opening expected creditloss R=—ZF—hE—H—H

provision as at HYEHEA

1 January 2019 BAREBE (11,993 (13,513) (25,5006)
Additional expected credit KEINEHA(S R 1B R B

loss provision - (60,645) (60,645)
Recoveries U [a] 9,101 - 9,101

Closing expected creditloss R=Z—hF

provision as at +=HB=+—H

31 December 2019 HMAREHERABRRE (2,892) (74,158) (77,050)
Additional expected credit REHNBEA{E B kS

loss provision (1,879) (100,602) (102,481)

Closing expected credit loss KRZ-ZE-ZF
provision as at +=—A=+—H
31 December 2020 HRFAHAE AR REE (4,771)  (174,760)  (179,531)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Amounts due from related parties, non-
controlling interests and other financial assets
at amortized cost

The Group uses three categories for other
receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the expected credit loss provision is
determined for each of those categories. The
Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
both historical loss rates and forward-looking
macroeconomic data. A summary of the
assumptions underpinning the Group’s
expected credit loss model is as follows:

3 HH¥EKRERE#)
3.1 BEAREZ®)
(b) EEEREE)

(i)

FE A B 75 FOOE © SRR
W25 R B A A 8 2
e @EE

K 45 T 5 B MR =
BRI ARBE SRR
R0 (a3 & M TE 4012
1B o AEEERER
I B R KA
B AR EEER AR -
A ETEMIS A AL T
REEEBE S FER KA
RBEERE - AEEE
BERBAELNBREE
T

Expected
Basis for recognition of expected credit loss
Category Group definition of category credit loss provision rate
L
<Pl REBBRERIFTER BREHEAEARBNESE ERBEXER
Stage one Customers have a low risk of 12 months expected credit losses. 1%-3%
default and a strong Where the expected lifetime of an
capacity to meet contractual asset is less than 12 months,
cash flows expected losses are measured at its
expected lifetime
FE—HEER BARBRRBERENEHNRE 12EAEBEREX - WEEMNTED
MEBRENBRYE S FHO12ME R - BIFEEIEIRR TR
FHGE
Stage two Receivables for which there is  Lifetime expected credit losses 3%-10%

a significant increase in
credit risk since
initial recognition

B V)T HER LA RE B AR AR
FAE MR

R

Receivables for which there is
credit loss since
initial recognition

B HERARSEGEEER
B FE LR

Stage three

E=MmA

Lifetime expected credit losses

FHBMEREX

10%-100%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  Amounts due from related parties, non-
controlling interests and other financial assets

at amortized cost (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided
for expected credit loss provision against other

receivables as follows:

3 HKEKREE®
31 BKEBEZEE)
(b) EEREE(E)
(i) FEYLETHE 77 0 TE - FEEE S 1t
Hm Rz K AT 2 E
LB EE (&)
R—E-—T&E+=-_A=+—
B AN& BB b e W SKET
IRTEEIERBERBEENAT

Estimated Carrying

Expected gross carrying Expected amount (net of

credit amount at credit loss impairment

31 December 2020 Category loss rate default provision provision)

EEE

EEEN BHER (B30

“E-EF+-A=+-H L] AHERBAE HREAE BARE HERE)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETF T ARET T ARET T

Amounts due from related parties Stage one 1% 3,278,978 (32,789) 3,246,189
FEN B 7 FOR FKER

Amounts due from related parties Stage three 10%-80% 1,297,528 (289,057) 1,008,471
FEN B 7 FOR E=TRER

Amounts due from non-controlling Stage one 1% 674,714 (6,747) 667,967

interests

FEMCIEE I 1 R 2 AR FKER

Deposits for purchase of land Stage one 1% 209,011 (2,090) 206,921
BETMES AR

Others Stage one 1%-3% 636,482 (7,710) 628,772
Hit, FKER

6,096,713 (338,393) 5,758,320
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Amounts due from related parties, non-
controlling interests and other financial assets
at amortized cost (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group provided
for expected credit loss provision against other

receivables as follows:

3 HBEKRERE®
31 BMKEBEZE#E)
(b) EEREE(E)
(i) FEYLEFHE 5 3K - FEFEH 1t
HBm Rz AT 2 E
L& E ()
RZFBE-—NE+ZA=+—
B AN& B 5L b E U SKET
IRTEEIERBERBEENAT

Estimated Carrying

Expected  gross carrying Expected  amount (net of

credit amount at credit loss impairment

31 December 2019 Category loss rate default provision provision)

REE

hEHED BHER (B AR

“T-NE+ZA=1—H 85l BEERBAX REEE B RERE)

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETFT ARBFT AREFT

Amounts due from related parties Stage one 1% 4,190,626 (41,907) 4,148,719
FEN B 30R F-HR

Amounts due from related parties Stage three 100% 13,249 (13,249 -
FEN B FOR FE=PEER

Amounts due from non-controlling Stage one 1% 819,568 (8,195) 811,373

interests

FEMCIEE I 1 R 2R IR F-HR

Deposits for purchase of land Stage one 1% 171,831 (1,718) 170,113
BETieRe F-HR

Others Stage one 1%-3% 712,632 (7,127 705,505
Hit, F-HR

5,907,906 (72,196) 5,835,710
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Amounts due from related parties, non-
controlling interests and other financial assets
at amortized cost (Continued)

The expected credit loss provision for amounts
due from related parties, non-controlling
interests and other financial assets at amortized
cost as at 31 December 2020 reconciles to the
opening expected credit loss provision are as

3 HHXEKRERE#)
3.1 BEREZEE)
(b) EEER(E)

(i)

FEWG BE T 50 0R ~ FEPE I
Ha R Bk A 5t By H

2B & E (&)
JE i R RS 05 5ROR ~ R I

B MIEEEKAGTENR
MEREER _T_FTF
TZA=t—B®EHER
BARBEEBVERERRE

follows: KEHEERNT -
Amounts
Amounts  due from  Deposits
due from non- for
related controlling  purchase
parties interests of land Others Total
FEd  PEUREERG B8
BHRATE MERRE LIiMEe Hith st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETT AR®TT ARETRT
Opening expected credit  R=F—fLFE—-F—H
loss provision as at BOEGER
1 January 2019 BABE (23,773) (5,194) (2,427) 7,721) (39,115)
Additional expected credit BIMEHIERIEL
loss provision B (31,383) (3,001) - - (34,384)
Recoveries IsgEl - - 709 594 1,303
Closing expected credit loss R=F—hF
provision at +=A=+-H
31 December 2019 BABHERBARE  (55150) (8,195) (1,718) (7,127) (72,196)
Additional expected credit BINBHEARL
loss provision B (279,196) - (372) (583)  (280,151)
Recoveries Y[ 1,448 - - 1,448
Written off iG] 12,506 - - - 12,506
Closing expected credit loss R=E=Bf
provision at +=RA=+-H
31 December 2020 BABEHERRAESE  (321,846) (6,747) (2,000) (7,710)  (338,393)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for the payments of property development projects
and operating expenses. The Group finances its
working capital requirements mainly through internal
resources and borrowings from shareholders, banks
and other financial institutes. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and adequate credit
facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay as of 31 December 2020.

3

BERRER &)
3.1 BEAREZ®)

(c)

HEBETER
BENORBESRREREERTT
OB RBESEEY  WEBFT
HOEERERERGES -

AEENEERSFTRANINE
WERBIEA REEER - A&E
MEEETHREREBAILER
RIABER ~ SR1T R E MM B HEE
RN - REBREK AT HEE
EAREHNRBE ST K - R
HBRRMNASMREEFEY R
WOEEREE R EBH kRS

TREFIBREAEEAEAHEIEH
MRIEREAMR - R IRIERI R 2378 B 2l
PHAEESBBEST - KK
ENSBEAN_ZT_ZEE+_A
=+ —BREBEAEEHEZ KN &
EYNBHFAENGORNTERES

Sl
JILEE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3 HHXEKRERE#)

3.1

MEERER ()
(c) HBAZEE(E)

Less than
1 yearor
repayable Between1 Between2 Over
ondemand and2years and5 years 5years Total
PR-FF
REXEE -EWE WELFE  BFNUE st
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

ARBTT ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 31 December 2020 R-B-ZF
T=A=t-H
Trade and other payables FERERF R E MR

Borrowings and interest thereon £ X AERFI S
Guarantee in respect of mortgage  #tE TER ZIRIBRE

facilities for certain purchasers IR
Lease liability HEAE
At 31 December 2019 R-E-h&
t=A=t-H
Trade and other payables JEABR X B A R 5K

Borrowings and interest thereon & 7% R ABEFI S

Guarantee in respect of mortgage  StE FER ZIRIERE
facilities for certain purchasers IREER

Guarantee in respect of related  EEEEE T 2 (S IR AIER
parties’ borrowings

Guarantee in respect of related  FEEAEEH 2 FEBE
parties’ lease liabilities RAER

Lease liability HERE

3.2 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The different levels of valuation method for financial
instruments carried at fair value are as follows:

(@ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

(b) Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

(¢) Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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8,991,477 951,171 741,136 - 10,683,784
1,203,481 3,307,207 1,995,606 837,828 7,434,122
1,523,236 - - - 1,523,236
20,230 15,839 25,654 5,446 67,169
6,671,260 709,612 732,674 - 8,013,546
2,716,857 2,170,706 1,913,041 936,045 7,736,649
1,342,506 = = - 1,342,505
= 74,715 = = 74,715
18,896 35,448 110,838 179,036 344,218
24,327 14,770 25,395 7,578 72,070
3.2 RAFMEME
TXHINFMBEEESTRATEEA
FONSRMITAZTRBR

(@) MHREEXBEBENEEMSNMRE
(REFE)(F1E)

b)) BREI1EMBENREIN  EE
SR EABEENE R (BER) XH
Z(BURAER)BABUR(FE2E) -

() EBEEXBBEIHKEABETHH
e A BUR (BN AT 8 22 3 A 8L
E)(EIE) -



Mﬁﬂrﬁ%‘sﬂi (#)
DAREEME B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.2 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$£1E $2fE E3E wst
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at fair Z2A ABEEA
value through BRemEE
profit or loss
At 31 December 2020 RIE-FF
+ A=+—8 26 - - - -
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—hIF
+=A=+-8 26 - - - -
Investment properties  HE&E MY
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_TF
+=—A=+—8 18 - - 674,900 674,900
At 31 December 2019 N-E—h5F
+=—H=+—H 18 - - 852,500 852,500
There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HIFE
during the year ended 31 December 2020. N FEAE - FoEEFEIE 2 EILEE
#% o

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active

EEBTSEENERIANAAEE

markets is based on quoted market prices. A market is RIE M5 MBS AR o & W(E ] BN A E
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly HNBAHRZ - R &8 %A

available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximize the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

AL EERBREEREES  Mx
ERERRERAFRZHEELETHER
MERTSERX B - A IGHAR AR

YIRNEREMSEEN SR T A (Hlans
SMTETR) 2R BEKGEERMmE
o ZEFMERMIE D A A ESE A
BEEMSHE KMEENIKEER
MEFE AR RIE - ERAAEBEFEN
TEMBHMAEANRABERS A HE
KRG RIZBRTASMAF2E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level
&,

The remaining financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, and investment properties held by the Group are not
traded in active markets nor does the fair value determined
by using valuation techniques that use observable market
data. Therefore, they are included in level 3.

See note 18 for disclosures of the investment properties
that are measured at fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other current financial
assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

o to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and

o to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or obtain borrowings.

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash pledged for
the Group’s borrowing. Total capital is calculated as net
debt plus total equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020

3

ﬂ%ﬂ@mﬂﬁ)

3.3

DABEME @)

E— BN 5EEAS AL FFRET
BEhSHEET  AZETARMA
F3/E -

ESRRAREBEFABENERAAR
AREBERENREME YR EREET
C MEFERABEMSBIENG
EXMEEAAEE Ao BRES
o

Em::f:

o

ﬁﬁfﬁ%fﬁ?r%ﬁ@&ﬁ’l&%%ﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁ
AHIFETS ©

%

b1l

HRAARENEMRSCREE RS R
BEMRE - REREEEAEEBRE

EXmEBEE
AREENEAEEBRRS

s MRAKERELLENEES R

o ARERRREHERER -

RERXHBEARE  A5ELET
EaRRRMNORESHE  ARRERE
BN BTG ER -

of]

AEERBEEAGBLREZREAR
B UL RUBEBFRERIAE N BB
B BEHFEABFREBERRE LIRS
FEYMRERTREREFTNERNZR
%lJfEiEJr# o BB IABERSFE AR
BEEREKRAAESTE -



3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HXRKRERE)

3.3 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.3 EXEMEE#)
The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are RZE_TEFR_ZE—NF+ A
as follows: =+—HWEEBELEMAT

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—B-BF  —TNF
+t=A=+-8 t=A=1-~
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBETT

Borrowings (note 29) & (FtsE29) 6,553,592 6,961,140
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 27) 3 - RE& RIBLZEY (Miire7) (5,131,678) (4,504,393)
Restricted cash (note 27) ZRHIRE (fFE27) (70,141) (61,240)
Net debt (EvYE 1,351,773 2,395,507
Total equity B 5,495,139 6,104,231
Total capital BB 6,846,912 8,499,738
Gearing ratio BEAGLE 20% 28%
Restricted cash with the amount of RMB70,141,000 (2019: S A ARET70,141,000L( = E— A1
RMB61,240,000) was pledged as securities for borrowings F : ARBE61,240,0007T) B IR HI3R &
of the Group and the Group considers that such restricted EEIERAEEERNER - AEE
cash should be included in the calculation of net debt in REZEXZRHRS BT ABERFERN
order to reflect an appropriate gearing ratio of the Group. FE ARMAEENSEEELE -

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 FARGTHEE RAE
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes judgements, estimates and assumptions REBEEEBRARRBERAHE - HEt k&R
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by % BEEREE @t ERBOEEREH
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates BERAR - et RERFRRATEEEES T —
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material MRFEFENEERBEREEELZERNAE
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities FEIBAE

within the next financial year are discussed below:

BFgeERRAR/ —T-_TFFR @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(A)

(B)

(€)

CLASSIFICATION OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT
VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE

In the normal course of business, the Group develops
properties together with other developers or institutions,
through entering into co-operation agreements with these
parties. The rights and obligations of the Group and the
other parties are stipulated by respective co-operation
agreements, article of associations of the project
companies and etc. Due to the complexity of the
arrangements, significant judgement is needed in
determining whether the project company is subsidiary,
joint venture or associate to the Group. The Group makes
judgement based on the substance of the arrangements
and the definition of subsidiary, joint venture and associate
as disclosed in notes 2.2, 2.3 and 2.4.

ESTIMATES OF FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
which is determined by independent professional valuers.
Such valuation is made based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainties and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making the judgement,
reasonable consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the balance sheet date. These estimates are
regularly compared to actual market data and actual
transactions in the market.

NET REALIZABLE VALUE OF INVENTORY,
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND
HELD FOR SALE

The Group estimates the net realizable value of inventory,
properties under development and held for sale based on
the current market condition and the historical experience
of selling properties and products of a similar nature. It
could change significantly as a results of change in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at
each balance sheet date.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(D)

(E)

INCOME TAXES AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and US. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain in the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year when such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognized when the Group
considers it is likely that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilized. When the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and income tax
charges in the period in which such estimates are changed.

MAINLAND CHINA LAND APPRECIATION
TAXES

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes (‘LAT”) in
Mainland China. However, the implementation and
settlement of LAT varies among various tax jurisdictions in
cities of Mainland China, and the Group has not finalized its
LAT calculation and payments with local tax authorities in
Mainland China for most of its property development
projects. Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of land appreciation and its related
taxes. The Group recognizes these liabilities based on its
best estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
expenses and provisions of LAT taxes in the period when
such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(F)

(G)

IMPAIRMENT OF INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to identify any
impairment indicator for interests in associate and joint
ventures. This determination requires significant judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the fair
value of an investment by taking into account a market
participant’s ability in such interests in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
invest in interests in its highest and best use. The Group
considers the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry
and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

REVENUE RECOGNITION FOR PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT AND SALES

The Group develops and sells properties to its customers
in different countries. Revenue from sales of properties is
recognized over time when the Group’s performance do
not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date. The Group may not
change or substitute the property unit or redirect the
property unit for another use due to the contractual
restrictions with the customer and thus the property unit
does not have an alternative use to the Group. However,
whether there is an enforceable right to payment depends
on the terms of sales contract and the interpretation of
applicable laws that apply to the contract. To assess the
enforceability of right to payment, the Group has reviewed
the terms of its contracts, the relevant local laws, the local
regulators’ views and obtained legal advice, when
necessary, and a significant judgement is required.

For property development and sales contracts for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point in time,
revenue is recognized when the buyer obtains the physical
possession or legal title of the completed property and the
consideration amount is collected. The Group seldom
provides long credit or payment terms to its property buyer.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(H) REVENUE RECOGNITION FOR

0

MANAGEMENT SERVICES RECOGNIZED
OVER PERIOD

The Group provides management services to its customers
at fixed and variable amounts. If the consideration is
variable, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for the promised
services. The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

The Group recognizes revenue from management services
associated with fixed and variable fees over time where the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits, by reference to completion of the specific
transaction assessed on the basis of the actual costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract or on
the basis of direct measurements of the value transferred
to the customer.

Where the outcome of a contract cannot be measured
reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the
expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The provision for expected credit loss for financial assets
are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in the note
3.1(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

5 REVENUE

4 BEEISEFTRAEE)

(J) IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL V) EERE
The Group performs goodwill impairment assessment both REBFFRNA DR ETEZ2EDE
annually and whenever there is an indication that a cash MIRESELSEMN([IHESELESEN])AT8E
generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill has been R ERETREBRER & - AT
allocated may be impaired. This requires an estimation of EE A REEIENESELEND
the value in use of the CGUs to which the goodwill is FHEBE -FHETHEEEEEEEER
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to HIREeELEBEMNNHAARAKRERENR
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from EIESETEXRUGEZSEESREN
the CGUs and also to choose a suitable discount rate in HE - —_E-_EF+_A=+—HHHE
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. EIEME A AR 135,097,000 ° #—
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2020 was FrFE N 21 o
RMB135,097,000. Further details are given in note 21.
5 WA
5.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 51 BEFEHBA
CUSTOMERS
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-Z-2F HE-ZTNF
+=ZA=+—8 +ZH=1—H
LFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
Revenue recognized at a point in time RE— A SRR AU A
Property development and sales 5 2E 7R 3 S aHE
— Mainland China — [ 3,209,379 3,126,730
— US — XH 5,068,627 3,922,561
Management services (a) ‘B2 IR1% ()
— Mainland China — 275,907 404,104
—Us — XH - 13,333
8,553,913 7,466,728
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5 REVENUE (continued) 5 WAm@®

5.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 51 EFEHWAE)
CUSTOMERS (Continued)
For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT

Revenue recognized over period R —ER BRI N R R M A
Property development and sales FEHERERIEE
— USs — XH - 428,533
Management services (a) EIEARTS(a)
— Mainland China — 409,973 631,909
409,973 1,060,442
Rental income e A
— Office investment properties — WRIEEYE 28,017 31,565
8,991,903 8,558,735
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

5 REVENUE (Continued) 5 WA
5.1 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 51 EF&HWA &)
CUSTOMERS (Continued)
(@) Breakdown of the revenue from management @ EERBWAREMT

services is as follows:

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

EFE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETTT

Revenue from development FZE IR RIS BA

management services 256,948 368,963
Revenue from sales SHEEERBBA

management services 275,907 404,103
Revenue from green product FEEMESRBIBA

integration services 57,304 201,153
Revenue from brand oo I AR TS A

authorisation services 95,721 75,127

685,880 1,049,346
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5 REVENUE (continued)
5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The Group has recognized the following assets and

liabilities related to contracts with customers:

5 WA

52 HEFENEHRNEERER

AEBECHINTEHEFENEENE
ERAE:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
i —T-NF
+=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Contract assets related to HIATEEBBANANEE
— Property development and sales — EHERMZE MIEE - 174
— Management services — BEEAR 183,996 156,824
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(0)() & : RS (M5E3.1(0)()) (4,770) (2,892)
179,226 154,106
Contract liabilities related to HATIEE BEMENAE
— Property development and sales — BMERZNIEE 195,222 3,007,561
— Management services — BB IRTE 109,674 39,408
304,896 3,046,969
(a) Significant changes in contract assets and (a) EHEEREEEALE

liabilities

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting
from development management services in Mainland
China when revenue recognized over the service
period by reference to the costs incurred up to the
end of reporting period as a percentage of the total
expected costs to complete the contract exceeds the
amount billed to customers.

The Group receives payments from customers based
on billing schedule as established in contracts.

Contract liabilities decreased by RMB2,742,073,000
due to the delivery of properties during the current
year.

B R ARTS B R A WA (2 IRE
EREPRMEERDEROTT
BHERAN A DLLETE) BB
EFFRENSHE  GNEESRS
TREIMZE RGO RMERE -

AEBERBETPRA LTI
W B o R W BRAS 35K

BHIEBERD ARE?2 742,073,000
TG IR AFE RN ERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

5 REVENUE (continued)

5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO

5 WA

CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)

(b)

liabilities

Revenue recognized in relation to contract

The following table shows how much of the revenue

recognized in the current reporting period relates to

carried-forward contract liabilities.

(b)

52 HEFENEHNEEREE W)

BENEEEZLRA

TRETRARE MEEREGEE
BREEABIKA -

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
—EIEF TN
+=B=+—-H +=ZRA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Revenue recognized that was included — F 95t A& LI B E4E4H
in the contract liabilities balance at BERERUA
the beginning of the year

— Property development and sales — BMERZENIEE 2,983,159 2,934,598
— Management services — EERE 39,408 31,625
3,022,567 2,966,223

(c) Contracted amounts to be recognized in future

(c) MRRFERTHZHE

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
—EIERF —ZT—NF
+=B=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Expected to be recognized within TEEI —F IR
one year
— Property development and sales — BERZNIEE 177,269 2,077,755
— Management services — BEEARFS 109,674 39,408
Expected to be recognized after TEEIR — 18 MR
one year
— Property development and sales — EHERMZE MIHE 17,953 929,806
304,896 3,046,969
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REVENUE (Continued)
5.2 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Continued)
(d) Contract cost
Costs directly attributable to obtaining a contract
such as stamp duty and sales commissions are
immaterial and expensed when they were incurred.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the executive directors that are used to
make strategic decisions. The reports are prepared on the same
basis as consolidated financial statements.

The executive directors consider the business from services
perspective and have identified the following operating segments:

° Property development and sales in Mainland China;
o Property development and sales in the US;

° Management services; and

o Office property investment.

The executive directors assess the performance of operating
segments based on a measure of segment revenue and segment
profit.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of net finance costs and corporate expenses
charged in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
This is the measure reported to the management of the Group
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

WA )
52 HEFANERNEERERE(®)

(d) BREE
MISENMERELMKA (ANE]
EBRHEMET) RELER AR
RAXH - ERIFERX -

7 EER
ERERBEHMPTESENRAIERBRE
MIRERTEEDH - MBS REGAMY

HRARNEERE -

WITESKRGAREZRERY  LHERATE

P m v
=7)apP -

PRI HEREMHE

s XEEHERBEREE

o  EERE: R

WMOMERE -

HITESRIED BUIRA KD B BT EFEHE
BOEBHIRIEA o

7 B FE R R 2 BRATBREREO A - B YRR
AGEEHBRRNUHEERARARER - K
SEEEERBEMBENFEDEERMTG
R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SIEE )
The segment information provided to the executive directors for (EZTEFTA=+—HIEFE @
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2020 TEEIRMNREDEENMOT -
is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-_ZHE+_A=t-HLEE

Property
Property development
development and sales in Office
and sales in Mainland Management property
us China services  investment Total
XEERE PEELE
RERHEE HRRHE EERE WOAWERE @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE  ARETR AR®TR ARRTRT ARE®TR

Segment revenue (from external PN RESMBEF)
customers) (note 5) (FfizE5)
— Revenue recognized at apointin -~ — RIEF B FHRELEE
time under HKFRS 15 FE155NE— R
HERRHIMA 5,068,627 3,209,379 275,907 - 8553913
— Revenue recognized over period  — RIEE BB IR LR
under HKFRS 15 E155 — B HR A
HERRHIMA - - 409,973 - 409,973
— Rental income — AelA - - - 28,017 28,017
5,068,627 3,209,379 685,880 28,017 8,991,903
Depreciation of property, plant TEE - ITRKRENTE
and equipment (9,715) (7,560) (12,817) (1,008) (31,100)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ (FAEAETE (11,518) (1,902) (6,071) - (19,491)
Fair value gain on investment REMMENRABEMNE
properties (note 18) (FizE18) - - - 80,790 80,790
Share of net profit of associates et AN
(note 16) (FizE16) - 452,771 - - 452,771
Share of net (loss)/profit of joint [EIEEENET (BE) /
ventures (note 17) FE (FzE17) (103,404) 346,306 - - 242,902
Segment (loss)/profit A (BE) /FHE (279,489) 1,226,553 78,753 233,374 1,259,191
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZ-ZF+=-A=+-H
Segment assets DWEE 6,635,732 15,808,567 1,526,950 729,546 24,700,795
Interests in associates (note 16) R N A AR (F3E16) - 2,141,030 - - 2,141,030
Interests in joint ventures (note 17) ~ Ra=iFaEs (M17) 131,632 2,274,116 - - 2,405,748
Additions/(deductions) to non-current 311,/ (4) JERENEE
assets (excluding financial assets) (MefEeREE) 96,529 (3,866) 2,516 (261,115) (165,936)
Segment liabilities ok =N 4,191,847 14,094,023 864,605 55,181 19,205,656
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 nEER®

The segment information provided to the executive directors for BE_Z—NF+_A=1+—"HILFE  A#H
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2019 TEFRENHRESEENMT ¢
is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NEFT_A=1+-HLEE

Property
Property  development
development  and sales in Office
and sales in Mainland  Management property
usS China services investment Total
XEREME  PEEME
HERHEE HENLEHE ERRE WAMERE @5t

RVBO00 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00 ~ RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTT AREBTT ARETL ARBTR

Segment revenue (from external PPN CRESMEF)
customers) (note 5) (R
— Revenue recognized atapointin -~ — 1RIEFEE KL £
time under HKFRS 15 E155NE— R
HERRHIMA 3,922,561 3,126,730 417,437 - 7,466,728
— Revenue recognized over period  — 1BIEE BB iR E K E
under HKFRS 15 F155R—REREA
HERRHIMA 428,533 - 631,909 - 1,060,442
— Rental income — WA - - - 31,565 31,565
4,351,094 3,126,730 1,049,346 31565 8,558,735
Depreciation of property, plant TEE - IRKRENTE
and equipment (7,109) (7,571) (9,633) (1,150) (25,463)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FEREEENTE (11,061) (1,473) (8,278) - (20,812)
Fair value gain on investment REMMENRABEMNE
properties (note 18) (FizE18) - - - 3,870 3,870
Share of net profit of associates FE{RE & N Rl F A
(note 16) (FizE16) - 651,501 = = 651,501
Share of net (loss)/profit of joint EEAENER (BE) /
ventures (note 17) FE (PE17) (71,910) 51,496 = = (20,414)
Segment profit 2 ERH 251,440 1,905,391 484,732 25,101 2,666,664
At 31 December 2019 R=E-N&E+=A=t-H
Segment assets NEEE 6,198,010 17,454,591 1,276,283 913,324 25,842,208
Interests in associates (note 16) R N F AR (f3E16) - 1858413 = - 1858413
Interests in joint ventures (note 17)  RAECERER (HiF17) 282,231 2,046,801 = - 2329032
Additions/(deductions) to non-current 211,/ (5i4) JEREEE
assets (excluding financial assets) (MeEeREE) 91,996 (337,103) 3,546 345,946 104,385
Segment liabilities NEERE 3278595 15,624,265 555,464 279,653 19,737,977
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 oHER®
The Group does not have any single customer which contributed & B I AT A AN B R A 10% LA ERYE
to more than 10% of the Group’s revenue. The Group'’s revenue —BF c REBKBINEFLHWANIERS
from external customers and non-current assets are divided into BE TR T IR @ 125 -

the following geographical areas:

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
SHEREF A FrRBEE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
BEZ-Z-ZTF HE_ZT-N5
+=ZB=t-BH +ZRA=1+—H —EBCEF —T-hE
LEE & +=B=+—-H +=ZA=f+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT ARET T AREFTT
Mainland China th 3,923,276 4,194,308 6,758,293 7,631,616
us ESE| 5,068,627 4,364,427 446,565 440,420
Hong Kong (domicile) &5 (Ffi) - - 840 2,688
8,991,903 8,558,735 7,205,698 8,074,724
The revenue information above is based on the location of the A EWABMIIREFAEME MIEL » LA E
customers. Non-current assets information above is based on IERBEEBMINIREEMEHMIEL °
the location of the assets.
Reconciliation of segment profit to profit before income tax from 53 BB ) B B A8 & FE TS BR TS BRI R E A 2
continuing operations is as follows: BRI
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-ZB-ZF H=_ZT—NF
+=ZA=+—-8 +ZA=+—H
IEEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFIT
Segment profit S EBHE 1,259,191 2,666,664
Finance costs, net (note 10) W ERFEE (MFE10) (453,579) (376,281)
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBARER (283,873) (208,545)
Profit before income tax BR PTG A AT A 521,739 2,081,838
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7 OTHER INCOME

For the year

For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-Z-_ZTHF HE_ZT—NF
t=A=t+t-8 +=A=1—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREBT T
Interest income from: FMBWZHKE :
— Amounts due from joint ventures and — S S N E A a]
associates (note 38) KIE (Fff5E38) 101,855 134,377
— Amounts due from — FEUSEE S IR
non-controlling interests 26,293 27,010
— Loan to third parties —RE=ZFEXK 1,391 7,606
Government grants (a) BT B (a) 49,267 65,970
178,806 234,963
(@) Government grants for the year ended 31 December 2020 was mainly tax (@) HE-Z-ZF+-A=+—HILFENBUTHE

rebate with amount of RMB26,620,000 (2019: RMB51,269,000).

F: AR¥51,269,0007T) °

FERRY - @EAR/ARK26,620,000T(ZF—N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

8 OTHER GAINS — NET

8 HRIEFE

For the year

For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-ZE-FF HE_TNF
+=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HENBARMNFIE (KIEE37) 193,944 26,037
Loss on disposal of property, plant HETEE - THRERENER
and equipment (55) (41)
Net exchange (losses)/gains [EH (B8) /FEFE (193,387) 68,489
Gain on re-measurement of existing REBhEERAWBARE
interest in a joint venture upon BT EREEENTIE
conversion to a subsidiary - 43,000
Gain on FVPL BARBEF ABROTIGE - 2,115
Others Hi 8,272 (2,500)
8,774 137,100
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 EBRMEITENEHR
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT

Employee benefit expenses EEENER
Directors’ remuneration (note 14) SE25HM (FizE14)
— Fees — e 1,041 1,134
— Salaries and allowances — e KR 19,820 18,147
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions ~ — RARIEH 5T B4tk 156 552
— Restricted share award — PRHIIER(D 22D 3,621 -
24,638 19,833
Other staff costs Hni T &R
— Wages, salaries and allowances — T8& - 34 &£ 455,039 365,734
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions — — R RAEFIEH 22k 17,260 18,057
— Other staff benefit — HAB T EH 11,563 14,227
483,862 398,018
Cost of property development and sales B b 5 3% N HE R AN
— Mainland China (a) — (g 2,445,045 1,998,196
— US — EH 4,372,281 3,662,746
Cost of management services EEIRIEAA
— Mainland China — /i 415,741 420,471
— Us — % 120 -
Rental and expense in respect of properties ¥ & & & B 18,203 25,077
Operating costs in respect of KEMENEEER
investment properties 7,020 6,145
Other taxes HipbFiE 120,526 51,235
Advertising and promotion expenses BEENEEER 260,518 176,584
Legal and professional fees FEREEER 207,795 84,861
Research and development iz 52,783 22,592
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment TBhE - TRk MR EITE 30,372 25,463
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 20) EFREEEEITE (M5E20) 19,491 22,689

RS ERRAR/ S5 F% @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 9 RMEIENER®
For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT

Auditor’s remuneration A SGIEA
— Audit services — B RTE 2,540 1,800
— Non-audit services — FEEZRE 2,080 1,480
Provision for decline in the value of properties  #{ESHE W ZEBE KRG
held for sale (note 22) (BtzE22) 25,276 21,737
Others (b) EH (o) 111,153 84,084
8,599,444 7,023,011
Representing: 3 -
Cost of sales and services HE R RISACAR 7,283,701 6,140,072
Administrative expenses 1THE 908,853 634,017
Selling expenses HEEH 406,890 248,922
8,599,444 7,023,011
@) Cost of property development and sales includes decoration materials used (@) EHMERERHEBRBEE ARG AR
of RMB31,843,000 (2019: RMB159,505,000). 31,843,00070 (= ZF— A4 : AR¥159,505,0007T) ©
(b) Others include subsidiaries’ audit services including statutory and non- (b) Hoh @I E A R M BEZIRES - 25 mE S % EED
statutory audit fee to their respective auditors and non-audit services of SRHEEERIEEEBEZBRAURIFEEFZRBAR
RMB11,123,000 (2019: RMB3,250,000). #11,123,0007t(=F—14F : AR¥S,250,0007T) °
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10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

10 HBERFHE

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December

2020 2019

HEE HFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBETT

Financial cost 75 &
— Bank borrowings — RITIER 199,107 217,808
— Loans from the ultimate controlling — REZFEIERARINER
company (note 38) (FfF5E38) 51,614 72,845
— Senior private notes — BEANERE 371,648 239,981
— EB-5 loans — EB-5E 1,820 30,011
— Loans from other financial institutions — REEMBEMBENER 20,385 35,185
— Interest expense on amounts due to — @B RENFEER
related parties (note 38) (PfFzE38) 55,007 40,788
— Sell and buy-back arrangement — & KO - 38,178
— Discounted bank accepted notes — BRI TE L B - 3,017
— Loans from non-controlling interests — REFEEF R E K 9,398 11,708
— Financing component of contracts — BPEHNRER D
with customers 156,018 181,907
— Lease liabilities —HEBE 3,579 4,665
— Other finance charges — BB E R 10,381 20,960
878,957 897,053
Less: interest capitalized B BAEFE (398,350) (504,564)
480,607 392,489
Finance income B s e
— Bank interest income — RITM B (27,028) (16,208)
453,579 376,281
The average inte rest rate of borrowing costs capitalized for the BE-_Z-_TE+-_A=+—HIFE &R
H £k

year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately 6.37% per 118

annum (2019: 6.87%).

RERNFHENERHNB637%(=F

i

— 5 6.87%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FIEHER

For the year For the year

ended ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-—Z-ZF #HEz_ZT—NF
+=BA=+—-8 +=A=+—8H
IEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Current income tax BNERFT1S AL
— Hong Kong profit tax (a) — BAENEH ()
Tax expense for the year FEMIAER - -
— Mainland China enterprise income tax (b) ~ — FEI®EFT157 (0)
Tax expense for the year FEHIEER 125,153 460,140
— US profit tax (c) — EBEFEF(C)
Tax expense for the year FEMIAER 19,367 75,351
144,520 535,491
Mainland China land appreciation tax (b) R B £t 3B R () 349,936 204,363
Deferred income tax (note 30) FEIEFTSHE (KIEE30) (5,308) (141,870)
489,148 597,984

EBENEBRIAFEREBELNERBABRSR
16.5% (ZZT—NF : 16.5%) {EH B4 -

() Hong Kong profit tax has been provided at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the (@)
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are subject to enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% (2019: 25%)
except for one subsidiary which is located in western areas of the PRC
engaged in encouraged industries and is subject to a preferential tax rate of
15% in accordance with relevant regulations.

Land appreciation tax in Mainland China is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including cost
of land use rights and all property development expenditures. The tax is
incurred upon transfer of property ownership.
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11

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(©

In accordance with US tax law, the statutory tax rate for both federal and
state tax purposes was 26.51% (2019: 27.95%). This is then adjusted for
items which are not assessable or deductible to arrive at an effective tax rate
of 14.80% (2019: 22.26%).

Under the Law of Mainland China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and implementation regulations of the EIT Law, a withholding tax at 10% is
imposed for dividends distributed by a Mainland China-resident enterprise to
its immediate holding company outside Mainland China for earnings
generated beginning 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may
be applied when the immediate holding company is established in Hong
Kong according to the tax treaty arrangement between Mainland China and
Hong Kong. The Group controls the dividend policies of subsidiaries in
Mainland China. The directors of the Company confirmed that the remaining
retained earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China as at 31
December 2020 will not be distributed to its immediate holding company in
the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2020, deferred income tax
liability of RMB504,181,000 (2019: RMB438,921,000) on the remaining
unremitted distributable profit generated by the Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China attributable to its immediate holding company with the
amount of RMB5,041,814,000 (2019: RMB4,389,214,000) was not
recognized.

Pursuant to the requirements of the US Department of the Treasury on
Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entities, a withholding
tax at 30% is imposed for dividends distributed by a US-resident enterprise
to its immediate holding company outside the US. A reduced rate, including
exemption, may apply if there is a tax treaty between the country of
residence and the US. The Group controls the dividend policies of
subsidiaries in the US. The directors of the Company confirmed that the
remaining retained earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries in the US as at 31
December 2020 will not be distributed to its immediate holding company in
the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2020, deferred income tax
liability of RMB28,064,000 (2019: RMB60,129,000) on the remaining
unremitted distributable profit generated by the Group’s subsidiaries in the
US attributable to its immediate holding company with the amount of
RMB104,172,000 (2019: RMB240,707,000) was not recognized.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses RMB74,273,000
(2019: RMB74,296,000) available for offset against future profits for certain
entities in Mainland China which have not been recognized due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses in Mainland China
would expire within five years.

11 ISHER @)

()

BEREBRER - B @ BH R INBAEE R =
B2651% (=T — L 1 27.95%) c Z M X EE S
HBERB KA RIER AEZEEF X 14.80%
—Z—F 1 22.26%) °

BRETECEMETE(RERBIE]) REEE
o PRERCEMR_ZENF A —HEBELE
R ) B o B R SN RO R R R R BRI AR SR
AR 10% HOTRINTY o AR 4R P B B2 208 7T 32 A A5 AL 17
ERH BEBEERARAKINEE  JRARKE
5%1"5?[1%&%%7 REEZSHEAEL TE’J%Q

AAEEREAEETEMBEARAR-Z
:;?¢+ A=+—H&8E mmmaa%?\@ﬁﬂ

AREDEKTHEEFZERAR -R_FB_TF+—
H=t1—8 " AKEXRpAKE BB RE
EREE F R A BREER T RE L AT D B A B

SHEARKS,041,814,000L(ZF—NF : AR
4,389,214,0007T ) ERELEFESHEBBEARE
504,181,000 ( = F — L F : A K ¥ 438,921,000
TT) °

RIEE PR CTRINGEE RIMEA L RINEE 58

BHFOH RN KEEREERENEBEFEINER
R AR IR S AN 30% BN - &/ (ERFHE

ZEzBEAEFHKGE - AT ERARERE(BERH
1) o NEBIEHIZEENB A RMREEE - AQF]
EE®R vﬁ%lﬁ?ilMﬁE"ﬂT\ﬁEATiﬁ%
RAHEBERERARASERE_T_TF+=-A
=t+— B8R %G ﬁuﬁz me MZTE-_TF+=A
=+—B ASEETEENBARMEEEBR
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104,172,0007C ( =& — A 4F : A R #240,707,000
TC) BIEEFT 1S B & & A R #28,064,00070 (=
— N+ AR¥60,129,00070) REFER

R-ZF_ZE+_A=1+—H AKEFATBEL
HPRETERBAARIENRBARBEBRAR
#74,273,0007T (= F — L& : AR ¥ 74,296,000
JT) » MEEASRIIE RR R FE R M I R o B
BIAB RN AFEARTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINA
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11
Taxes on profit assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which
the Group operates, based on existing legislations, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.

Reconciliation between profit before income tax and income tax
expense is as follows:

NCIAL STATEMENTS

FieBiBEM @)

i 0 5 SRR B MO B R A R AT TS
FifE A AR MR T BB R H - WRER
SEFRBORTEN - BRREGIEL -

AT A AMEEASHERHERNT

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

EFE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Profit before income tax B PSRRI F1)E
Mainland China land appreciation tax R+ I

521,739 2,081,838
(349,936) (204,363)
171,803 1,877,475

Tax on profit before income tax, calculated at K FT{SF AT A E A FLIE - 125 R 25%
the rate of 25% (2019: 25%) (ZE—NF : 25%) t&E 42,951 469,369
Effect of different tax rates of the Group’s RE M Al AR R & 2 R A EE B

subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions NETERERTZE (18,826) 4,848
Tax effect of non-taxable income (i) BB R U S BRI =2 £ ) (143,355) (153,606)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A S O S & 46,843 20,547
Tax effect of unrecognized tax losses RERHIBEENT S E 190,403 73,787
Others (i) HLAthy (i) 21,196 (21,324)

139,212 393,621
Mainland China land appreciation tax P B+ it I (E 349,936 204,363
489,148 597,984

(i) Non-taxable income are mainly share of net profit of associates and joint
ventures.

(ii) Others mainly represent tax effect of realization of unrecognized temporary
difference in prior periods.
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12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SR (EBE) WS

(A) BASIC (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (A) BREXR(ER) Wi
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the FREN(EER) WETREERARA
(loss)/profit attributable to shareholders of the Company by AR &) (B 1R),FEBRIAF E B 81T
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue TBARR INEE S EETE -

during the year.

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE_E_FF HE_TNF
+=A=+—-8 +-A=+—8~

IEFE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARET T

(Loss)/profit from continuing operations SREBRAARIREAFELE

attributable to the shareholders %% (&18),/FE

of the Company (100,572) 1,157,663
Profit from discontinued operation SFBRARRRREMERIE

attributable to the shareholders EZ VD

of the Company - 14,280
(Loss)/profit used to determine basic REEEBRER K

eamnings per share (E518),/FE (100,572) 1,171,943
Weighted average number of ordinary BT EERE T IIE

shares in issue (in thousands) (FRZ) 4,631,416 4,640,314

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (expressed IR E AR (E518), 2k

in RMB per share) (AERAREBYIR)
From continuing operations attributable to  £F 3 B 43 48 48 & 2 7530
the shareholders of the Company ) NN ) ) RMBAER®¥T RMBARXL
for the year (0.022) 0.249
From discontinued operation REBRIEER RMBA R# T

- 0.003

RMBAER®t RMBARET
(0.022) 0.252

RS ERRAR/ S5 F% @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 SR (BE) W @)

(B) DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (B) ERBRE(FRE) WHF
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting TRBE(E18) s R BHE R
the weighted average number of ordinary shares BER ’é“ﬁ’]@ﬁjtﬁﬁxﬁﬁﬂﬁaﬁé
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ﬁﬂﬂ’jj}ﬂ%zﬁi’j%{ o KRNFEH—
ordinary shares. The Company has one category of dilutive MEAMETENEEYT EJHX : PR &I &

ZELRE R BE%'J’IE%T% REEET

potential ordinary shares: restricted share award scheme.

The shares granted under the restricted share award

scheme are assumed to have been transferred to the

grantee.

BREOBENBRRAEZETEARA

For the year
ended
31 December

For the year
ended
31 December

2020 2019
BZE-Z-ZF Etﬁ:g*ﬂi
+=A=+-H +=—A=1+—
LEE JJ:iE*
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFIT
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations FEBRAA R RENFELCE
attributable to the shareholders ¥% (B8) /A ,F;EJ
of the Company (100,572) 1,157,663
Profit from discontinued operation BEBNARRBRRNELRLE
attributable to the shareholders EyNE]
of the Company - 14,280
Weighted average number of ordinary BT T @R IIET 8
shares in issue (in thousands) (F&) 4,631,416 4,640,314
Adjustment for: AT B I
— Assumed distribution of shares under R R AR B 14 P £ 22D
restricted share award scheme EIDRRS (FR)
(in thousands) - 5,391
Adjusted weighted average number of FFH‘EFZEH%%%%H%T%E@
ordinary shares for diluted earnings per R A= T H9 2K
share (in thousands) (:Fﬁx) 4,631,416 4,645,705
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12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 SR (&E8), W @)

(B) DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (B) ER%E (B8) W (&)
(Continued)
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-Z-EF HE_TNF
t=ZA=+-HB +ZHA=+—H
LEE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTTT

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (expressed FRWE (EE) /s

in RMB per share) (ABRARBSIR)

From continuing operations attributable to FARERFELCEEB
the shareholders of the Company FBRARRRE RMBAK¥ T RMBA R#7T
for the year (0.022) 0.249
From discontinued operation REBKIEER RMBAR¥TT
- 0.003
RMBAK¥ T RMBARM T
(0.022) 0.252

13 DIVIDEND 13 KRE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-F-FF BHE_TNF
t=A=t+t—-8 +=A=1—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
Final dividend for the year ended HE-_Z—N&+=-A=+—H
31 December 2019 of RMB cents 7.40 I FERAR S TR R
(2018: RMB cents 3.83) per fully paid share A RE7.409

(ZZ—N\F : AR¥3.839) 351,583 180,864

BFgeERRAR/ —T-_TFFR @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

13 DIVIDEND (Continued) 13 RE (®)

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT

Proposed distribution of final dividend out of 23 B B &R AR RS

contributed surplus account of S E A% 3.00 81
HK$ cents 3.00 (equivalent to (FHERARE 2505
RMB cents 2.50) (2019: HK$ cents 8.20 (ZEB—NF:
(equivalent to RMB cents 7.40)) %I BA% 8.20 AL
per ordinary share (HERARKET7.405

The final dividend relating to the year ended 31 December 2019
was amounted to RMB351,583,000, of which RMB190,118,000
had been paid by the end of 31 December 2020.

The Board proposed to make a distribution out of contributed
surplus account of HK$ cents 3.00 (equivalent to RMB cents
2.50) (2019: HK$ cents 8.20 cents (equivalent to RMB cents
7.40)) per ordinary share amounting to a total of RMB119,621,000.
The proposed distribution is based on 4,722,307,545 (2019:
4,722,307,545) shares in issued as at 30 March 2021. The
proposed final dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable as
of 31 December 2020, but will be recorded as a distribution for
the year ending 31 December 2021.

The proposed distribution out of contributed surplus account is
subject to the passing of an ordinary resolution for approving the
distribution of final dividend out by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 30 June 2021.
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119,621 351,583

E T NE+ - A=+—BIFERNKRS
BB A ARE351,583,0007T 0 Eff AR
190,118,000 LER=ZZE=TF+ A =+—
HANKE ©

EEREZ A EARRKIEL SR EBR3.00
B EERARK2500) (CTE—NE: &
IRE AR 8.20 Bl (FBE R AR 7.405)) 8
DIk B AARE119,621,000 7T © Ei&

DERTDBE_ZT - —F=A=THHEETR
174,722,307 545 (=T — L4 : 4,722,307,545
BR)EE - BERRARELTEAE T _TF
TZA=T—HMENRKRE - BHIHEBE=
TS+ -A=1+—ALFEEHNDIK -

BEREERARRELNDRAFTRRNR_-F

T RA=THETNARRKRRBFRE
BRI ERERBR BN EBREREK - 77
B -



14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of each director is set out below:

14 EERTIRES
(A) EE=MS
2EENMEHIIMT -

For the year ended 31 December 2020:

BE_ZE_EFE+_A=+—HIFE:

Contribution
Salaries, to retirement
allowances and other  Restricted
Fees  and bonus benefits share award Total
1% RIKHR PRI1E
Be RMREA  REGER RIPRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR%¥Tx AR%¥Tx AR¥Tn AR%ETxn
For the year ended BE_E_EF
31 December 2020 +ZA=T—-HLEE
Executive directors BTES
Tian Ming 2 - 4,978 75 - 5,053
Xie Yuanijian (e) HHRE(e) - 1,234 12 - 1,246
Zhou Qin (e) [EE(e) - 1,649 18 - 1,667
Huang Zheng (7 L) - 4,023 21 2,414 6,458
Jiang Chao () R - 4,967 21 1,207 6,195
Independent non-executive ~ BIFHITES
directors
Xu Xiaonian TN 300 - - - 300
Lee Kwan Hung (e) 1l (e) 141 - - - 141
Chen Tai-yuan B0y 300 - - - 300
Rui Meng WE 300 - - - 300
Non-executive directors FHTES
Zhou Yimin FBaR - - - -
Shen Leying (g) & () - 2,969 - 2,978
1,041 19,820 156 3,621 24,638
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

14 EERTARERS 2

(A) EE=EME (&)

Contribution
Salaries,  to retirement
allowances and other Restricted
Fees and bonus benefits  share award Total
I%- RIREK PR 1
Hwe OERRRIEAM REMER 1D 12D Bat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%®Tr AR%®Tr AR%ETr ARET:
For the year ended BE-E-NE
31 December 2019 +=ZRA=1t—-HLEE
Executive directors HITES
Tian Ming Rk - 5,554 173 - 5,727
Wang Lei () &M - 2,400 82 - 2,482
Shen Leying =47 - 3,588 87 - 3,675
Xie Yuanjian HEE - 2,593 99 = 2,692
Zhou Qin IBE) - 4,012 111 - 4,123
Independent non-executive BV FHTES
directors
Xu Xiaonian SHNE 300 - - - 300
Ding Yuan () TE&E() 122 - - - 122
Lee Kwan Hung &S00 300 - - - 300
Chen Tai-yuan () BRZ () 233 - - - 233
Rui Meng (K) K 179 - - - 179
Non-executive directors FHTES
Zhou Yimin BaR - - - - -
1,134 18,147 552 — 19,833
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14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

14 EERTARES 2
(A ESHE#)

Aggregate emoluments

paid to or receivable by

Aggregate emoluments directors in respect of
paid to or receivable by
directors in respect of

their services as directors,

whether of the company or

their other services in
connection with the
management of the affairs
of the company or

its subsidiary undertaking its subsidiary undertaking Total Total
ENTFESHESENY
ENFESHESERESR EHEEEAARSHME AR
ARARRHEMBRARNESM EREBRENERT
RUERBEHMES AR RENHMRENMSEARE st st
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
gt 222 —ZT-hF gt %22 —E-NEF —EB-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT AR®T T ARETTT AR®T T ARETTT
24,638 19,833 2,884 - 27,522 19,833

(B) DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND
TERMINATION BENEFITS

(B) EEHERAKEFNRALILEREF

(©)

(D)

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2019:
Ditto).

CONSIDERATION PROVIDED TO THIRD
PARTIES FOR MAKING AVAILABLE
DIRECTORS’ SERVICES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2019: Ditto).

INFORMATION ABOUT LOANS, QUASI-
LOANS AND OTHER DEALINGS IN FAVOR OF
DIRECTORS, CONTROLLED BODIES
CORPORATE BY AND CONNECTED ENTITIES
WITH SUCH DIRECTORS

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favor of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such directors
(2019: Ditto).

(€)

(D)

RAFEE  HEEEDWEEHKRERE
AERABHNHREERAEMN(ZE—A
F 48R -

RRHEERBEOE=FRHANK
(]

F ZN/N 7*3%435%%1 i%ﬁlﬁ%lﬂ&ﬂ
=AXMARE(CZE-NEF - BE) -

FHEUES HIEZiEREBE
BERAZBANER  EERKH
i3 5 B E#

i 2 A

BMENES AX héil&ﬁifé% EEER
RIBANER EERREMZZR
H(ZF—NF: ER) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(E)
(F)

(G)

(H)
0
W)

(K)

(L)

Resigned on 19 June 2020.
Appointed on 19 June 2020.

Re-designated from executive directors to non-executive
directors on 20 November 2020.

Resigned on 30 August 2019.
Resigned on 27 May 2019.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director 22
March 2019.

Appointed as an independent non-executive director 27
May 2019.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Except for transactions with ultimate controlling shareholder
and its fellow subsidiaries as disclosed in note 38, no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2019:
Nil).
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14 EERTARERS 2

(E)
(F)

(G)

(H)

()
W)

(K)

(L)

RZEZFTFE AT NBERIE-
R-E-_TFA+hAEZRET-

R-FE-_TF+—HA-_+THANRTES
BAERIFATES -

RZZB-NFNA=THEHE -
RZE-NFREA-+HHEBHME -

R-ZB-NEF=ZA-_T_HEZERE
4#%%17%%

R-ZB-NEFRA-_TLAEZERE
VIHITES -

ESRRS  RUISHNERE
#

B B 5 38 BT 1% B8 B A AR P AR AR 3R IR EL [A)
ZMBRARET 2R G - REEHE
FIVHEAEBXEBER MARRES
B FEEEEA R BN FRSKF
NEARRAFENERARS  ZHERE
HNZE—NF &)



15 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND 15 IEBReFMALTRSREEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 3 i
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the RAFE  AEERAZZSHMATRENS
Group for the year included four existing (2019: Three) directors “E-NF:ZR)BREIESE HMERKEE
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 14D ITAR AR -
14.
The emoluments of the remaining one (2019: two) individual HE B _EFR-_E—NF+-A=+—H
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as IFEE #TFT—R(CZ—NF: WE) ALH
follows: BT
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Bz HE
—EIERF —E-NEF
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREETTT
Basic salaries, allowances and bonuses AEARTE - FR KA 10,285 8,629
Contribution to retirement benefits schemes iR RIE FII5t 24t 3¢ 59 267
Restricted share award BER 1) 14 % 1 22 B - -

10,344 8,896

BFgeERRAR/ —T-_TFFR @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

15 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

The number of above remaining employees whose remuneration

fee within the following band is as follows:

15 EEREBeFMATEREREEEN

Numbers of
individuals
2019

AEL

M2
EHME TS AR S E M Ll = erE S &
g :
Numbers of
individuals
2020
A
—ECEF

—TNF

HKD3,000,000 to HKD3,499,999
HKD3,500,000 to HKD4,999,999

Over HKD5,000,000

3,000,000;8 7T & 3,499,999 78 7T -
3,500,000 7T & 4,999,999 8 7T -

5,000,000/ 7T A

The senior management’s emoluments (excluding the five highest

paid individuals and directors) during the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 fell within the following bands:

E-E_EER_T-NF+-_A=+—H

IFFE SREBENFM(DE

R A

TREZRINETIIAEREER

Numbers of
individuals
2020

A
bt 242
RMB’000
AR®T R

Numbers of
individuals
2019

AE
—ZE-hF
RMB’000
ARBFIT

HKDO to HKD999,999

HKD1,000,000 to HKD1,999,999
HKD2,000,000 to HKD2,999,999
HKD3,000,000 to HKD3,999,999

OB TLE 999,999/ T

1,000,000 7L £ 1,999,999 % T -
2,000,000 /8 TT & 2,999,999 78 7T -
3,000,000 % 7T % 3,999,999 8 7T -
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16

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16 REEZE QTN ER
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-E-2F %zz%:%ﬂﬁ
+=A=+-8B +ZA=1—
LEE JJ:¢F§
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTT
At 1 January R—A—H 1,858,413 1,315,706
Additions: -
— Additional investments in associates — REE R RIBEIMEE 404,800 10,200
— Subsidiaries becoming associates — B RRKAEE QR - 50
Disposals: HE :
— Capital reduction of associates — B ARIEDR AR (64,600) -
— Associate becoming subsidiary (note 36) — B AR AN B AR (FHFE36) (50) =
— Liquidation of an associate — —HBEAREE - (401)
Share of net profit of associates (note 6) (B & N RS (i E6) 452,771 651,501
Elimination of transactions with associates HEEBERARNRS (11,812) (19,428)
Reversal of receivables from associates JEMES: & A R AR R (5,113) (4,496)
Dividends from associates P QAN o) (493,379) (94,719)
At 31 December N+=—A=+—8~ 2,141,030 1,858,413

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31

December 2020 which, in the opinion of the directors, are

material to the Group. The entities listed below have share capital

consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the

Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their
principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership
interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

TXABERAEEN T _TF+_A=+—

HEVBERF MEZRRARA

A YNCIEDIN-S
BESEAN - TXMIIBERERER

EARKEE

A ERERAMBAR o Ef A Sz sk sk B R I8

RETBE
SRR L PIAER -

R E - MEARRLPIEFAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

16 REIE NTMER &)

Place of
business/
country of Measurement
incorporation % of ownership interest method Carrying amount
E¥nE/
MR LER REREY HERE REE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
“gmeF R “gmeF  CTE
t=A=t-A +ZA=t-A t=A=t-A +ZA=t-H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
Chengdu Chengfeng Enterprise AR EEEAA  Manland China 33.00 33.00  Equity method 330,273 208,275
Management and Consultant Limited ~~ BRAR ((REHIE]) & ERE
(“Chengdu Chengfeng”)
Hangzhou Langyou Investment MMBABEXERAT  Mainland China 30.00 3000 Equity method 41,140 8,069
Co., Limited (‘Hangzhou Langyou’) (TuMBReE]) i Bat
Individually immaterial associates (c) ERIEEAB SRR () 1,769,617 1,642,069

Total interests in associates RSN RN RER

None of the Group’s associates has quoted price available.

(A) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF ASSOCIATES

2,141,030 1,868,413

(A) BARBEQRANAERIAREE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—E-EF —T—hEF
+=A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Commitments A
— Commitment to pay up the — BRI E AR IE
subscription capital 98,791 415,869
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16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16 REE QA TWER @)

(B) SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (B) EXBEARNMBERME
FOR MATERIAL ASSOCIATES
The tables below provide summarized financial information TREFNEARNEBEBEELN 2B & QA0
for those associates that are material to the Group. The EERBE - frif R A Fl Iz M 48 fa Bt 2
information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the NEFEHRERAESASEE - MIER
financial statements of the relevant associates and not the SERMOEEBEE  25EREB
Group’s share of those amounts. They have been amended ] MM AR (E RS EFREZ 2
to reflect adjustments made when using the equity method, BREMEMANESTTBREZEREZAR
including fair value adjustments and modifications of BEFAENLIEHR -

differences in accounting policies adopted.

Chengdu Chengfeng Hangzhou Langyou
B HNEAE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZECERF —ZNF b St 23 “2-NF
+ZA=t-R tZA=+-RA +ZA=+-B +-A=t-H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETR

Current assets MENEE

Cash and cash equivalents BHeRREZEY 560 4,900 198,855 28,228

Other current assets HMREEE 2,131,140 3,783,376 364,352 4,386,310
Total current assets mBEERE 2,131,700 3,788,276 563,207 4,414,538
Non-current assets ERBEE 45,209 109,497 39 1,778
Current liabilities RBAE (1,214,252) (3,205,947) (424,903) (4,317,421)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - - - -
Net assets BESE 962,657 691,826 138,343 98,895
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(B) SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FOR MATERIAL ASSOCIATES (Continued)

16 REIE NTMER &)
(B) EAMEATMNUBERME (&)

Chengdu Chengfeng Hangzhou Langyou
FRER HMEAE

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
—g-%F  “T-N4F  CE-®F T AF
+=ZA=+-8 +=ZB=+—-B +=A=+-B +=A=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT AR®TR AREFTT
The Group’s share in % REEE( % 33.00% 33.00% 30.00% 30.00%
The Group’s share AEEEL 317,677 228,303 41,503 29,669
Adjustments (i) HE() 12,596 (20,028) (363) (21,600)
Carrying amount HREE 330,273 208,275 41,140 8,069
Revenue WA 2,104,496 1,569,503 3,951,959 (2,310)
Income tax expense EHER (82,251) (123,723) (222,530) (26,874)
Gross margin EH#E 571,888 400,789 1,200,905 2,310)
Profit for the year EREM 270,830 182,771 689,447 54,217
Adjustment HE 32,625 15,779 19,001 (43,918)
The Group's share KRB 121,999 76,093 225,835 (27,653)

0] The adjustment mainly represents the elimination of unrealized profit

with associates.
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16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(€)

(D)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES PLEDGED AS
SECURITY

Certain equity interest in associates held by the Group are
pledged or temporarily registered to financial institutions for
associates’ borrowing arrangements.

16 REFE QTR @)
(C) CERERERARNKEARER

rEBMRFEET ﬁﬁ%’“ﬁﬁﬁéa%ﬁﬁﬁ

ERETTOREE  NEETHED
AINEEZHE -

% of

ownership

interest

% of pledged or

ownership temporarily

interest registered to

held by financial

the Group institutions

Eh=§i

BT

REEEEH BB

BERZEIL BREERBEIL

PXEFBAEEE N EFR E AR AR
Chengdu Langtao Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*

English translations are for identification purpose only.

INDIVIDUALLY IMMATERIAL ASSOCIATES

In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above,
the Group also has interests in a number of individually
immaterial associates that are accounted for using the
equity method.

50.61% 50.61%

EXEEE RS AR

(D) fEIBIZEE KEEE QT
B E X BB E AR EmIN  AEHE

W%ﬁ%?ﬂﬂ#ikﬁéﬂﬂmﬁ
- PAREREADR ©

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—E-ZF — N
+=ZA=+—8 +ZA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Aggregate carrying amounts of 1B Rl 3E & Rk A AR AR E 4B
individually immaterial associates 1,769,617 1,642,069
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16 REEZEQTNER @)
(D) INDIVIDUALLY IMMATERIAL ASSOCIATES (D) ERIZFEXEE QT (&)
(Continued)

For the year ended

BE+-A=+—HLEE

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s RNEE RS R EE AR e
share of net profit of individually NalFHEERE
immaterial associates 104,937 603,061
(E) UNRECOGNIZED SHARE OF NET LOSS OF (E) RBERELBEEATREE
ASSOCIATES
The Group applied the equity method in recognizing its AEBRAESFIERSAEEHZEAD
respective shares of net profit or loss of associates. After AR FFESEE - RSB E QA
the Group’s interests in associates is reduced to zero, HERRETE  MASELEESE
additional shares of losses of associates were not TE SR EREE AR ZT5KIE -
recognized if Group has not incurred legal or constructive BT S MERBEINELEE A REE -

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
+=ZA=+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Aggregate unrecognized share of RIEREGE S NG FBERE
net loss of associates 13,845 9,211
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17

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17 REELENER
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BZE HE
—EIERF —T—hEF
+=A=+—-H8 +=ZRA=+—8H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREETTT
At 1 January n—HA—H 2,329,032 2,596,047
Additions: AN :
— Additional investments in joint ventures — REETEMNTEINEE 81,360 533,825
— Subsidiaries becoming joint ventures — MBARIKAEEDNE
(note 37) (FFE37) 37,703 7,220
Disposals: HE
— Disposal of joint ventures in subsidiaries — HERBARINEZENE - (418)
— Capital reduction of joint ventures — /% ﬁ%ﬁﬁébﬁi (57,825) =
— Partial disposal of shares of joint ventures  — ZfH HES S DERMD (1,831) (49,494)
— Ligquidation of a joint venture — —[HEELEEE (1,044) (333,902)
— Joint ventures becoming subsidiaries —AETERAEWNER - (190,522)
Share of net profit/(loss) of joint ventures FE(EE & FENE( fﬁﬂg\ ) 242,902 (20,396)
Elimination of transactions with joint ventures %1544 L2 5 (63,514) (2083,754)
(Reversal of)/impairment on receivables e & & 5 F0E CRERE),
from joint ventures BB (51,891) 42,995
Dividends from joint ventures KESESDEMNR (97,782) (58,037)
Exchange difference PE =58 (11,362) 5,468
At 31 December R+—HA=+—8 2,405,748 2,329,032

Set out below are the joint ventures of the Group as at 31
December 2020 which, in the opinion of the directors, are
material to the Group. The entities listed below have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the
Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their
principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership
interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

TX?ﬁ%Z%KEIEA_Y_Yi—% A=1—
BHNEEEE MEZFRRAXFARAHAE
BESA - TXﬁﬁﬁllﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁE’ﬂﬁzﬁ‘%@E
BREA S BRAIRAR o MRS MBI IR
RETBEXWE  MEAERLOIRFAR
S L PIAER -

RS ERRAR/ S5 F% @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REEENER )
Place of
business/
country of Measurement
incorporation % of ownership interest method Carrying amount
EEWY/
FRALER REER% HERE IREE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
b - 2:3 —I-NE b Sl 23 3
tZA=t-B TZA=T-H TZR=t-B TZA=T-H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Hangzhou Langping Real Estate MMBATESBB AT Mainland China 50.00 50.00  Equity method 224,269 697
Co., Ltd. (*Hangzhou Langping’) (TAMBATE]) HE B
Suzhou Chenging Industrial FNREEEERD Mainland China 51.00 51.00  Equity method 35,814 -
Co., Ltd. (‘Suzhou Chenging’) (BNRE]) HE R
Hangzhou Langzheng Real Estate MMBAEERBRA Mainland China 50.00 50.00  Equity method 22,526 41,520
Co., Ltd. (‘Hangzhou Langzheng’) (TRAMBALE]) HE s
Indlvidually immaterial joint ventures () ~ IRIZEEAA L% () 2,123,139 2,286,815
Total interests in joint ventures RAEELENBER 2,405,748 2,329,032
None of the Group’s joint ventures has quoted price available. REFLSLPEWEAERE o
(A) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT (A) BREBLENERERIAREME
LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF JOINT
VENTURES
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—g-®F  —TAF
+=A=+-A +=A=t-~
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETTT
Commitments HYE
— Commitment to pay up the — BT R A ANy R IE
subscription capital 866,287 1,836,467
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17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REELENER®)

(B) SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (B) EXGELENUKERME

FOR MATERIAL JOINT VENTURES

The tables below provide summarized financial information TEREVNERAEERERN & E RN
for those joint ventures that are material to the Group. The BERBE - i EAR RMIEES S
information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the PENMERERAZYINEEE » MIER
financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and not EBMROEAEBAEE  ZE5EER D&
the Group’s share of those amounts. They have been ] MM AR (E RS EFREZ 2
amended to reflect adjustments made when using the BIEGEAN ST REEEMEZ AN
equity method, including fair value adjustments and BEFAENLIEHR -

modifications of differences in accounting policies adopted.

Hangzhou Langping Suzhou Chenging Hangzhou Langzheng
HMBT BNRE HMHE
31December  31December  31December ~ 31December 31 December 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

23 “Z-NE -S43 —Z-NE —E-%fF —Z-hE
tzZA=+-B fZA=t-B +=B=t-R +=ZA=t-B +ZA=t-B +=A=t-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTL ARETR ARETTL ARETR ARETTL

Current asssts ROAE

Cash and cash equivalents BeRELZEY 12,504 22,035 924 922 157,532 178,480

Other current assets EfiidaE 800,019 2,083,009 234,195 351,495 4,237 611,924
Total current assets THEELE 812,523 2,306,044 235,119 352,417 161,769 790,404
Non-current assets FrRBEE 40 571,609 207,713 108,306 7 15,499
Current fiabilties nEEE

Other current liabiltes EhRBaE (36402)  (2743184) (391,642) (487,599) (116,661) (640,70
Total current liabities THARLEE (364,026) (2,743,184) (391,642) (487,592) (116,661) (640,702)
Non-current liabilties FRaaE

Financial iabilties (excluding LRAR(TREENER)

trade payables) - - - - - (80,000)

Total non-current liabilties FrRyaGesE - - - - - (80,000)
Net assets/|total deficits) REFE/ (B54) 448,537 133,469 71,190 (26,869) 45,115 85,201
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REEENER )
(B) SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (B) EXAGELENMKERME &)
FOR MATERIAL JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Hangzhou Langping Suzhou Chenging Hangzhou Langzheng
HMBAT FNRE HNEE
31December ~ 31December ~ 31December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

23 ey K3 - 23 ey 3 —E-%fF —Z-hE
tzZA=+-B fzZA=t-B +=B=t-R +=ZA=t-B +=A=t-B +=A=t-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTL ARETR ARETTL ARETR ARETTL

The Group's share n % KEBEEY 50.00% 50.00% 51.00% 51.00% 50.00% 50.00%
The Group's share KEdpEl 224,60 66,735 36,307 (13,703) 22558 12601
Adjustments ) 8% - (66,039 (493) 13,703 (32) (1,081)
Carrying amount FEE 224,269 697 35,814 - 22,526 41,520
Revenue WA 2,410,643 - - - 572,422 8
Gross margin ES 451,802 - - - 253,030 8
Income tax expense FERER (87,102) 7,063 (2,804) 2,804 (48,150) 1,993
Profi/(oss) for the year FERH/ (BB 315,070 (21212) 98,059 (12,449) 144,913 (6,067)
Adjustment HE 71,445 12,072 (13,351) 11,405 879 881
The Group's share KEdpE 228980 1,466 36,659 5,056 7333 2,153
0] The adjustment mainly represents the elimination of unrealized profit 0] EHFAREEEREEEEEDE T REEF
with joint ventures. o
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17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REELENER @)

(C) UNRECOGNIZED COMMITMENTS TO (C) WBEEBHEERBNREREK
ACQUIRE JOINT VENTURE PARTNERS’ =
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS
As of 31 December 2020, the Group has commitments to MN_E_EF+_HA=+—H Kx&EH
acquire certain joint venture partners’ ownership interests AGER B ER S THEBIEUEBUATE
in joint ventures at market price in the future upon fulfilling WA TAEDENE S AR -

predetermined conditions.

These unrecognized commitments are disclosed below ZEREDAER T XIRE » MABN
and were not recognized by the Group due to uncertainties EFER  RREABNEBEEITEH N —
of one or more particular events in the future which are not B ZEARGEEHEXN T EERE

controlled by the Group.

% of

% of ownership
ownership interest
interest held committed
by the Group to acquire

FEBEFEHN AW EEE
BEREEES BAEEEESL

MRAEEHERERRAR

Nanjing Langrun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* 50.10% 49.90%

MINEAFEXBR AR

Hangzhou Langping Property Co., Ltd. * 50.00% 50.00%

KBRS RERR AR

Chengdu Shanggao Investment Co., Limited* 50.00% 50.00%

BEREREMERBERRAR

Chongaing Xingde Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* 29.99% 70.01%

AREBFEHERBEARLA ( [AxEE] )

Xi'an Jiapeng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. * (“Xi’an Jiapeng”) * 30.00% 70.00%
English translations are for identification purpose only. * B EBERZRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REELENER®)

(D) INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES PLEDGED (D) EEREARTRNEELERER
AS SECURITY
Certain equity interest in joint ventures held by the Group AREBFEFEETELE L EREE Gk
are pledged or temporarily registered to financial institutions TERELTTEREE  UWEETEED
for joint ventures’ borrowing arrangements. EMEELH -
% of
ownership
interest
pledged or
% of temporarily
ownership registered
interest held to financial
by the Group institutions
2EHR
BT
REBEEH BB
EEEZEIL BEEREZAIL
REAS B R A AER AR
Chengdu Langyu Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* 51.00% 51.00%
EREREMERERR AR
Shanghai Langju Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* 51.00% 51.00%
R REEE AR AR
Chengdu Deshang Rongda Real Estate Co., Ltd.” 50.00% 50.00%
FERPEEEEARAR
Shanghai Rongmao Business Management Co., Ltd.* 50.00% 50.00%
E G EE SR BRAF
Chengdu Haixing Cold Industry Trading Co., Ltd.* 33.33% 33.33%
EEREREMEREARAR
Chongaing Xingde Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* 29.99% 29.99%
EEFIRAMEE AR AR
Wuxi New Kunlangxu Real Estate Co., Ltd.” 45.00% 45.00%
English translations are for identification purpose only. * X HBEEFR -
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17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
(E) INDIVIDUALLY IMMATERIAL JOINT
VENTURES
The Group has interests in a number of individually
immaterial joint ventures that are accounted for using the
equity method.

17 REEDPENER »)
(E) BERIEEAREE%E

AEBERETEBGEEAGELEN
et - DERDAANGR

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
- —TNF
t=A=t+t-8 +=A=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARET T

Aggregate carrying amounts of ERIFEEREG EEN
individually immaterial joint ventures BREAE 2,123,139 2,286,815
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-Z—h& BZ2=Z—\F
t=ZA=t—-8 tZA=1—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s REBERIEERFEERSE
share of net loss of individually EFEIEER

immaterial joint ventures

96,072 24,765
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REELENER &)
(F) UNRECOGNIZED SHARE OF NET LOSS OF (F) RERELESELETHFE
JOINT VENTURES
The Group applied the equity method in recognizing its AREBRARERZIERAZSAELEEES D
respective shares of net profit or loss of joint ventures. After ZREFMN B EIE c REFREZ D
the Group’s interests in joint ventures is reduced to zero, ENEDTRETE  MAEETEEA
additional shares of losses of joint ventures were not ETERHEEETHREESEELIMNR
recognized if Group has not incurred legal or constructive I8 - AT efEREEINERE S EEE -
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
bt 242 —T-hF
+=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+t—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Aggregate unrecognized share of AIEREME &
net loss of joint ventures FEIB B 199,415 100,227
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REMEYX
As at 31 December 2020, the Group held certain properties R-ZB_ZF+_A=+—0 AEEHFAN
located in Mainland China. Changes to the carrying amount of RAENETYR - Nira EERBRNZE
investment properties in the consolidated balance sheet are HEYREEEZDBANT -

summarized as follows:

For the year ended
BE+-A=+—HLFE

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

—E-ZF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREETTT

At 1 January n—H—H 852,500 6,465,630

Transfer from property, plant and equipment B B @ - TRk & & - 343,000
Transfer from properties under EEAREREFERE Q)

development for sale (a) 107,810 -

Addition o - 145,715

Fair value gain from continuing operations REFBELEEBHAABENEG 80,790 3,870

Fair value gain from discontinued operation R B8 B &R L E KA R EEFIG - 24,285

Disposal of discontinued operation HEBRIEERS - (6,130,000)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HEMB AR (HES7) (366,200) -

At 31 December Rt+=—_A=+—8 674,900 852,500

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020




18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REMYE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, rental income and BE_ZT_ZF+_A=+—HIFE - HE
operating expense arising from leasing of investment properties KEEYEEENHESWAREEERNAT :

are as follows:

For the year ended
BE+t-A=1+—HLEE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—g-®F5 —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TFR ARETTT

Rental income EeUA 28,017 31,565
Direct operating expense from properties REEEHSWARNDES

that generate rental income HEKEER 7,020 6,145
Direct operating expense from properties RETELEVRANTER

that did not generate income BEEEEER - -
The Group’s rights on investment properties at its carrying REBNEE XN ERZREEERES TN
amount is analyzed as follows: I

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

— —E-hEF
+=A=+—HB +ZHA=t—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

In Mainland China, held on: EREREE :
Lease of 40-70 years L0ZF70FHHEE 674,900 852,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(A) In December 2020, the Group commenced the leasing of a
commercial building (Building Block No. 5 of Landsea
Green Center) located in Nanjing, Jiangsu Province,
Mainland China, which represents a change in use of the
commercial building. Accordingly the Group reclassified the
commercial building from properties under development for
sale to investment property. As at the transfer date, the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
RMB107,810,000 (note 24) and RMB143,200,000
respectively. The difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value at the transfer date was credited as fair
value gain in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

(B) Investment properties were valued at 31 December 2020
by an independent professionally qualified valuer, Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited,
who is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the

valuation of similar properties.

(C) As at 31 December 2020, investment properties with
carrying amount of Nil (2019: RMB812,240,000) was
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings.
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18 BEMYE »)

(A)

(B)

(€)

R_ZB_ZTF+_F AEBEHEKEE
PR BT &4 f R T R R A2 T (BAGT
FEPLESE)  REREEEFESRA
BB AEBKEEEFARES
TEMEETHREREYE - RER
HE ZUWENEAELRALEED
A A R #107,810,000 7T (Ff 52 24) K& A
R 143,200,000 7T ° )R#E# H HARRE (A
BARBEZENEZRCIRARE SR
AWRERB FAREEFIE -

REMER _FT_TF+_A=1+—~8
BV EXa B RMEMPERTEE
HEREHERARETHE - (PEH
TEEFGERERERABA/ELAE
MEees  WHBEAREEMIHAE
YFRETRENTRESR

RZE_ZTF+A=+—H " KHEE
RBE(ZE—NF : AR 812,240,000
)RR EMFEEERERAEEBED
R o



18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment
properties were performed by an independent and
professionally qualified valuer to determine the fair value of
investment properties as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the Group’s
investment properties were within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as valuations were arrived at by reference to
certain significant unobservable inputs. There were no
transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2020 by an independent professionally qualified
valuer who holds a recognized relevant professional
qualification and has recent experiences in the locations
and segments of the investment properties being valued.
For all investment properties, their current use equates to
the best use.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the independent valuer
for financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation
processes and results were held between the finance
department and the valuer at least once every six months.

At the end of each reporting period, finance department:

° Verifies all major inputs in the independent valuation
report;

° Assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report;

° Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

18 BEMYE»)

(D)

AREEEBR
AEEMNKEUMECHBLIEEESE
BAGERNEITE L (GE - NETREN
MER_ZE_TFR_ZE-NFTZA
=t+—H®HAREE -

AEE2ZEETER T A EEARE
‘reh R-E_ZFR-_ZF-hLF
TZHA=+—H AEERBERENLY
EHUBARBEERNEIE - FAFE1
B - $2ERFEIE AU EES -

AEEA L ERE
AEENREUMER T _FTF+—
A=1T—HABIEXSERMEEME
TfhE - ZEEMAEFRERAIEXE
1% HPTAENRE Y ETERLZE M
FrBRRAIRHERLR - BRMAR
EMYERYEERRERS -

REE I 75 EPPT A B KB IB L (L E D
MfE{E - ABIEL B SR ¥R - B 75 B0 P
MisEMENEARIRIT-REFH
et it ERiE RAER o

M EAARN S ERS IR

REBUGERSHZHEIEGA
2

o HEMEMBEERL-—FEMER

o HEBFIIHEMETHR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued)

Valuation techniques

In valuing the properties, income approach and discounted
cash flow analysis (“DCF analysis”) were adopted by the
Group. When using income approach, the Group takes into
account the net rental income of the properties derived
from its existing leases and/or achievable in the existing
market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then capitalized to
determine the fair value at an appropriate capitalization
rate. DCF analysis involves discounting future cash flow of
the property to its present value by using an appropriate
discount rate with due allowance for the reversionary net
income of the property, which is capitalized with a terminal
capitalization rate. In the course of valuation, the Group
assumed the property is available for lease. With regards to
the existing market conditions, the incomes and expenses,
stabilization period and rental growth for each component
of the property are estimated to reflect the property
performance in the market. Where appropriate, reference
has also been made to the comparable sale transactions
as available in the relevant market.
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18 BEMYE »)

(D)

[RBEEERE)

1& 18 75 %

HBYERETHER  ARERBRAL
ERERFBETRERTHIE] &K
RBAER - AEEEt ERAED
PRER K,/ SRR BT 5T A BENY
EHSWAFE  YERBEENERE
EWSIFHEE BE Bz ke
FREREENERMCLL RERCAEE
AREE - RERFTBELIESEREE
RBEREMERKREREMREAR
B UMENERERAFEELE
EEE ERERKREXNCEELETENRN
oo BEEBREY  AEEREKYWER
HHE - DI EEFER SRR -
W RBEBMERMESHBSNESIE
FURRYEEMS LELOHRR - BF
RETE2EHAMS LN LEER
5 o



18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REMYE @)

(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) (D) AREEEB&KE)
Information about fair value measurements using significant EREFERAENTAEZRG ABISEETH
unobservable inputs (level 3) is as follows: ARBEE(FIB)WERAT :
Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to
Description Fair value at technique(s) inputs (probability-weighted average) fair value
TUERRAYE ABEGALE
i AREE fhERE TUBERAHE (MEFEHE) HAAREENEE
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 2020 2019
ZBIEE I-hE
t-A=t-B fZA=1-A ZBCEF “E-0F

(RMB000) [RMB000)
(AR%T7) AR®ET)

Building Block No. 5 of 143,200 n/a Termand reversionary  Term yields 450% n/a The higher the term yields, the lower
Landsea Green Center TER  method FHlligk TER  thefairvalue
B 5 ERRESE FRhEERS M ERGE
Reversionary yields 5.00% n/a The higher the reversion yields, the
e TER  lower the fair value
EShaES A EEGE
Vacancy rate 8.00% n/a The higher the vacancy rate, the
ZEX TER  lower the fair value
ZEXHR  MABEBE
Average daily rental 2.21 n/a The higher the average daily rental
per square meter TER  per square meter, the higher
BYHRHHRR the fair value
SEAATRRER
MEBEES
Nanjing Huafei Apartment 68,900 n/a  DCF analysis Discounted rate 6.00% 6.00% The higher the discounted rate,
HRERLE TER RehniE GiEES the lower the fair value:
NREER  MBEEE
Vacancy rate 5.00% 5.00% The higher the vacancy rate, the
ZEX lower the fair value
ZEXHR  MABEBE
Average dally rental 3.82 3.57 The higher the average daily rental
per square meter per square meter, the higher
BERAT9ER the fair value
SEAATRRER
MEBEES
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

18 BEMYE »)

(D) FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Continued) DNABEEBRE)
Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to
Description Fair value at technique(s) inputs (probability-weighted average) fair value
EEECDN ¢ TARERARE
it MMEE fhERE TIRERALE (T 1981 ) BARBENER
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 2020 2019
e St 3 0
tZA=t-B TZA=T-H ZECEF 20
(RMB’000) (RMB'000)
(AR®TR)  (A\RETRH)
Landsea Neighbour-hood 117,900 117,900  Termand reversionary  Term yields 5.00% 5.00% The higher the term yields, the
Union method Flliak lower the fair value
HgeE ERRERE FRhEES M ERGE
Reversionary yields 5.50% 5.50%  The higher the reversion yields,
= le the lower the fair value
EShaES  MEEGE
Vacancy rate 5.00% 5.00% The higher the vacancy rate, the
ZEX lower the fair value
RERHS  MEEGE
Average dally rental 1.86 1.80  The higher the average daily rental
per square meter per square meter, the higher
BYARHARR the fair value
SEAATREER
NMERSR
Huangxing Building 344,900 343,000 Term and reversionary ~ Term yields 4.00% 4.00% The higher the term yields, the lower
BREAR method EHlE% the fair value
ERRERE FRhEES M ERGE
Reversionary yields 4.50% 4.50%  The higher the reversion yields, the
= le lower the fair value
EShaES  MEEGE
Vacancy rate 15.00% 13.00%  The higher the vacancy rate, the
ZEX lower the fair value
RERHS  MEEGE
Average dally rental 3.09 3.75  The higher the average daily rental
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19 FBE  ITHRKRRE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
RIE KB
BF MHEEFES &N AE FCE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2019 R-E-NE-A—H
Cost (P& 507,863 737,004 74,233 3,860 1,322,960
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE (1,791) (61,503) (21,879 (3,214) (88,387)
Net carrying amount REFE 506,072 675,501 52,354 646 1,234,573
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-ZE-hEF
TZA=+-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount, FREFE - WRIZ5
as previously stated 506,072 675,501 52,354 646 1,234,573
Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 16, S 40& s 81 765 R 5 £ 8|
net of tax F1657H0FH% - MERFIE = (670,430) - - (670,430)
Opening net carrying amount, after FHREFE - AR
the adoption of HKFRS 16 BB REERE 16571% 506,072 5,071 52,354 646 564,143
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AR - - 109 - 109
Additions 2 35,919 4,441 21,926 6 62,292
Depreciation e (9,080) (713) (15,532) (245) (25,570)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHBA R - (561) (5,084) (163) (5,808)
Disposals & = (52) = - (52)
Transfer to investment properties ERTREEME (341,156) - - - (341,156)
Exchange difference X - 10 274 - 284
Closing net carrying amount FERERFE 191,755 8,196 54,047 244 254,242
At 31 December 2019 R=E-hF+=A=+—-H
Cost B%N 202,626 70,412 91,458 3,703 368,199
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (10,871) (62,216) (37,411) (3,459) (113,957)
Net carrying amount IREFE 191,755 8,196 54,047 244 254,242
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZ2-Z2-2F
tZA=+—-HLEE
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) W EE KB 7] (K7 36) - - 248 - 248
Additions 2 4,020 796 20,086 1,265 26,157
Depreciation e (8,850) (4,238) (17,090) (922) (31,100)
Disposals of subsidiaries (note 37) HEWB AR (M37) (1,915) - (30) - (1,945)
Disposals & - - (1,045) = (1,045)
Exchange difference N ZERE = (50) 5,386 - 5,336
Closing net carrying amount ERREFE 185,010 4,704 61,602 577 251,893
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-EF5+-A=+—H
Cost [B#N 204,731 71,158 116,103 4,958 396,950
Accumulated depreciation ZEHFE (19,721) (66,454) (54,501) (4,381) (145,057)
Net carrying amount REFE 185,010 4,704 61,602 577 251,893
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
(@  As at 31 December 2020, property, plant and equipment
with carrying amount of RMB176,571,000 (2019:
RMB186,234,000) was pledged as collateral for the
Group’s borrowings (note 29).

20 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

(A) AMOUNTS RECOGNIZED IN THE BALANCE
SHEET

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to

19

20

TE8E- - IRESE®

@ R-ZE-ZTFE+-_A=+—H8 EEE
B ANR¥A176,571,0007T( = FE— A4 :
AR #186,234,0007T) KT B E -~ T
REEEERERTNE IS ERNIE
i im (FH7E29) ©

HE
ARHEIR A A REERFRAANRER

Bhe
(A REERBRBRNEHE

BEABERBIIATEHEESRNEHE

leases:
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFIT
Right-of-use assets FREEE
— Office properties — WA 53,848 56,622
— Furniture, fixtures and office —R1E  BEBRIFARE
equipment 405 847
54,253 57,469
Lease liabilities HEERE
Current E 19,519 23,520
Non-current IERE 38,354 38,860
57,873 62,380
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20 LEASES (continued)
(B) AMOUNTS RECOGNIZED IN THE STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS

20 HE#®)
(B) RiBRREANLHE

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts BRXRANMTHAEEBEAN S
relating to leases:
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-Z-ZF BE2_Z—NF
+=A=+—-H8 +=ZRA=+—8H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREETTT
Depreciation charge of FREEENITEER
right-of-use assets
— Office properties — WA 19,046 22,294
— Furniture, fixtures and office equipment — X1 « £ & Lgt N &G 445 395
19,491 22,689
Interest expense F B & 3,579 195,472
During the year ended 31 December 2020, cash payments 22 _EF+_A=+—BItHF
for the interest portion of the lease liability amounted to E HEARNEMBSNBNETAA
RMB3,579,000 (2019: RMB93,714,000) and was included R¥3,579,000c(ZF—NF : ARKE
in the interest paid of operating activities in the consolidated 93,714,00070) * REREREMERTTA
statement of cash flows, while the principal element of ey E@JE’JEHﬂ M AE R KA A

lease payment was included in financing activities.

MORIFFAREES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

21 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21 BEFREE

Computer
Goodwill software Total
[EE BIKE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T ARET T
At 1 January 2019 R=Z—h&—HA—H
Cost PR 9,460 2,279 11,739
Net carrying amount REVFE 9,460 2,279 11,739
Year ended 31 December 2019 ®BE—ZT—h &
TZA=t—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FYIRESHE 9,460 2,279 11,739
Additions NE - 1,434 1,434
Acquisition of subsidiaries L B B B 2 A 37,078 - 37,078
Disposals of subsidiaries LEWBAF (9,460) (3,713) (13,173)
Closing net carrying amount FRERMEFE 37,078 - 37,078
At 31 December 2019 R=Z—-h&F+=A=+—H
Cost B AR 37,078 - 37,078
Accumulated amortization RETEESE - - -
Net carrying amount BREFE 37,078 = 37,078
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-—Z-ZHF
TZR=E+—HLFE
Opening net carrying amount FYIREFE 37,078 = 37,078
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) U B&FHTE A & (M3 36) 106,013 - 106,013
Exchange difference EH =% (7,994) - (7,994)
Closing net carrying amount FAREMEFE 135,097 = 135,097
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_FEFE+=-—A=+—H
Cost D% 135,097 - 135,097
Accumulated amortization RETEESE - - -
Net carrying amount BREFE 135,097 - 135,097
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21

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 21 BEEE®)
(@  Goodwill was allocated to the following CGU: (a PEECHIEZEATESELSEN:
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
+=ZA=+—8 +ZH=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETTT
Arizona: TR SARIN -
— Pinnacle West Homes Holding — Pinnacle West Homes
Corp. (“PWH?) Holding Corp. ([PWH ) 34,667 37,078
— Garrett Walker Homes (“GWH?) — Garrett Walker Homes ([GWH ) 100,430 =
Total #ET 135,097 37,078
As at 31 December 2020, management performed RZZE-ZTF+_A=+—8 E8EE

impairment testing on goodwill based on cash flow
forecasts. With reference to the recoverable amount

RERRERNEHEBETRER
A BER-_FT_TF+_HA=+—H

assessed as at 31 December 2020, the directors of the AR A KB 2R - AARESRAE

Company determined that there was no provision for EE_THFIFEUERNERER

impairment of goodwill for the year ended 2020. The B TR ESNEEANENREE
following table sets out the key assumptions for the CGU EBEHEERK :

that have significant goodwill allocated to them:

Arizona

2020

SR ISR ARM

—EBCEF

Long term growth rate (%) = BRI R (%) 3%

Pre-tax discount rate (%) FRATHTIR 2R (%) 10%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

21 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 21 BEEE®)

()  Goodwill was allocated to the following CGU: (Continued) (@ PEEEIEZEATESELEN: (8)
Management has determined the values assigned to each EEEBRINIARAEET LA TFERR
of the above key assumptions as follows: HEE :

Assumption Approach used to determining values

R EBEBEMRRALE

Long-term growth rate This is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the budget period. The rates are consistent with forecasts included in industry
reports.

REPERE AR EETERRRRSRENMETERE - FHEREREITERSEMN
BRI —3K -

Pre-tax discount rates Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments and the countries in
which they operate.

FR A AT ER 22 F B AR B 49 I % EL AR & P A B 5K B 45 E LB

The recoverable amount of the Arizona CGU is estimated EETEAMERBMNE S EED B AT

to exceed the carrying amount of the CGU at 31 December BleEBEE —_T_TF+_H=+—~H

2020 by RMB1,127,811,000. MRSELAEMNFEREBENARY

1,127,811,000 7T °

The directors of the Company have considered and ARREZEZEELFHEMEEZERR

assessed reasonably possible changes for other key MEIEAI RS - WARBIBAEMAESE

assumptions and have not identified any instances that WEAMRIMRESEED BEMHKREE

could cause the carrying amount of the Arizona CGU to B E Y E SRR E G o

exceed its recoverable amount.
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22 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 22 FESHEWE
Analysis of properties held for sale is as follows: FEHEMENDITOT -

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
i —T-NF
t=A=+—R +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Properties held for sale: FHESHEWE -
— Mainland China — AEAH 1,213,666 1,195,705
1,213,666 1,195,705
Less: provision for decline in the value of B FEHE MEBE T REE
properties held for sale (27,185) (27,779)
1,186,481 1,167,926
Movements of properties held for sale are as follows: FHIEHEMENEFHNT :

For the year ended
BE+-A=+—ALFE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—g-®F —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥®T R ARET T

As at 1 January n—H—H 1,195,705 882,923
Transfer from properties under EEaRBERSEDE (HE24)

development for sale (note 24) 6,755,085 5,490,861
Addition as results of acquisition of U BEKT B A RlmAE (MisE36)

subsidiaries (note 36) 71,895 323,358
Cost of property development and EibE R REEKA (MiFE9)

sales (note 9) (6,809,019) (5,501,437)
As at 31 December RNt+=—_A=+—8 1,213,666 1,195,705
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

22 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued) 22 FHESHEWHE &)
All of the properties held for sale are within normal operating FTEHESHEMENEERLLBHENEE
cycle and hence included under current assets. The amounts of WEERBEE - BRI NEBE — FEWER
properties held for sale expected to be recovered after more than FHEHE Y EHFE A AR 26,322,000t (=
one year is RMB26,322,000 (2019: RMB54,139,000). T—NF : AR¥54,139,0007T) °
Movements of provision for decline in the value of properties held HEHEEEBE THBESEHET

for sale are as follows:

For the year ended
BE+-A=+—HLEE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—g-®F —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥®TR ARETTT

As at 1 January n—H—H 27,779 6,042
Provision during the year F N 25,276 21,737
Recycled to cost of sales during the year FRE U HE R A (25,870) -
As at 31 December RNt+=—A=+—8H 27,185 27,779
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognized HEZZ-_ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE t&%
impairment reversal of RMB594,000 (2019: RMB21,737,000) on R EHEVERABAERLARYK
properties held for sale (note 9). 594,0007T( = ZF — L& : AR % 21,737,000

70) (KFE9)

As at 31 December 2020, no properties held for sale (2019: nil) N—E-_TFE+-—F=+—H ' BEKFEE
were mortgaged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (note HEWE(ZZE—NF - &) EAASERSEE
29). FEVHEA G (T 5E29)
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23 INVENTORIES 23 EfF

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—g-sE —T-nF
+=A=+-8 t=A=t—~
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBETT

Decoration materials B3k pe 51,565 55,324
The cost of inventories included in cost of property development BE_ZT-_ZF+-_A=1+—HIEFE st A
and sales amounted to RMB31,843,000 for the year ended 31 EHMERZXLEEEKRANERZEZ A A
December 2020 (2019: RMB159,505,000) (note 9). ARBE3184300 L (ZFE—LF: AR

159,505,000 7T ) (Fi7£9) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

24 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR 24 BAZAi5EW#E

SALE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
e —T-NF
+=ZBA=+—H +Z—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREETTT
Properties under development for sale PSR AFEYZEN R ¢
located in:
— Mainland China — h 515,650 2,582,467
— Us — X[ 4,642,850 4,008,460
5,158,500 6,590,927
Less: provision for decline in the value of W RERGEMEEETREE
properties under development for sale - -
5,158,500 6,590,927
Amount comprises: SRIBBAE
— Land payments — TR 2,792,749 3,443,112
Leasehold land, Mainland China RSt 463,911 1,450,011
Freehold land, US ERIK AL 2,328,838 1,993,101
— Development expenditures and — A R BSCERRTS
improvements 2,073,910 2,411,609
— Finance cost capitalized — FIEER(E 291,841 736,206
5,158,500 6,590,927
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24 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR 24 BABPESEVES)
SALE (Continued)

Movements of properties under development are as follows: FEER Y ER BT ¢
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE BHZE
—B-RF —E-hF
+=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
LEFE IFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR¥ETT

As at 1 January w—A—H 6,590,927 8,691,599
Additions 140 5,272,010 4,009,881
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) W BB B B & 7] (B 3£ 36) 822,834 1,316,193
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HERB AR (EES7) (374,156) (1,935,885)
Transfer to investment properties (note 18) BRI EYE (MIFE18) (107,810) -
Transfer to properties held for sale (note 22) B/ EiFEIHE W (MfsE22) (6,755,085) (5,490,861)
Exchange difference b H Z%E (290,220) =
As at 31 December Nt+=—_A=+—H 5,158,500 6,590,927
All of the properties under development for sale are within normal FERBEDFEMELORNESKR L RBARE
operating cycle and hence included under current assets. The B BEHERENEE - TBHIENEBR —FEE
amount of properties under development for sale expected to be THHEPFTEVEHBEAEARK
completed after more than one year is RMB4,247,636,000 (2019: 4247636000 ( = F — L F: AR
RMB2,088,438,000). The remaining balance is expected to be 2,088,438,0007T) ° #4%E A TR B —F NTEACHY
completed within one year. FKIE ©

As at 31 December 2020, properties under development for sale RZZE-_TEF+_A=1+—H REAEBEAAR
with carrying amount of RMB4,419,430,000 (2019: #4,419,430,000C( Z E— N FE: AR
RMB4,056,083,000) were mortgaged as collateral for the 4,056,083,0007T) B E R FEMERRBIER
Group’s borrowings (note 29). REEERRER R (FFFE29) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 25 ®RoOEEJNMESFE I A
The Group hold the following financial instruments as at the AREBRUTEEEHEA NI A :
respective balance sheet date as follows:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=-A=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR¥T AREFT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost B AGTEZ S RMEE
Trade receivables FEUTBRE TN 26 683,985 869,890
Amounts due from related parties FE UG A B4 5 kI8 26 4,254,660 4,148,719
Amounts due from non-controlling JE U S E 42 1) 14 A 25 TR
interests 26 667,967 811,373
Other receivables Hfh e U 26 628,772 705,505
Deposits for purchase of land U B8 + iR & 26 206,921 170,113
Restricted cash and cash and ZRFIRESURIBE R
cash equivalents HEZEEY 27 5,253,085 4,760,164
11,695,390 11,465,764
Financial liabilities SRAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BB AT EC eRARE
Trade and other payables* JFE S BR 3 K B FE S R 28 10,668,825 7,968,109
Borrowings R 29 6,553,592 6,961,140
17,222,417 14,929,249
Excluding non-financial liabilities * TEiEECRAE
The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the AEEAZERSR T ANZERBRMNHEES
financial instruments is disclosed in note 3. The maximum W o MEBMRAZHNEERR LR A FE
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the HEMEERNREE -

carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 26 BEUWRRRAEMERR BERKR

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS ®"E
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEHF —FENF
+=ZA=+—8 +ZH=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Included in non-current assets: STAFERBEE :
Amounts due from related parties (note 38(a))  F& U BE R 77 =038 (Bt 38(a)) 1,034,406 1,469,914
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii)) B ERERE M (M9 3.1(b)(i)) (129,421) (14,699)
904,985 1,455,215
Amounts due from non-controlling e SRR HIEAE 25 FRTE (C)
interests (c) - 634,632
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)ii)) B EERR A (P RE 3.1(b)(i)) - (6,346)
- 628,286
Other receivables o Ath B UMK
— Deposits for building construction — BRIRFES 50,000 50,000
— Lendings to third parties —ME=ZFEE 16,090 33,074
— Deposits for property maintenance (d) — MIEHEZ S (D) 5,579 12,386
71,669 95,460
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii)) B EERR B (P RE 3.1(b)(i)) (1,777) (955)
69,892 94,505
974,877 2,178,006
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

26 BURAREMERR BARKR

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (continued) BREE)
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
t et 2 —T-NF
+=A=+—8 +=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Included in current assets: STARBIEE ¢
Trade receivables (a) FEUBR X (a)
— Related parties (note 38(c)) — RAE 5 (B9=E38(c) 294,508 274,028
— Third parties —%=7" 564,237 670,020
858,745 944,048
Less: provision for bad debt B AR
— Related parties (note 3.1(b)(i) — BAE 75 (B=ES.1()i) (16,255) (2,740)
— Third parties (note 3.1(b)(i)) — E=7 (B5E3.1(b)) (158,505) (71,418)
(174,760) (74,158)
683,985 869,890
Prepayments NN
— Prepaid taxes (b) — TERTRIE (o) 61,823 89,124
— Prepaid value added tax (“VAT") — FEMEER ([EER]) &
and other surcharges (b) E AT 2 (o) 56,742 112,496
— Prepayments for land bidding — A LRI B - 236,000
— Other prepayments — BB 80,247 73,823
198,812 511,443
Amounts due from related parties (note 38 (a)) & 4 BARE 75 038 (Bt 5 38(a)) 3,542,100 2,733,961
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii)) R BB E (B EE 3.1(b)i) (192,425) (40,457)
3,349,675 2,693,504
Amounts due from non-controlling interests (c) J&W FE2 i 1t 4 25 2 18 674,714 184,936
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii)) B EEER S (BT EE 3.1(b)(i) (6,747) (1,849)
667,967 183,087
Deposits for purchase of land BEITHNES 209,011 171,831
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(b)(ii)) e ERER B E (BT EE 3.1(b)i) (2,090) (1,718)
206,921 170,113
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 26 BEUWRRRAEMERR BERKR

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (continued) Be®)
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—B-EF —TNF
+=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Other receivables oA e Wk

— Lendings to third parties —ME=FEE 242,448 471,319
— Consideration Receivables (e) — FERRE () 171,500 -
— Escrow Receivable — EREEE 75,806 61,639
— Deposits in housing fund — FEAESES 11,535 19,572
— Deposits for building construction — BARFZS 3,538 4,955
— Deposits for apartments rental — NEHeESE 2,368 2,102
— Deposits for land bidding — T ERIRIRS - 20,000
— Others — Hih 57,618 37,585
564,813 617,172
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1 (b)(ii) B EREREE (BT EE 3. 1(b)i) (5,933) 6,172)
558,880 611,000
5,666,240 5,039,037
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES

26 BURAREMERR BARKR

BE )
(A) FEWERRX

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
—F-FHF —FTNF
+=BA=+—-8 +=A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Trade receivables from property 5 Hb = R B R SHE IR UR AR 3K
development and sales 237,993 338,281
Trade receivables from management &8 AR TS FE U BR X
services 620,752 605,767
858,745 944,048
Less: provision for bad debt (note 3.1(0)()) & : T BREE (M EE3.1(0)() (174,760) (74,158)
683,985 869,890
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 26 BEUWRRRAEMERR BERKR

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (continued) Be e
(A) TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) (A) FEWER (&)
The aging analysis of the current trade receivables based 15 75 R B8 B HA Ay B EA FE AR SR BR R
on the invoice date is as follows: MranT :
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
bt 222 —FENF
+=B=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREETTT
Related parties B2l
— Less than one year — LR—%F 115,212 130,950
— One to two years — —EMF 83,025 125,203
— Two to three years —ME=F 79,489 17,875
— Three to four years — ZEOF 16,782 =
204,508 274,028
Third parties F=5
— Less than one year — PR—F 92,294 566,168
— One to two years — —EMFE 392,449 46,879
— Two to three years — ME=F 41,149 56,973
— Three to four years — =ZF 38,345 =
564,237 670,020
858,745 044,048
The credit terms granted to customers of purchasing BRTEPBEVENEEH -—MRNF3I0
properties are generally ranging from 30 days to 60 days, HZE60H r MAKBEREFREEER
while for the customers to whom the Group provides % R R LHEETAR TR
management services, decoration services and sales land, NEERNE—F -
the credit terms are around one year.
Information about the impairment of trade receivables and EHEEWEFRERAEEEFEERBD
the Group’s exposure to credit risk can be found in note AR EMEES.1(0)() °

3.1(0)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

(B) The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China which develop
properties for sale are subject to prepayment of VAT at the
rate of 3% on advance collected from customers. Such
prepayments are recorded as “prepayments — prepaid

VAT and other surcharges”.

These subsidiaries are also subject to prepayments of EIT
and land appreciation tax on expected profit margin and
land appreciation tax based on advance collected from
customers together. Such prepayments are recorded as

“prepayments — prepaid tax”.

(C) In December 2018, Z/MEAHEEGR A

Langkun Real Estate Co., Ltd.) (“Suzhou Langkun ), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the supplemental agreement with its owners,
pursuant to which Suzhou Langkun agreed to extend the
loan term from 31 December 2019 to 31 December 2021.
The loan is unsecured, repayable within three years, and
Suzhou Langkun shall charge an annual interest rate of
4.35% per annum on the actual amounts of drawdown. As
at 31 December 2020, the outstanding amounts due from
the non-controlling shareholders of Suzhou Langkun

amounted to RMB661,537,000.

The remaining amounts are interest-free and repayable on

demand.

(D) Deposits for property maintenance are repayable within 2

to 8 years from the end of the year.

(E) On 29 December 2020, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of its 100% equity interests in
Dawning Information for a total consideration of
RMB500,000,000, of which RMB300,000,000 had been
collected as of 31 December 2020. The transaction was
completed on 29 December 2020 and the remaining
RMB171,500,000 was collected in March 2021 after
deducting the withholding tax amounting to

RMB28,500,000.
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26 FWERFNREMEKRT AARK
BE )

(B)

(€)

(D)

(E)

AEERBEHEMENTEMBQRA
FRUCER R P Y EA TR TR 3% RUIR (AR © 7%
FRBEARR AR — BAEERR
HAKIpNE ] -

A= PNCID Y CE SR PER Y G1aE 3
PRISH R LB ER - RIREBUREFS
HFRIRTBB L IR ER - RFBARA
fRm TN — RAHE] -

R-Z-N\F+_F ARREE}FE
BB AREMAMEZBR DA (4
JNEAsR ) A B ARI LM a4 © &
HEMNEBAFREHERRBE TN
F+_A=t—HERE-_ZT_—%
TZA=t—RH - EXRERER AR
=FAEE - & MNBAERAR4.35% )
FHNEBRBEXBRNERSETR - R
ZZEFF+-A=1+—8 " EBEEHMA
HMIEERBRROREEREEARY
661,537,000 7T °

BRTIHRARE AR ERREER -

GERTARFREANEE/\F

o

i
W

)
N

T
Pl

I

RZZE-_ZTF+-A=+NB ~5£H
FT S Wk DA B E R BB S (5 B /U 100%
& - AR E AR AR 500,000,0007T
/\EF‘}\E%SOOOOOOOOREE/\f7f
TE+_A=+—HKE - EERS
T _TFE+_A=-thBEK" ﬁ,ﬁk
/\Eﬁ%m 500,000 2R - T = —4F

AEMNBRIEFHA R % 28,500,000 7T
@:Hﬂz@o



26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables, prepayments and deposits (netting off
provision for bad debt) were denominated in below currencies:

26
BRE )

R IR AR R B - RARR

RIZB-ZZF+-A=+—8 BREZIRHE
MR~ TN RIS (FIBRREREME) RBR

EEA T EREEHE

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

e —T-NF

+=A=+—8 +=-A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETIT

RMB AR 6,281,941 6,589,205
uss$ E 349,077 613,906
HKS BT 10,099 13,932
6,641,117 7,217,043

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair value of trade and
other receivables approximate their carrying amounts.

RZEZZEFR-_F-NEF+=-A=+—8"
MR R R E R A BEEERAEE

A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

27 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASHAND CASH 27 ZRHBEURKRERFESEEY

EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

e —T-NF
t=A=+t—-B +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARETTT

Restricted cash

— Restricted for project developments
— Restricted under escrow account for

XRHRE

— RHIRERER 1,986 2,665
— RENFERP THRE

investments - 20,063
— Deposits as security for property — EBERLIBERNERER
purchasers’ mortgage loans 26,202 167,932
— Pledged for the Group’s bank borrowings — — {E /&7 B3R 1T & Zah 15 37
(note 29) (FF5E29) 70,141 61,240
— Others — Hfth 23,078 3,871
121,407 255,771
Cash and cash equivalents BWERBESEEY 5,131,678 4,504,393
The carrying amounts of restricted cash and cash and cash ZREFEUARBE RRSFE YR REER

equivalents approximate their fair values.

HARBERS -
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27 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH 27 ZRHBEESURBERBEEEY

EQUIVALENTS (continued) (%)
The carrying amounts of restricted cash and cash and cash ZRFBEARIRE MRS EEYHORAER
equivalents were denominated in below currencies: AT EETIE :
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EIERF —T—hEF
+=A=+-8 +=A=t-H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREBT T
RMB AR¥E 3,925,760 3,375,829
us$ ey 1,306,175 1,376,840
HK$ BT 21,150 7,495
5,253,085 4,760,164
Cash and cash equivalents held in Mainland China are subject to RPBEAMBEE 2R e MR SEBYMXINEE
exchange control regulations, which provide for restrictions on HIRBARE - ERREESE ARG (T
exporting capital out, other than through dividends. The cash BERE) - REMBHRERAERZERH K
balance included in the consolidated financial statements to He s AR 3,925,479,000 T (ZF— 1
which these restrictions apply is RMB3,925,479,000 (2019: F: AR¥3,356,969,0007T) °
RMB3,356,969,000).

BFgeERRAR/ —T-_TFFR @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28 FESERA KR HMESRK
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—E=®F  —TNF
t=A=+-8 +-A=t-H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Included in non-current liabilities: FTAFEREBIAE ¢
— Amounts due to related parties — FET AR 5 50R (B 5E38(b))
(note 38(b)) 1,687,307 1,424,133
— Warranty accrual — [EHREE R 76,533 60,646
— Other payables — HAM eI 8,022 10,652
1,771,862 1,495,431
Included in current liabilities: FFAREBEE :
— Amounts due to related parties — FET AR 5 50R (I 5E38(b))
(note 38(b)) 6,024,107 3,740,877
— Payables for construction materials — AN TR N RIS 8
and services 1,556,954 1,441,141
— Deposits received from rental and — HERTIRERBEE WiEZE
construction services 454,127 251,642
— Interest payable — ENFE 267,287 219,137
— Amounts due to non-controlling — FEASEIE S M RE R TR (a)
interests (a) 259,837 215,611
— Accruals for staff costs — BB TEA 255,693 234,786
— VAT and other tax payables — 1%(EF K H At fEN R IR 247,359 423,616
— Dividend payable — EREE 161,222 28,994
— Fundings from third parties (o) —RBE=FEZ D) 138,854 532,600
— Consideration payables (c) — FERHRAE (o) 27,676 57,144
— Notes payables — ENZERE 8,168 29,121
— Other payables — HAM Ik 116,887 17,057
9,518,171 7,191,726
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28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(@)

As of 31 December 2020, amounts due to non-controlling interests include
RMB224,009,000 bearing interest at 4.65% per annum and the remaining
amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2019, amounts due to non-controlling interests include
RMB214,611,000 bearing interest at 4.65% per annum and the remaining
amounts are interest-free.

All amounts due to non-controlling interests are unsecured.

As of 31 December 2020, all fundings from third parties are interest free and
unsecured.

As of 31 December 2020, consideration payables are mainly related to
payables for acquisition of investments, of which RMB14,626,000 was due
to the former shareholder of EERASAE B BR A & (Wuhan Langhong Real
Estate Co., Ltd.).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of trade and
other payables approximate their fair values.

28 BAIRAR

(@)

J -

H At FE 3K

REZB-ZHE+-A=+—H  ENEEHEEs
FIHBIELAFHI X 4.65% =t 589 A R 224,009,000
T BTHRIBEMEE

K (&)

R-ZT—NE+=A=+—8 ' EAIEEHEERS
HRIBBIELAFEFIE 4.65% 5+ S8 AR 214,611,000
7T BRI RIEAIR S ©

GRSV ANE =2t e S b e bl kSR i

R_F_BE+_A=1+—H KEEF=HEELW

P& IR A% 8 REER o
RZE-ZE+-_A=+—H ENREIESR

WHER AR BN - EF AR 14,626,000 7T FE
RERABLE X HMRA A RIARER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
As at balance sheet date, the aging analysis of the payables for
construction materials and services based on invoice date is as

follows:

&

BRI R DT

31 December

28 ENERAREMESRE)
AEBE - RIERE B AR TRYR R AR

31 December

2020 2019

—EIERF —T—hEF

+=BA=+—-H +=ZRA=+—8H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARET T

Less than one year LRAR—F 885,351 1,072,550
One to two years —ZEWE 497,393 315,666
Two to three years ME=F 153,504 49,179
Over three years =FE 20,706 3,746
1,556,954 1,441,141

As at balance sheet date, the carrying amounts of trade and
other payables were denominated in below currencies:

2

FIEHEHE

—

31 December

PAEE R - A BRRRNE B A5 SR B0 BR TE (B A

31 December

2020 2019

. —T-hEF

+=ZA=+—8 +=—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFIT

RMB AR 10,290,856 8,099,846
uss$ ETT 892,796 571,665
HKS BT 106,381 15,646
11,290,033 8,687,157
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29 BORROWINGS

29 A

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
—2-2%+-A=t-H “E-NEFt+-A=+—-R
Current Non-current Current Non-current
RE FRE & FRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TR ARETTT AREBTT

Secured yeRiwi
— Bank borrowings (a) — RITER (@) 720,385 1,376,770 656,796 1,133,048
— Loans from other financial — REEMSFIEERN
institutions (e) N - - 231,806 289,000
Total secured borrowings B RET Az 720,385 1,376,770 888,602 1,422,948
Unsecured E S
— Bank borrowings (a) — RITER () 10,000 27,833 - -
— Senior notes 2018 - - \FEAFE - - 1,415,837 =
— Senior notes 2019 (c) - E-NEBELEEE() 4,141 1,287,542 - 1,368,212
— Senior notes 2020 (c) - —ZEFERERK() 62,180 1,271,611 = =
— Loans from the ultimate — REFEER AR
controlling company (b) B3 (o) - 917,577 - 917,577
— EB-5 loans and contributions — EB-5E7 X EB-5
from EB-5 investors(d) REANHET () - 815,553 - 907,964
— Loans from other financial — REEMEFHEEN
institutions (e) B3 (e 60,000 - 40,000 -
Total unsecured borrowings EIRE R R 136,321 4,320,116 1,455,837 3,193,753
Total borrowings B ez 856,706 5,696,886 2,344,439 4,616,701
Borrowings carry interest ranging from 0.10% to 10.75% (2019: BRIZFEFENT0.10% £10.75% (ZZF— N,

0.10% to 11.70%) per annum.

F:010% E11.70%) 51 & °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

29 BORROWINGS (Continued) 29 & (#)
At end of reporting period, the carrying amounts of borrowings RIBEEKR - ERHEEEI N E8HE :

were denominated in the following currencies:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—F-FHF —FTNF
t=A=t—-B +-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBT T

RMB AR 1,552,193 2,239,283
US$ eI 5,001,399 4,488,949
HK$ BT - 232,908
6,553,592 6,961,140
The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows as at each RELEER  AEBEFERTHIREES

balance sheet date:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—F-BF R
t=A=+—-B +=A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARET T

Within one year —FR 856,706 2,344,439
Between one and two years —EMF 3,000,814 1,913,374
Between two and five years MERF 1,896,831 1,812,805
Over five years HEMNE 799,241 890,522

6,553,592 6,961,140
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29 BORROWINGS (continued)

(A) Bank borrowings are secured by:

(B)

U

(i)

(i)

(vi)

restricted cash with carrying amount of
RMB70,141,000 (2019: RMB61,240,000) (note 27);

properties under development with carrying amount
of RMB4,419,430,000(2019: RMBS3,689,987,000)
(note 24);

guarantee provided by the ultimate controlling
company;

equity interest of certain subsidiaries of the Group
(note 41);

property, plant and equipment with carrying amount
of RMB176,571,000 (2019: RMB186,234,000) (note
19);

equity interests and properties under development of
certain joint ventures’ subsidiaries of the Group (note
17).

Bank borrowings carry interest ranging from 3.61% to
8.60% (2019: 3.61% to 8.60%) per annum.

THE LOANS FROM THE ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING COMPANY
The loan from the ultimate controlling company is

unsecured and carry interest is 5.65% (2019: 5.65%) per

annum.

29 & (#)
(A) BRITIEZUA TR BEELFRER -

(B)

() BREEAARY70,141,0007T(=
T — % AR¥61,240,0007T)
KR BIIRE (MIFE27)

(i) BRMEA AR 4419,430,0007T
(Z T — AL F: AR K
3,689,987,000 7T ) HY [ 3% H 4 %
(FF5E24) :

(i) EERIERE A Al FTiR R ER

(v) ZAEBEETHEA R E (T
41) ;

v) BREEAARE176,571,0007T(=
T—N4F : AR 186,234,0007T)
RTNENE « TR MR (BIFE19) »

V) ANEEBETELLENMBLATN
Bt K F B R 2 (B RET7) ©

IRITEZIZFEFENT3.61% = 8.60%

—E—NE : 3.61% E8.60%)ET 5 o

RERKERATNER

RERKRERARNER BEEA I

BREFME565%(—F—NF :565%)
gﬂ»/%\ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

29 BORROWINGS (continued)

(€)

(D)

SENIOR NOTES

Senior notes 2018 issued by the Company were repaid on
25 April 2020. Senior notes 2019 issued by the Company
were listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited on 20 June 2019 and will mature on 20 June 2022,
with interest at 10.50% per annum paid semi-annually in
arrears. Senior notes 2020 issued by the Company were
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited on 21 January 2020 and will mature on 21 October
2022, with interest at 10.75% per annum paid semi-
annually in arrears. All senior notes are guaranteed by
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

At any time, the Company will be entitled at its option to
redeem the senior notes in whole but not in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the senior notes redeemed plus the applicable premium as
of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not
including), the redemption date.

At any time and from time to time the Company may
redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the
senior notes with the proceeds from sales of certain kinds
of capital stocks of the issuer at a redemption price of
110.5% of the principal amount of the senior notes
redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but
not including) the redemption date, subject to certain
conditions.

EB-5 LOANS AND CONTRIBUTIONS FROM
EB-5 INVESTORS

EB-5 Loans of RMB16,312,000(2019: RMB17,442,000)
represent loans from third parties and carry interest of
4.00%-6.00% (2019: 4.00%) per annum and are
guaranteed by Landsea Holdings Corporation, an indirect
subsidiary of the Company. The balance is repayable on 29
June 2023 (2019:29 June 2023).
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29 BFK (&)

(€)

(D)

BEARE
ARRABITHN_ZT—\FERLZER=
T_EFNMA-F+RBEE AQEE
T NFREEBER_ZT—NF
NAZTERFINEBFRZMERA
AlEm YR ZTEZ=ZFA=+H
B H - B FIRF A E10.50% % 7
B RABBRITH _ZE_ZEFELER
RZZEZZTF—AZ+—ARFMNEE
ERGMBRAF LM WHKRZZF
“—F+A-+—RIH BIFERE
FEA10.75% ZAHFE - FTEBEREY
AR TS THEBRREER -

AR B HERE R 12 I [ 2 50 (T JEED
7)) BAERE  BREASNEXRELR
TE100% = NEBZETEHEEE A
HSE PR B DA R FERT BRI FLR (20 e

ARRRABER M ARAHEERITAETT
BEERANMERRBELELEREAS
HERZ35%  BEEMFNAERE
REBAEFE1105% B MEEETEFE
BOE MRS RANAE(E) -
ARETIRIERTRIR -

EB-5EX KR EB-5KREAHER

8 A ARE16,312,000L( =T — A,
F: AR¥17,442,0007T) HEB-5 &3
EBRAB=ZFNER  FHEE4.00%-
6.00%( = T — Nl F :4.00%) I A
Landsea Holdings Corporation (Zx 2 &) &
EWBARDER BHANR-Z=_=F
NAZTHB(ZE—NEF: —_T-_=F
NAZTARA)EE-



29 BORROWINGS (continued)
(D) EB-5 LOANS AND CONTRIBUTIONS FROM

(E)

(F)

EB-5 INVESTORS (Continued)

Contributions from EB-5 investors with the amount of
RMB799,241,000 was accounted for as financial liability.
The Group may, in its sole and absolute discretion, to avoid
repayments to EB-5 investors until 25th anniversary from
the fund establishment day. The financial liability bears
effective interest ranging from 0.1% to 1.0% (2019: 0.1%
to 1.0%) per annum.

LOANS FROM OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

Loans from other financial institutions carry interest from
8.00% to 8.70% (2019: 8.00% to 11.70%) per annum. The
balances are repayable from 16 November 2021 to 26
December 2021.(2019: 28 September 2020 to 19
December 2021).

Loans from other financial institutions are secured by:

(i) properties under development with carrying amount
of Nil (2019: RMB366,096,000) (note 24);

(i) investment properties of the Group with carrying
amount of Nil (2019: RMB77,640,000) (note 18);

(i) guarantee provided by Nanjing Langming Properties
Group Limited (“Nanjing Langming”), an indirect
subsidiary of the Company.

Fair values of the borrowings are not materiality different to
the carrying amounts, since either the interests on those
borrowings are close to current market rates or borrowings
are of a short-term nature.

29 & (#)

(D) EB-5E X REB-5RE A HERK

(E)

(F)

(&

EB-51% & A il & XA R # 799,241,000
TARIIESRBE  NEEAI 2R
BRERPERTEBSREA  HEH
S BEIfERTE 25 BE AL - A
BEREBRFANENT01%ZE1.0%(=F
—NE 01%E1.0%) 518 o

REHMSHBBHNER

KB HA S RSN EFIRFE R RN T
8.00% £8.70% (= ZF — L : 8.00% &
11.70%) 5T B BB AR T = —F
+—ABAt+ X "BE-_ZE-_—F+=A
—t+RB(ZE—NF: —E-FFNA
—t+NRE=ZE=—F+=A+hB)E

o

pi

KEHEMSREBHOERATIERAE
AR

() BEEAZE(ZE—NE: ARK
366,096,000 7t ) #Y 7 2% /B ) 2 (B
X04)

iy AEEEEEAZS(ZZE—hL%:
AR 77,640,0007T) IR E LY
% (fFzx18)

(i) AT EEME AR E R E
SEARAR ([FEREAK]) FiEH
FPELR -

ERNAREBEEEREMELEERE

Bl RRSZEEFINANELERNTS
M= - HEREHRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 EELEFEH

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The net amounts are as follows:

BEEAEARNMITRNSIR AN IREERR
BEREAGEERE - BREMRSHERE—MIK
We AR REEMEREEEABIRE
o FEWT

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
e —T-NF
t=A=+t—-B +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARETTT

Deferred income tax liabilities to be BN —EREHERLEMSH
settled after one year afE
Deferred income tax assets: BEEFTBREE
— to be recovered within one year — B —FE Rk E
— to be recovered after one year — BR—F gD
Deferred income tax assets, net RIEFTIS R & ) F 58

As at 31 December 2020, deferred income tax assets were offset
against deferred income tax liabilities with the amount of
RMB73,266,000 (2019: RMB94,709,000).
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160,761 169,120

31,377 161,867
536,523 346,117
567,900 507,984
407,139 338,864

RZE-FF+-_A=+—08 BEMEHE
EEREELER S8 E AR 73,266,000 7T
—E—NF AR¥94,709,0007T) °



30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 RIEFAEH (2

The movements in deferred income tax, net are as follows: EEFTSEUFREEE M T ¢
For the For the
year ended year ended

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-Z-ZF HE_ZNF
+=A=+—-H8 +=ZRA=+—8H

EFE HFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

At 1 January R—H—H 338,864 227,308
Credited to profit or loss (note 11) EEmEe (FEE11)

— Continuing operations — BECEER 5,308 141,870
Credited to profit or loss EEmER

— Discontinued operation — BRIEERS - 84,163
Charged to other comprehensive income TEEAth 2 A 2 8

— Transfer from property, plant and — BTEE - T E&EEYE

equipment to investment properties ZREMYE - (461)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HENE AR (MFE37) 68,915 (103,065)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BERT B 2 7 - (15,017)
Currency translation differences BEBREES (5,948) 4,066
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—8H 407,139 338,864
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 EEFFERH &)
The movements in the deferred income tax liabilities, prior to WHEAREEFTSHAaEEEnT

offsetting, are as follows:

Changein
fair value
of identified
Revaluation ~Differencein  Accelerated  Unrealized Re-  assets upon Unearned
ofinvestment  capitalized tax exchange measurement  acquisition interest
properties interests  depreciation gains gain of subsidiaries income Others Total
WENEA RS
K&t &xf IR FERI-( RER

PRER  FIEZE NBHERE  EXFR ENTEAS QAEER® 0 FEME At &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETn  ARBTr  ARMTR  ARKTn  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2019 RZZ-h4-F-H 63,171 61,372 4214 36,421 28,082 32,5713 = 415 226,248

Chargedi(Credited) to profitorloss ~ ZEIE 36/ (%)

(note 11) (FizE11) 4880 (4.261) 767 (16,759 (12311) (46,233 39,455 15,925 (17,531)
Charged to other comprehensive  FEE AR ENE
income
— Transfer fom property, plant~~~ — BABIE + TR
and equipment to investment REERE
property REENE 461 = = = = = = = 461
Acquistion of subsictaries WEHB A = = = = = 55,364 = = 55,364
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAA - - - - - - - - -
Curency rensigion diferences ~ EEBEEE - (110) - ] = = = = 13
At31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-A=t-H 68,512 56,401 4,981 20,665 15,771 41,704 39465 16,340 263,829
At January 2020 RZBZTE-H-H 68,512 56,401 4,981 20,665 15,711 41,704 30,455 16,340 263,829

Charged/(Credited) to profit or loss Eﬁﬁiiﬁ/ (#%)

(note 11) (FizE11) 2,882 (3,008) 6,692 (20421) (4731) (654 37,887 5,905 44552
Disposal of subsiciaries (ote 37)  HEMBAR (B 37) (68,915) - - - - - - - (68915)
Currency tranglation diferences ~ SHHMEZE - (3,654) (682) (244) - - - (859) (5,439)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FF

+-A=+-A DAY 49,739 10,991 - 11,040 41,050 342 20386 234027
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 EIEFFEBFH (&)
The movements in the deferred income tax assets, prior to WEARREFSHEEZEWT
offsetting, are as follows:

Temporary Temporary
difference on difference on
unrealized recognition  Provision for
profit of of revenues  bad debt and
intercompany and cost accrued
transactions Tax losses of sales expenses Others Total
DAERZH BAWAR
RERFBN HEEAN BRI
ERER REEE ERER BRRA Hit st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  AR%TR

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF-A—H 113,637 102,908 73,248 161,031 2,732 453,566

Credited/(Charged) to proftorloss ~ 7EiEz#E4 /()

Continuing operations RELEEE 9,922 77,061 23,137 15,232 (1,013) 124,339

Discontinuing operations BRIEER - 84,163 - - - 84,163
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR (6,602) (96,314) = (22) (127) (103,065)
Acquisition of subsidliaries KB AR - - 40,171 27 149 40,347
Currency translation differences EHREES - 632 = 2,721 = 3,353
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-hE+-A=t+-H 116,957 168,450 136,556 178,989 1,741 602,693
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-Z5—F—H 116,957 168,450 136,556 178,989 1,741 602,693

(Charged)/Credited to profitor loss 182 (2 #4) /&

Continuing operations (note 11) B %R (M 11) (56,676) 7794 (181,025) 159,543 m 49,860
Currency translation differences EHmEES - (40) - (11,347) - (11,387)
At 31 December 2020 RZB-ZE+-A=+—-H 60,281 246,351 5,531 327,185 1,818 641,166
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

31 SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORIZED SHARES
The Company has authorized shares of 6,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each as at 1 January 2019, 1 January 2020 and 31

31 B
ETE R 7
AARRZ=ZZE—h&E—A—H "
A—BR=-ZZE-_FF+=-HA=+—HAE

—E-TE—

—= =

December 2020. 6,000,000,000 A% & i [ 18.0.01 7 JT B A FE AR
e
Issued shares E#1TR 7
Nominal Equivalent
Number value nominal value
of ordinary of ordinary of ordinary
shares shares shares
ZBER
ZEREE EEREE LHHE
'000 HK$’000 RMB’000
T FAT AREFIT
Issued and fully paid: BETRARE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SR EE0.017 & L iRA%
Opening balance as at RZE_ZTF—-HA—HH
1 January 2020 FHEER 4,722,307 47,223 38,702
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
+—HA=+—H 4,722,307 47,223 38,702

SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE
AWARD SCHEME
(A) SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual

32

general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2012, the
current share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no
further options can be granted under the old scheme.
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32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continued)
(A) SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

32 R0 H R I PR 1 IR 40 2R B 5t &
(%)

(A) BRADHARE (&)

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and reward to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the directors
(including executive and non-executive directors), other
employees, suppliers, customers, person or entity providing
research, development and other technical support,
investee entity and any professional advisor and business
consultant of the Group from time to time determined by
the directors as having contributed or who may contribute
to the development and growth of the Group. The Scheme
is effective on 30 April 2012 and unless otherwise
terminated, remains in force for 10 years from that date.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of adoption.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each participant
including both exercised and unexercised options under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of grant.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted under any
share option schemes of the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

ARBRILZTE > B ER RN
BAEEXBRINGERSEE -
AEMAER2EERRES (BRAT
FOFRITER)  HitfER - HER - &
P R R E M SR AT
B REHREBUARAEE TR
EREXEREEETER (EERAHA
SEBRLIERZEHAEIEL TR
F)  ZAER_E-—_FWA=1+H4E
M MERFEAEMIT NE L - BRIEE
ZEE10FHEABR

BrIEEAR DRI ELE - BRIATER
Z T B AR R B ER AN HY (] E AR 1 HR
EETEE TREMFARDEEmMA T
BITHIRMD RS - TSBAAR ANIE
A EIE TR AY 10% ©

BRIFEA R R RRILE - PMER+ 1A
ABE S2EERZFERARAR
A B A f] EL A B £ B 1 B R B9 AL AD
HiRE (BRRTITEE R RTTHE) TR -
BEBITESTERITHARR M AR
TREBEARRNE LB HAEHETERN
1% ° ANHE — FIRH R B D BB S iy
B E B EEmL LR - BAERRAE L
BERCRALE -

R ITE 3% % AT 8 AN B 9 (T E A FF
Z DR BREARTTENRA RO HED
ATRTHNRNEE  TREBETKD
BITIRIDHI30% ° NI AR HAfE S 8
HEEEt ER - BITFREA LR FMER
Pt BRE Rt 8UHR th B dn A -
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is a proposed
grantee of the share options). In addition, any share options
granted to substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value
(based on the official closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval
in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme and the terms of grant which shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
the SEHK on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the SEHK for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
grant. The subscription price will be determined by the
board of directors at the time the option is offered to the
participants.

The scheme limit under the Scheme is 198,660,605
shares, representing 10.0% of the issued share capital of
the Company on 25 April 2012, being the adoption date of
the Scheme and approximately 4.21% of the issued share
capital of the Company on 19 June 2020, being the date of
the annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 32 RO HIENEPRHI MR EEBEFE
AWARD SCHEME (continued)

(A) SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) (A) FRDHIRE (&)

MARAIESE  THARKEERFXK
BETMBHEATELDRDERE KA
BEENIENTES (TEEEABERGD
HREEZERANBLIENTES) NS
R o BEAN - MEE R+ =@ A 2
MARAREEZRREBILIFRITEE K
1% S E T e B8 A 3% B0 (R (] AR 1) B e
MBAQREMEMEZETRMDH
01%  KBEREAARDBRMRIFTLA
HE IE AW TR B 5T &) #838 5,000,000 74
T AIMBEIRERR IR RS EELH
7 o

BREBROBENENHRZENE AR
21 BARRTEES - EARARAINA
HFIETHBENRE - R0 B A
TNEB10F A - B D BHE Al %t 8lH
fERFR R B BRSRTT I ©

RITEE R B T TN AR R,
NRBETFERATIERHEEH
B () AARBMHREGL A BEESH
RN E R RERATOKTE - (i)
ARRABBNREZRFE L B BRI A EZE
REFEMIAELNEARERAT
IR EFEE « K i) ARF RO KR
HEBHNEE - EZR/BNASEER
2R B EE R B(E

B Z 5T &8 - 5T 3 L BR & 198,660,605
BB HERARARR-_Z—=—FWA
Z+AHA(BZTEERMB H) BT
EAEI10.0% RARRIRZZE T F -
ATHhB(EIRRBAFASHE) B8
BEA494.21% o



32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (Continued)
(A) SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
The Scheme
There was no outstanding share option under the Scheme
as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
On 2 July 2014, the Group adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive to recognize
the contributions by employees and to give incentives in
order to retain them for the continuing operation and
development of the Group, as well as to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, existing shares of
the Company will be purchased or new shares will be
subscribed for restricted shares (“Restricted Shares”) by a
trustee appointed by the Company and be held on trust for
the relevant grantees until such shares are vested with the
relevant grantees in accordance with the rules of the Share
Award Scheme. The Restricted Shares will be awarded
with reference to the performance, operating and financial
targets and other criteria determined by the Board from
time to time.

32 %17 HARE % PR &l M AR 19 3R B ot &
(%)
(A) BRinHARE (&)
Zat 2
RZZEZZF+_A=1+—HBERZZ
—NETZA=1+—8 ' % TIE
B ARITHE AR 1 AR o

(B) BRAIME R (7 58 3t 8
R-F-—MELAZA  RAEBRABR
5 MBI I3 R ) - (R 2
RVAASE 3R B FTE LI R - RS
BHEAREENEEEERREN T
B W AAEEE—SBRRIEA
AT o

BRI RN T &) - NARIPARENR
FEARIEE AR RIRA A SR ME R
0 Ve RBR B R A (TR HIER D 1) - I
NERTARBEAEARARE  EEF
BRI RIR A (0 22 Rt BV AR IR B X
HEARARLE REEEROHBESEE
FRTEEBETNRE  KRERVHKERF
AR EABIRE T AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (Continued)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(Continued)
(i) The movements of shares held for Share Award

32 R0 H R I PR 1 R 40 52 B 5t &

(%)

(B) PRAFIMERR{DERBETE (&)

)  RFEARBL EZEE Bl A AR

Scheme by the trustee are as follows: EEIR :
For the year ended For the year ended
Restricted Shares PR 4114 A% 12 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
HE-Z-ZF BE_Z—NF
+-A=+-HLEE +ZA=+—RHILtEFE
Employee Employee
Number of share trust Number of share trust
shares reserve shares reserve
EER T EERH
REE EtE B A EtEE
’000 RMB’000 '000 RMB’000
T’ AR¥ETR T ARBTIT
At 1 January KR—H—H 96,954 62,151 73,396 42,970
Acquisition of shares Yeish 33,664 22,075 37,679 32,017
Dividends received (a) B (a) - (1,791) = (2,869)
Transferred to employees EREES - - (14,121) (9,973)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 130,618 82,435 96,954 62,151
(@) Dividends of granted Restricted Shares received by the (@) ZEE AMCERE 3 IR I AR O AR B

trustee are payable when these shares are transferred to the
relevant grantees. Other dividends received by the trustee
become part of the trust fund and are treated as a deduction
of employee share trust reserve.
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32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 32 j% 17 HA # &2 PR & M IR 19 28 B 51 &l

AWARD SCHEME (continued) (%)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (B) FREIMR MBS (&)
(Continued)
(i)  Movement of share-based compensation reserve is (i) PREEmRBEEESOT
as follows:
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-Z-ZF BE_TNF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
IEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREEFTT
At 1 January n—HA—H 725 9,834
Employee share based payment DHERIE B AR AR
expenses recognized HRAX 10,861 -
Transferred to employees EEERE - (9,109)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 11,586 725
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 32 j% 17 HA # X2 PR & M IR 19 28 @ 51 &l

AWARD SCHEME (continued)

(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, 94,600,000 shares of restricted
shares, with market price of HK$0.81 per share, were
granted to certain employees of the Group according to the
rules of the Share Award Scheme adopted on 2 July 2014,
among which, 61,600,000 shares (“Gift Shares”) were
granted for free, another 33,000,000 shares (“Discount
Shares”) were granted at a cash consideration of HK$0.66
per share. Discount Shares were fully vested as at the grant
date and will be transferred to the grantee at the date of 5
years after grant, Gift Shares can only be vested while the
grantee serves the Group continuously for 5 years since the
grant date and Gift Shares will be transferred to the grantee
upon vesting. Share-based payment expenses at the
amount of HK$12,216,000 (equivalent to RMB10,861,000)
were recognized as staff costs and share based
compensation reserve respectively for the year ended 31
December 2020. As at 31 December 2020, cash
consideration at the amount of HK$15,094,000 (equivalent
to RMB183,805,000) received from Discount Shares
grantees were recognized as other reserve, the remaining

cash consideration has not yet been received.
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(B) PRAFIMERR{DERBETE (&)

R-ZE-_ZTFE=FA=+—H BERER
—T-NE+ A = BERAB KD ERE
BRAMAEERE TREREED
94,600,000 A% BR #ll e A% 15 - B BT’
0.817 T © H & » 61,600,000 0% ([ & g
&t ) e BERE - 545133,000,000 %
B ([ &R (D 1) THiRIR £ (B FAR0.66
BILEL - HERMUNELBAHL2ES
B UHEREHERTE A#ETER
A EBERMDEATREARABRL A
REETFANSERERBESESH
B mERROENEBRERETAR
A BEZZ-_EF+-_A=+—HI1t
FE UBROHAEBRMNZRAX
12,216,000 T( # & N A B %
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32 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 32 RO HI#ERIE$I M IR G ZE B 2
AWARD SCHEME (continued) (%)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (B) PR&IMM G BB & ()
(Continued)

Details of the Restricted Shares granted by the Company AR BFTIR R SR D BT ¢

are as follows:

Outstanding at Granted Outstanding at
1 January during Transferred Forfeited 31 December
Name of employees 2020 theyear  during the year  during the year 2020
R-B-BF R-B-BF
-A-H TZA=t-H
BERS HRTE FRRH FREB ERrRl HRTE
Directors Bz
Huang Zheng (appointed on BT(M-ZE-F
19 June 2020) NATHBEZM) - 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
Jiang Chao (appointed on BB(N-2-%F
19 June 2020) NATHBEZM) - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
- 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000
Other employees HitES
In aggregate =t 1,289,750 64,600,000 - (1,800,000) 64,089,750
1,289,750 94,600,000 - (1,800,000) 94,089,750
Qutstanding at QOutstanding at
1 January Granted Transferred Cancelled 31 December
Name of employees 2019 duingtheyear ~ duringtheyear  during the year 2019
iy 3 RZE—N%
—A-A +-A=1-A
EEfE HATHR ERRIL EREY FRH HATR
Directors EZ
Tian Ming sz 1,681,500 - (1,681,500) - -
Wang Le (resigned on TRR=Z-NF
30 August 2019) NA=THEE) 796,500 = (796,500) = =
Shen Leying L 1,150,500 - (1,150,500) - -
Xie Yuanjian HEE 973,500 - (973,500) - -
Zhou Qin I5E] 885,000 - (885,000) = -
5,487,000 - (5,487,000) - -
Other employees HitES
In aggregate @t 13,463,500 - (8,633,750) (3,540,000) 1,289,750
18,950,500 - (14,120,750) (8,540,000) 1,289,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—_ZT—=

33 RESERVES

F+-A=t+—HLFE

33 f#fE

Revaluation
gain onthe
property
transferring
from property,
plant and
Share based Capital equipment to
Merger Share  Translation compensation ~ Employee  redemption  Statutory Contributed ~investment ~ Retained
feserve  premium reserve reserve  share trust reserve reserve  Other reserve surplus  properties eamings Total
BREE
TRR
REane
g [E8 &R AR
AR RDEE FEEE  BMEE  RGGE  BOEE  ARRE  AMER  TAER NRERIG  2RMG &
Note RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB'0OO0  RMB'0O0  RMB000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wit ARBTT ARETn ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RZE-E%-A-8 (83,396) 824,366 (304,715 725 (62,151) 23,185 339,738 24,426 155,619 15808 4,326,301 5,259,996
Profit for the year EENE - - - - - - - - - - (100572  (100572)
Other comprehensive income: Eft2 W :
Exchange difference arising from & B/ EREE S
translation of foreign operations  [E ¥ £ - - 129301 - - - - - - - - 129301
Total comprehensive FRAENELE
income for the year - - 129,391 - - - - - - - (100,572) 28,819
Movement of employee share ~ (EERIFEEEFEH
trust account 32(b) - - - - (20,284) - - - - - - (20,284)
Employee share based (S RERH
compensation 32(0) - - - 10,861 - - - 13,805 - - - 24,666
Dividend declred toordinary B BBRBRRE RS
shareholder 13 - - - - - - - - (351,589) - - (351,589)
Transfer of sharepremimto VA EERZEL RS
contriouted surplus ) - (800,000) - - - - - - 800,000 - - -
Transaction with non-controling - E3EERERHR 5
interest 34 - - - - - - - 3170 - - - 3,170
Appropriation of statutory ARBERER
resenve @ - - - - - 122,253 - - - (122,259) -
At 31 December 2020 WoB-gE
+-A=t-H (83,396) 24366 (175,324) 11,586 (82,435) 23,185 461,991 41,401 604,036 15808  4,103476 4,944,784
At1 January 2019 W-2-15-A-R (833%6) 824366 (248,734 9,834 (42970) 23185 269,565 24420 337,347 14515 3224531 4352669
Profit for the year FERNE = = = = - - - - - - T3 1,171,948
Other comprehensive income: Eft2 7l :
Revaluation gain on the property EAEIE - THR:kME
tansfering flom property,  EBEREENEL
plant and equipment to nEEHHE
investment properties - - - - - - - - - 1,383 - 1,383
Exchange difference arising flom & E5NEREE S
translation of foreign operations  [E ¥ £ - - (65,981) - - - - - - - - (55,981)
Total comprehensive FRAENELE
income for the year - - (65,981) - - - - - - 1383 1171943 1,117,345
Shares held for Share Award — iikf S BE A
Scheme R 2 - - - - (915 - - - - = - 91
Employee share based (S RESH
compensation 32(0) - - - (9,109 9978 - - - (864) - - -
Dividend declared to ordinary ~ FIEBRBEREERS
shareholder 13 - - - - - - - - (180,864) - - (180,864
Transfer to statutory resernve. ~ EREETERE ¢] - - - - - - 70173 = = -0 =
At31 December 2019 RZB-NE
tZA=t+-R (83,396) 824366 (304,715 725 (62,151) 23,185 339,738 24426 155,619 15898 4326301  5,259,99%
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33 RESERVES (Continued)

(@)

In accordance with the Laws of Mainland China on
Enterprises Operated Exclusively with Foreign Capital and
the Articles of Association of the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Mainland China, an appropriation to
statutory reserves has to be made prior to profit distribution
to the owners. The appropriation to statutory reserve of
these foreign investment enterprises shall be no less than
10% of the net profit until the accumulated appropriation
exceeds 50% of the registered capital.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 19 June 2020, an amount of
RMB800,000,000 was transferred from the share premium
account to the contributed surplus account. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company may make
distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

34 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

33 f#fE@

@ BEFRABIINEBECEEIRETEER
A e B 7 3 7 A ST O B B R R R AR A
B2 mEE AEHFESIKA
BHETREELOR - ZSHNELE
DEEEATHENSETE LR
10% BEZRFHEBBITMELRD
50% & 1E °

) WRER=ZZ_FTFAT+NLBRITHR
RBEAFRAERABHNAER AR
800,000,000 T E RN R BEREREE
HMAEBRE - BRBEERE—NN\—FAQF
% RERIARETERATEEMRBERM
HRFELDIR

34 FFEFIMERES

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

BE-Z-ZF BE2-Z—NF

+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H

LEE IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREETTT

At 1 January n—HA—H 805,533 377,340
Profit for the year FERE 133,163 326,191
Acquisition of subsidiaries W HERT B A A - 104,153
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HENB AR (MFES7) (103,709) (2,693
Acquisition of non-controlling interests (a) W B FE 2 1) 1 2% () (146,027) (4,799)
Contribution from non-controlling interests JEfEH S T E 1,360 2,424
Distribution to non-controlling interests ) FE4E ) 1k A 2 20 I (176,294) -
Exchange differences bE 5 =5 (2,373) 2,913
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—8H 511,653 805,533
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

34 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

(@  On 18 December 2020, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement to acquire additional interests in Nanjing
Xinhuisheng Investment Management Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing
Xinhuisheng”). Upon completion of the transaction, Nanjing
Xinhuisheng became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group. The Group recognized a decrease in non-controlling
interests of RMB146,027,000 and an increase in other

reserves of RMB3,170,000.

35 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

34 FFiEFIMERE)

35 HEREER

@ RNR-TE-_ZTFE+-_A+/\B > NEEFT
SRR E G AR R RS E KRR
BEEEERAR([FARBER]) MTEIN
B RRHTERE  BRBEERKA
AEENZ2EMB AR - NEBEERIE
2 ) 14 2508 2 A R 85 146,027,000 7T
N E A A LS o A R 3,170,000 °

(A) CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (A) RERBRSE
Recondiliation of profit before income tax to cash generated BRETSF AT EELC LSRR
from operations is as follows: LU
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Bz HZ
bt 222 —FENF
+=B=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—8H
IEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AREEFTT
Profit before income tax from: BRETISRLATAER A -
Continued operations SIBICEETE 521,739 2,081,838
Discontinued operation BRIEER - (106,930)
Gain on disposal of the discontinued HE B RIEEBFIE
operations - 37,047
521,739 2,011,955
Adjustments for: FHE
Interest income (note 7) F 2 Wz (MEEE7) (129,539) (168,993)
Depreciation of property, plant and THE  TRERENITE
equipment (note 19) (FFzE19) 31,100 25,570
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (note 20) {3 FA4E & & B0 84 (M 2X 20) 19,491 22,689
Fair value gain on investment properties KEEMENRAEBENE
(note 18) (Hf7£18) (80,790) (28,159)
Interest expense PSR=g=2) 480,607 593,698
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 8, 37) HEM B A FKFE (MzE8 - 37) (193,944) (63,084)
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35 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 35 REREBER ()

(A) CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (A REFBEEE)
(Continued)
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE =
—g=®FE T NF
t=A=+-8 t-A=t-*H
LEE LLFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR¥ETTT

Share of net profit of associates (note 16)  fE{L B A BIEFE (FizE 16) (452,771) (651,501)
Elimination of transactions with associates 2B 4 1\ &) ¥ $532 5 (i 5E 16)

(note 16) 11,812 19,428
Share of net (profit)/loss of joint ventures ~ fE(L & & 25% (F158),Ei8

(note 17) (H3E17) (242,902) 20,396
Elimination of transactions with HEEPEHER S (MHFE17)

joint ventures (note 17) 63,514 203,754
Employee share based compensation 1 B A& # R (P 32)

(note 32) 10,861 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEREE - TRAZRERER

equipment (note 8) (Bft3E8) 55 41
Gain on re-measurement of existing interest R EH B AT EHTER

in a joint venture upon conversion to a EEhERAERNFE

subsidiary (note 8) (fizE8) - (43,000
Provision for decline in the value of PR3 RIS VESHE M

properties under development and held BE T B (fisE22)

for sale (note 22) (594) 21,737
Gain on FVPL (note 8) BRARBEFABZHFEFIES) - (2,119)
Provision for impairment of financial assets % &l & B3 (E # s 381,184 84,625
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

35 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 35 REeERhEER &)

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020

(A) CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (A REFBEEE)
(Continued)
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BZE BHE
—ECEE —T-hEF
+=ZA=+—8 +ZA=1+—H
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETT
Operating profit before movements in EESEBHAMLEFE
working capital 419,823 2,047,045
Decrease in properties held for sale BIEHEMERL 53,934 7,556
Decrease in properties under development 8 2%/ #7 3£ 5 > 1,881,425 1,985,544
Decrease in inventories EfFERL 3,759 54,227
Increase in trade and other receivables, FEUGBR T N E A R UGN ~ TR
prepayments and deposits RIRE&Em (170,793) (932,342)
Increase in contract assets SHVEEEM (26,998) (37,064)
Increase in trade and other payables JFE {5 BR T K% HL fth A~ FR 1 11 3,382,276 236,738
Decrease in contract liabilities BREERD (2,957,402) (2,386,551)
Decrease in advanced proceeds received  [a]2F A WX B FE (S PTG OB
from lessees B (2,599) (13,950)
Decrease in restricted cash IR HIER 2 m 123,202 58,965
Operating profit after movements in working B 448 & & 8 8 1% #9458 % 7))
capital 2,706,627 1,020,168
Acquisition of assets and liabilities through 38U BE FT B A Tk & & &
acquisition of subsidiary aE - (316,672)
Net cash generated from operations R FrSH £ 55 2,706,627 703,496




35 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 35 BEREER®)

(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING (B) MEEEAFMELEEBENYHE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TREJNAEBREMETEAELARE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and e (BIEIRES NIEIRS &) F(E -
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing AR s EEANAEAENEBNL
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future SHReERERTEARME TSRS
cash flow will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated MENREeREARARELRE -
statements of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
Amounts
due to Amounts
non- due to
Lease controlling related
Borrowings liabilities interest parties Total
RS REAEBA
B HESE HREENE E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBETT ARETR
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-—NF—HA—H 7,024,595 5,093,702 410,045 5,713,361 18,241,693
Cash flows ReneE 423,433 (204,924)i)  (198,186)(i) 707,538()) 727,861
Acquisition — leases Wgg — HE - 32,387 = = 32,387
Cancellation — leases i — HE - (1,413) - = (1,413)
Increase from acquisition of R Ui B B B A ]
subsidiaries (note 36) 32 00 (Kt 3% 36) 1,312,086 = = - 1,312,086
Decrease from acquisiton of ~ EUKEEKTB AR M
subsidiaries Vo (659,858) - - (739,987)  (1,399,845)
Increase from disposal of HHERB AR
subsidiaries 0 = - - 105,599 105,599
Decrease from disposal of REERBATM
subsidiaries (note 37) W (HiEE37) (1,222,799)  (5,053,990) = (662,280)  (6,939,069)
Exchange difference arising BERINERELH
from translation of foreign BN =%
operations 60,389 1,146 — — 61,535
Accrual of interest FEZHF S 23,294 195,472 3,752 40,789 263,307
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+—A=+—H 6,961,140 62,380 215,611 5,165,010 12,404,141
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

35 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 35 HeREER #)
(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING (B) MEFBHMELABHNHIRE)

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Amounts
due to Amounts

non- due to
Lease controlling related

Borrowings liabilities interest parties Total
B gEES  EARBA

B HESE MEXENE A @t

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETE AREBTRT ARBTT ARETRL

As at 1 January 2020 RZZ-_ZF—-A—H 6,961,140 62,380 215611 5165010 12,404,141
Cash flows RenE 132,286 (23,893)(ii) 34,828(i) 2,642,675() 2,785,896
Acquisition — leases Wi — HE - 23,459 - = 23,459
Cancellation — leases i - HE = (4,766) = = (4,766)
Increase from acquisition of WeBE P B A BT

subsidiaries (note 36) 1200 (3 36) 18,300 = = = 18,300
Decrease from acquisition of WEEHT B A Al

subsidiaries (note 36) D (M3 36) = - - (266,838) (266,838)
Increase from disposal of HEH B A Bm

subsidiaries (note 37) 12 (K& 37) - - - 273,406 273,406
Decrease from disposal of HERBARM

subsidiaries (note 37) D (H3E37) (289,000) = = (32,847 (321,847)
Deduction of dividend received — HBREE &1\ B 2 YR8

from associate companies - - - (125,000) (125,000
Exchange difference arising BEBIIEBREEMN

from translation of foreign =R

operations (345,566) (2,886) - - (348,452
Accrual of interest FEAFIE 76,432 3,579 9,398 55,008 144,417
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZZF

+-A=+—8H 6,553,592 57,873 259,837 7,711,414 14,582,716
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35 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

U

(i)

(i)

The cash flows include financing cash outflow of
RMB666,216,000 (2019: cash inflow of
RMB291,137,000) and operating cash inflow of
RMB3,308,891,000 (2019: RMB1,029,153,000).

The cash flows include financing cash outflow of Nil
(2019: RMB178,000,000) and operating cash inflow
of RMB34,828,000 (2019: cash outflow of
RMB20,186,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, cash
payments for the interest portion of the lease liability
amounted to RMB3,579,000 (2019: RMB93,714,000)
and was included in the interest paid of operating
activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows,
while the principal element of lease payment
amounted RMB20,314,000 (2019: RMB111,210,000)
to was included in financing activities.

36 ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
On 15 January 2020, the Group acquired 100% equity

interest of GWH at a total consideration of
US$133,433,000 (equivalent to RMB919,032,000). After
the acquisition, GWH became a wholly owned subsidiary of

the Group.

On 17 December 2020, the Group acquired 99.9% equity
interest of a property development project (“Project Su

Zhou Liuyuan”) at a total consideration of
RMB121,633,500. After the acquisition, Project Su Zhou
Liuyuan became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

35 HEREER (&)
(B) MMEEZEBFIEEEENEIRE)

(i) BeneEeiEmiRent ARE
666,216,000 (ZF—NF : e
mA AR 291,137,000 70 ) K #&
20 & m A AR S3,308,891,000
T(Z T — L F: AR %
1,029,153,000 7T) °

iy FReneEcFEmEReRENZ(Z
Z—NF : AR¥178,000,0007T)
R4 38 & i i A R 34,828,000
T(ZZE—AF  BEREARKE
20,186,0007T) °

iy BE_Z-_FTFT-_H=T—HL
FE ifﬂ \E\Fﬂ EiSaNzF A N
AR 3,579,000t (ZZT— N
& AR¥03,714,00070) © 4
Afﬁéwéﬁﬂ\%%iﬁﬂmaﬁ
FE - mMEEMRNAESHES AR
# 20,314,000 C(ZZF — LF : A
R #111,210,0007T ) BI5t AR E
BB o

36 WEEKHE A A
(A) EBEH
R_E-_ZTF—A+HB A&EEKE
GWH ) 100% Az - #BX.& % 133,433,000
EL(HER ARK919,082,0007T) ° I
WHE%  GWH B AR BN ZEH B A
Ej °

RZEZZTF+ZA++tH ' AEEK
BWEZRBE((HNBREER DB
PINK E BRE A ARE
121,633,500 7T ° RUkfE% - &N B EIE
ERAAEENZENEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

36 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continueqd)

36 WEMEBLQE @)
(A) %(B&0tw)

Project
Su Zhou
Purchase consideration Liuyuan GWH Total
BERE HMEEEA GWH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREF T AREET T
— Cash consideration —BHeRE 121,634 905,257 1,026,891
— Consideration payable — ERKRE - 13,775 13,775
— Interest in associates before  — UrBE AR BEZ A B]HY
acquisition Eam 50 - 50
Total consideration BRE 121,684 919,032 1,040,716
The assets and liabilities recognized as a result of the EWEmMERZNEELRABNT :
acquisition are as follows:
Project
Su Zhou
Liuyuan GWH Total
HMEBEEE GWH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFIT AREF T AREET T
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFSEEY 671 20,005 20,676
Trade and other receivables, P S AR R LAt R MR
prepayments and deposits BN R kIZE 282,814 14,477 297,291
Properties under development — BiZ¥rR 3 - 822,834 822,834
Properties held for sale HEIHE S 71,895 - 71,895
Property, plant and equipment — NEhZE « T MR E 37 211 248
Trade and other payables JE A5 BR R N L A JE A~ 3K (160,141) (40,489 (200,630
Borrowings B (18,300) - (18,300)
Contract liabilities aHaE (65,292 (4,019 (89,311)
Net identifiable assets BARBEKED
acquired at fair value Al R HE A 121,684 813,019 934,703
Goodwill EES - 106,013 106,013
Total acquired net assets BERARBEKER
at fair value FEERE 121,684 919,082 1,040,716
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36 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

36 WEMEBQR @
(A) %(B&0tw)

Project

Su Zhou
Liuyuan GWH Total
HMNEEER GWH et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETIT ARBTT ARBTT

Cash outflow on acquisition: WIERIRE R
Total consideration settled by UIREZMHBRRE

cash 121,634 905,257 1,026,891
Cash acquired in the subsidiary Uk B B Uk B b /B A &) 49

acquired BE 671) (20,005) (20,676)
Cash outflow on acquisition WERNESRE 120,963 885,252 1,006,215

MERNAMREEBNS S N RS AN
77 o TR 15 A NFIE

The goodwill is attributable to the workforce and the high profitability
of the acquired business. It is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes over 15 years.

BUWBAREE T _ZFTF+_A
=t HIEHE REXRERAEH

The acquired business contributed revenues of
RMB1,481,828,000 and profit of RMB114,640,000 to the

Group for the period from date of acquisition to 31
December 2020.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2020,
consolidated pro-forma revenue for the year ended 31
December 2020 would have been RMB193,654,000 higher
and profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 would
have RMB43,733,000 higher. These amounts have been
calculated using the subsidiaries’ results and adjusting
them for:

o differences in the accounting policies between the
Group and the subsidiaries’, and

o additional cost of sales that would have been
charged assuming the fair value adjustments to
properties under development had applied from 1
January 2020, together with the consequential tax
effects.

BEIRA A R #1,481,828,000 7T & FE
AR #114,640,000 7T °

WRER T _TF—H—HBE %A -
HE-Z-_ZTF+-A=1+—HIFE
WA EERAZENARE
193,654,000 * MBZE=ZT_FF+=
A=+—HIEFENFBABRE MARE
43,733,0007C ° ZELEHLU T FHE
BHMBARFEERTEST ¢

e AEEMMEBARZHENSBER
=82 R

e RBRU-_F-_TF— A HEHH
BHRYEETAABERAE - AN
RESE INEVERSNHE AN - DA KR AR
R GZ I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

37 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37 HEMWB QA
On 17 March 2020, the Group disposed of a property AZE_TFE=FA++tH AEELHEYER
development company (“Zhongshan Lianxing”) by reducing BAF([HILEEE ) - #A5 H AR B 60%
equity interests from 60% to 14.48% at a total proceeds of T E1448% IR BERBBRAARE
RMB118,526,000, and retained Zhongshan Lianxing as a joint 118,626,0007T * WHREH LB E LSS &3 o
venture.
On 29 May 2020, the Group disposed of a property development RIZE-_TEFRA-_1+NH KNEBUZSKE
company (“Wuxi Langcheng”) by reducing equity interests from HEMEZERE AR ([EHEEE]) @ FEHEER
100% to 50.1% at no consideration and retained Wuxi AR 100% 8 2=50.1% © WIRBEGAEZEAE
Langcheng as a joint venture. EE o
On 29 December 2020, the Group disposed of its 100% equity NRZZBE-_FTF+-_A=+HhH XEBUER
interests of Dawning Information at a total consideration of & A R #500,000,0007C H & B % 5 B &
RMB500,000,000. 100% % °
Net assets disposed with reconciliation of disposal gain and cash FTHEFREERLEENRANESRAYHKRD
inflow are as follows: N
Zhongshan Wuxi Dawning

Lianxing Langcheng Information Total

F L Bt R 98 87 BR % BXES st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Net assets disposed of FEEREERRE
comprise:
— Properties under development — — B 42 (374,156) - - (374,156)
— Cash and cash equivalents —BHe MR EEY (13,439 = (5,712) (19,151)
— Trade and other receivables, — R R E A
prepayments and deposits e - B R
b (274,531) (236,000) (3,631) (5614,162)
— Trade and other payables — ENRAREMEMNK 113,854 236,000 1,851 351,705
— Investment properties —REME = = (366,200) (366,200)
— Property, plant and equipment  — TBIEE « TR % &M - - (1,945) (1,945)
— Borrowings — E& 289,000 - - 289,000
— Non-controlling interests — JESEE RS 103,709 - - 103,709
— Deferred tax liabilities — BEMEHAE = - 68,915 68,915
Group’s share of net assets AEERIGMEEFEE
disposed of (155,563) - (306,722) (462,285)
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37 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37 HEMBLAT (2

Zhongshan Wouxi Dawning
Lianxing Langcheng Information Total
AL B EHEE BXEE @et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT

Retention of interest in REBREE P ERER

joint ventures 37,703 - - 37,703
Proceeds from disposal &5 F0E 118,526 - 500,000 618,526

156,229 - 500,000 656,229

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBRARBFEG 666 - 193,278 193,944
Net cash inflow arising on the HEELERNFERERA

disposals:
Total consideration settled by cash LR & @@ KR E (118,526) - (500,000 (618,526)
Consideration receivables (note 26) FEUH(B (Ki:E26) = = 200,000 200,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in J& : FTH KB A AlHY

the disposed subsidiaries Re kR eEEY 13,439 - 5,712 19,151

Net cash inflow arising on the HEELRFRESAA

disposals: (105,087) - (294,288) (399,375)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

38 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to those related party balances and transactions
elsewhere disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following significant balances and transactions:

(A) AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

38 BAMAAEBRRRS

ﬁ%??é?ﬁ“#&i%ﬁ@*ﬁ D PR ER B RE R T 4
RH AEBBEATERERERZ S

(A) FEUREASE TS FRIE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—g-®F —Z-AF
+=A=+-8 t=A=t—~
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBT T

Included in non-current assets (note 26): s+ AIERENEE (FizE26) ¢

— Associates ()) — Bt R A () - 89,275
— Joint ventures (ii) — A& i) 1,034,406 1,380,639
1,034,406 1,469,914
Included in current assets (note 26): sFARBIEE (MIE26) -

— Associates ()) — Bt R A () 549,689 830,913
— Joint ventures (i) — A& i) 2,991,900 1,902,488

— Ultimate controlling company and — RERPERR A A )SZ
its fellow subsidiaries HRAZRWEA 511 560
3,542,100 2,733,961

0] As of 31 December 2020, amounts due from associates are interest-
free.

As of 31 December 2019, non-current amounts due from associates
generate interest at 14.00% per annum. Current amounts due from
associates include RMB264,332,000 generating interest at 8.00%
per annum and the remaining amounts are interest-free.

(ii) As of 31 December 2020, non-current amounts due from joint
ventures include RMB118,459,000 bearing interest ranging from
5.00% to 12.00% per annum. Current amounts due from joint
ventures include RMB483,959,000 bearing interest at 8% per annum
and the remaining amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2019, non-current amounts due from joint
ventures include RMB1,188,512,000 bearing interest ranging from
5.00% to 14.00% per annum. Current amounts due from joint
ventures include RMB857,416,000 generating interest ranging from
5.00% to 13.00% per annum and the remaining amounts are
interest-free.

All amounts due from related parties are unsecured.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from related parties
approximate their fair values.
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RARERER °
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/N

7

E-T-AFE+-A=1+—8 " BKEZ
RAIFEM BN FIRIRF FIE 14.00% 718  FEUL
Bt 2 N B 7% B) 3K 08 B 35 A R 1 264,332,000
TT - IRFEFIEB.00%EHE - HERrR S ©

(ii) BHE-Z-_TF+-_A=1+—H EKR&E=Z
EIERBIEBIE AR 118,459,0007T
BEFERNT5.00% = 12.00% =1 8  BUA
O EREFERIE AR 483,959,000
REFR8%:TE  HBRE -

HE-ZT-AF+=-A=1+—8" KL%
¢%3Fméf)mlﬁi@%/\ﬁ%,ms,mzooo
Tc BEFRNT5.00% = 14.00%:1E &
& & EREHIE B E AR 857,416,000
T REFRNT5.00% E13.00%:18 - H
RS o

P FEMR BRESE 77 IR /S SRR AR o

FEURRREE T RN R EEEE QA R EE
HE o



38 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(B) AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

38 BEAERRERS #)
(B) FE{SRAEEHKIE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
. —TNF
t=A=+—-8 +t=A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETIT
Included in non-current liabilities (note 28): & AJERBI & 1& (FizE28) :
— Associates (i) — B QA () 310,240 369,114
— Joint ventures (i) — BB 1,377,067 1,055,019
1,687,307 1,424,133
Included in current liabilities (note 28): FFARBI A E (F1aE28) -
— Associates (i) — Bt R A () 1,727,839 2,527,445
— Joint ventures(ii) — BB 3,653,392 970,403
— Ultimate controlling company and — RBEIERR AT &
its fellow subsidiaries (iii) H 7] Z T8 A & (iii) 642,876 243,029
6,024,107 3,740,877

(i

(i)

As of 31 December 2020, non-current amounts due to associates
are interest-free. Current amounts due to joint ventures include
RMB147,000,000 bearing interest at 3.80% per annum and the
remaining amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2019, non-current amounts due to associates
are interest-free. Current amounts due to associates include
RMB661,279,000 bearing interest at 5.70% per annum and the
remaining amounts are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2020, non-current and current amounts due to
joint ventures are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2019, non-current amounts due to joint ventures
include RMB140,110,000 bearing interest ranging from 5.00% to
7.50% per annum and the remaining amounts are interest-free.
Current amounts due to joint ventures include RMB6,218,000
bearing interest at 12.00% per annum and the remaining amounts
are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2020, current amount due to ultimate controlling
company and its fellow subsidiaries are interest-free.

As of 31 December 2019, current amount due to ultimate controlling
company and its fellow subsidiaries are interest-free. The amount of
RMB214,590,000 was subsequently repaid during January 2020.

All amounts due to related parties are unsecured.

[0} HE—"Z-—ZF+-_A=+—8 BHIKBL
RAFRBRELARE - BENEELERD
I B 1E A R ¥ 147,000,000 7T © 12 F F R
3.80%:t 8 - Hépe s o

HE-Z-hFE+-_A=1+—8 " BRKL
RAERBRELARE - BNBERRRE
RIBEEHE AR 661,279,000 * & F F =
5.70% T2« EfREE o

i BE-F-BE+-A=+—H EHAE
D EIEREHIE LR RIAY AR S

HE-Z-HAF+-A=1+—8 4%
EIERBFIBRIEARK140,110,0007T
RENENF5.00%E7.50%:T 2 Eépe
B -ENAEECERDAEBEREARE
6,218,0007T ' R 7 E12.00% 5t 2 H &R
S

(ii) HE-T-ZF+-A=+—H ERNEK
ERAREERRHB AR REBZIBARS
HE-_T-HhE+-A=1+—8 ENREK
ERAFREEREZWNBRARARBREAR
B o AR#¥214,590,000 L EER =T =F
F—AEE -

T FE 1 R RSE 75 SRR A AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

38 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(C) TRADE RECEIVABLES

38 HEHERRERS &)

(C) EUWERRX

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
—F-FHF —FTNF
+=ZA=+—H +=ZHA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AREEFTT
Included in current assets (note 26): FTARBIEE (MI5E26)
— Joint ventures —aEghE 179,583 184,225
— Associates — Bt N A 89,927 84,885
— Ultimate controlling company and — RERPERR R E
its fellow subsidiaries HERZEMMB AR 24,998 4,918
294,508 274,028
Less: provision for bad debt R EAREE (3.1 (b))
(note 3.1 (b)(i) (16,255) (2,740)
278,253 271,288

(D) CONTRACT ASSETS

(D) EHNEE

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NEF
t=A=+-8 +=A=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREFIT
— Joint ventures — 580 48,095 74,575
— Associates — BN A 156 10,383
— Ultimate controlling company and — RKREIR AR K

its fellow subsidiaries HEZRMERAR] 41,461 7,402
89,712 92,360

Less: provision for bad debt R AR (M2 38.1(0)()
(note 3.1 (b)(i) (4,770) (924)
84,942 91,436
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38 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(E) BORROWINGS

38 HEHERRERS &)
(E) &R

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
- —TNF
t=RA=+—-B +=A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARET T

— Ultimate controlling company (note 29)

(F) ADVANCE FROM LESSEES

— HARIERR A F) (KI5E29) 917,577 917,577

(F) REFABEANBRK

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

. R
t=A=+—-8B +=A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

— Ultimate controlling company

(G) GUARANTEE

— RERERAR 28,486 31,085
(G) TR

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

=

t=A=+-8 +t-A=+-H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

— Guarantee in respect of related
parties’ borrowings (note 39)

— Guarantee in respect of related
parties’ lease (note 39)

— BB TSR IR

(Fff5E39) - 74,715
— hREAE T TSR AR
(F+7£39) - 344,218
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

38 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 38 BEBAERERS #)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS H) BELIXS
(i)  Funding with related parties () EHHEBSAERES

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z2-2F+-A=1+-HLEE

Funding to Collection of funding to
related parties related parties
BB RLES mEELREEE
Operating Investing Operating Investing
ge RE Re RE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARMTRT ARBTR

Associates NG| 1,878,973 - 2,023,112 73,284
Joint ventures REME 3,432,494 1,509,607 2,799,998 1,693,623
Ultimate controlling company REEBRAT R
and its fellow subsidiaries HRZRKBAR 11 - 2,830 -
5,311,478 1,509,607 4,825,940 1,766,907
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-2-2F+-A=1t-HLEE
Proceeds from Repayment to
related parties related parties
B BB 5 R E & nEBLEEES
Operating Financing Operating Financing
re mE Re mE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥BTR AR®TR ARBTR
Associates YN 733,983 147,000 546,334 825,264
Joint ventures BELE 7,144,112 43,050 4,392,717 -
Ultimate controlling company — SAIERR A & &
and its fellow subsidiaries HRZMB AR 12,640,564 - 12,270,716 -
20,518,659 190,050 17,209,767 825,264
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38 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(i)  Funding with related parties (Continued)

38 HEHERRERS &)

(H) BELEXZ &)
() HEHLTEREE(HE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+-A=+—HLEE

Collection of funding to

Funding to related parties related parties
mEE T RRE S AT REE S
Operating Investing Operating Investing

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETLE ARETE ARBTR

Associates d=/NG| 605,048 209 122,244 26,000
Joint ventures RENE 998,299 1,788,752 920,002 1,862,147
Ultimate controlling company — S&IERA F R
and its fellow subsidiaries ERZMERF 27,308 - 515 -
1,630,655 1,788,961 1,042,761 1,888,147
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NF+-A=+—HLFE
Proceeds from related parties Repayment to related parties
RIERE T NERE & mEk L EEES
Operating Financing Operating Financing
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARET:T
Associates il YN 686,468 - 1,139,177 522,225
Joint ventures REDE 2,154,953 328,608 1,621,233 97,520
Ultimate controlling company ~ H&IERA R R
and its fellow subsidiaries HRRKBAR 3,332,599 - 2,484,457 =
6,174,020 328,608 5,144,867 619,745
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

38 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 38 BEBAERERS #)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) H) BEIRZ (&)
(i) Management services, other income and (i) EERE - BEMRzREEREK

finance cost

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

EEE BHE
—BCEHE —E-NE
+t=A=t-8 +-A=t-H
I35 IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBET T

Management services income from REBERRIREEREL

associates and joint ventures (a) B EEHE@WLI& i (a) 290,389 518,118
Management services income from fellow 2R B AT A B[R F

subsidiaries of the ultimate controlling B AR 2 E B RIS ES (D)

company (b) 59,219 43,531
Rent income from fellow subsidiaries of the 3 B S 442 ik A T8I [E %

ultimate controlling company (c) fE A B2 e s o) 2,560 1,244
Construction Design Service fee paid to EisES NI EES )P

fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate T 2 R REE (0

controlling company (c) 2,949 6,523
Property Management Service fee paid to  [AIBAEILA AIHI R Z M B A 7

fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate IR MEERREE ()

controlling company (c) 49,917 21,551
Purchase of green architecture technological ¢ S 4% 1% B A% 52 89 [ Z B B A 7]

products and services from fellow BB O RERNE R &R (d)

subsidiaries of the ultimate controlling

shareholder (d) 13,938 20,507
Decoration services fee paid to fellow RIS AR RIH R R B A A

subsidiaries of the ultimate controlling TR ZEERBE ()

company (d) 187 5,630

Facilities and equipment rental and display [ &A1 IR A B8R R B A 7]
services fee paid to fellow subsidiaries of Rz B REREEEAR

the ultimate controlling company BRREE 13,643 -
Interest income on amounts due from JE Bt i A B 5B 2 FILE MR

associates (note 7) (PfzET) 44,039 14,419
Interest income on amounts due from joint  FEULA & 1> % ZE 2 F| 2 UL A

ventures (note 7) (BIE7) 57,816 119,958
Interest expense on loans from the ultimate 28 B & &2 A B 2 E7F8

controlling company (note 10) (e) E A (F43E10) () 51,614 72,845
Interest expense on loans from associates  KEME AR ZERFSER

(note 10) (FizE10) 54,024 39,186
Interest expense on loans from joint ventures R E & &M% Y BHF &R

(note 10) (FizE10) 983 1,602
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38 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(ii)

Management services, other income and

finance cost (Continued)

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
continuously provided management services to its associates
and joint ventures. The prices of these services are based on
the prevailing market prices of similar services.

Pursuant to the management services agreement entered
into between the Group and its ultimate controlling company,
the Group provided certain development management
services and sales management services to fellow
subsidiaries of the ultimate controlling company during the
year ended 31 December 2020. These transactions
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Group
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and such transactions
have complied with the relevant disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the rental agreement, construction design service
agreements and property management service agreements
entered into between the Group and its ultimate controlling
company, the Group provided certain services to fellow
subsidiaries of the ultimate controlling company during the
year ended 31 December 2020. The prices of these services
are based on the prevailing market prices of similar services
provided by the Group to independent third parties.

38 HEHERRERS &)

(H) BELEXZ &)
(i) EERE - Btz R & KER

(%)

(@)

BE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HILHF
B AEERERABREARREED
EREEERY - ZE R AELUR
BZBRITMEREBELE -

REAKEEESFKIEBRARRILZ
ERRBHH BE_FT_FTF+_
RA=+—B L EAEERKEZER
ARNBERMBRRRMEE THEE
BREREEEERY - RIELTR
AIF14AE  ZERXSBRAKEZ
FERERS  MaERZHEHETLE
TARBIE 14AEFIBABBRERE °

REASEEEFEIERARRILZ
HE W - RERARB HERIE
EBRGHE BE_T-_TF+=
A=+—B L EAEERKEER
REEEFRHTE A BRMEE TR -
FZERGARNEE MBS =T5 =4
ZEEURTS 2 RIT M B RE BEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

38 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(H) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(ii)

Management services, other income and
finance cost (Continued)

@

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
purchased certain green architecture technological products
and services, decoration services, property services and
properties consulting services from fellow subsidiaries of the
ultimate controlling shareholder. The prices of products and
services were based on the prevailing market prices of similar
products and services.

The ultimate holding company provided interest bearing
loans to the Group during the year. The interest expense on
loans is based on prevailing market interest rate and is
exempted from the reporting and disclosure requirement
pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

(I) Included in employee benefit expenses are key

38

S ERRER S &)

H) BHEXRZ#E)
(i) BERHZ EitlzREELEK
(&)
(@ BE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HItHF
B AEERSEERA RS R R
BARBEE THEREERMNERR
BR7S - &R ARTS - ¥ RRTS B 55
RS o Z B E m R AR ASRLLE &
MR 2BITHEREBERELE -

@ FA REERARRAEERMAT
Ko BERFSERIERITHS
FEEE - WRE EHARRIE 14A.90
RER R B TR RKERE

() EERMNEREEBRENTEIZEE

management personnel compensations which comprises ERABEME
the following categories:
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BZ =
t e 222 —TNF
+=ZA=+—-H +ZA=1t—H
LLEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT
Short term employee benefits 7 iR B2 A 23,711 29,117
Contributions to retirement RIRRE AT BT
benefits schemes 190 874
Restricted share award BER 1 Mk R 1 B2 D 3,621 -
27,522 29,991
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39 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39 HAEE
GUARANTEE BR

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—ECEHF —FENF
+=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities METERZIZBERERBIER@Q)
for certain purchasers (a) 1,523,236 1,342,505
Guarantee in respect of related parties’ TLEAH T 18 SRR AR (D)
borrowings (b) - 74,715
Guarantee in respect of related parties’ BLEAH 77 H ERHIELR ()
lease (c) - 344,218
1,523,236 1,761,438
(@) The Group cooperated with various financial institutions to arrange (@) AEEHZREPEBEIE  REMFEERLHR

BEXREURZSEERZEREETRHER - B
BARRENEREHER G EE R ERZBER (A
RIEERE)RBRITHRR - KRRRAEERA ¥
BRENZARBELTENR e

mortgaged loan facilities for the purchasers of its properties and provided
guarantees to secure such purchasers’ obligation of repayments. Such
guarantees will be released by banks upon earlier of the issuance of the real
estate ownership certificate and the satisfaction of relevant mortgaged loan.
In the opinion of directors of the Company, the fair value of the financial
guarantee contracts is not significant.

(b) As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantee to LS-NJ Port (b) RZEZZTF+-_A=+—H AEEME#HE
Imperial LLC, a 51% joint venture of the Group, for its EB-5 loan with the 51% 1 = ) & & 1 3 LS-NJ Port Imperial LLC &)
amount of Nil (2019: RMB74,715,000). EBSERREHRERAT(ZZT—NF: AR

74,715,0007T) °
(© As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantee to Shanghai (©) RZE-_TF+_A=+—H A5EEME#EE

Landsea Xiansuo Enterprise Management Co., Ltd., a 51% joint venture of
the Group, for its lease payment with the amount of Nil (2019:
RMB344,218,000) and any other possible contingent liabilities within the
lease arrangement.

51%ERMALNE EEMAFEMCEEEERA
AIMAERERAELRHE T EAEMAERRE
BREERAZS(ZZE—NF : ARK 344,218,000

JT) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

40 COMMITMENTS
(A) OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

40 EiIE
(A) EEHEERH

The Group — As lessee

The Group leases various offices, equipment and vehicles
under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within six
months to five years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
terms of the leases are renegotiated.

The Group has recognized right-of-use assets for these
leases, except for short-term and low-value leases.

The Group — As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties under operating
lease arrangements, with lease terms ranging from one to
twenty years, and with an option to renew the lease terms
at the expiry date or at the date as mutually agreed
between the Group and respective tenants. The terms of
the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At the reporting date, the Group has contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

EEE — ERBEABA
AEBERBENAIBHLLHEERET
WAE  RE&E BHERAEAZE
hFERER - BEFTATRER - 1
R R BN - B - HERKEA
BEXER o

AEERZSHERREREEE - K
R R EEEEERI

FEE — EBHBEA

AEERBEERERFHBEEKRE N
WE BENF—E2-+F EER
BB R AKREEEESERBE L
REEM - HEGK—REEBEP N
FREEZLRBRBEERRITTRE BHAEME

NSRS AREANTRESITH
2 RABAER B

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

—E-FF —TNF

t=A=t+t—-8 +=A=1—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETTT

Within one year —F R 4,814 24,848
Later than one year but no later than —FRETHBBRF

five years 17,953 78,191

Over five years FRiB A F 28,974 45,724

51,741 148,763
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40 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 40 AHEIE (@)

(B) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (B) BEXAME
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had the following RZEBE-_ZEF+_HA=1+—H &x&EH
capital commitments: ZEAREFEWNT

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—g=88 T NF
+=A=t-A +=A=+-8
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBETT

Contracted but not provided for: BRI B R B

— Development expenditure — FABEZN 66,689 310,284
— Purchase of freehold land — BEKAFEELTM 1,680,730 528,930
— Renovation expenditure — BTl - -

1,747,419 839,214
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

41 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
The Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are
set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the
Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the
voting rights held by the Group. The country of incorporation or
registration is also their principal place of business.

Place of incorporation/

41

ESE-J0h)E NG|
R-T-TF+-A=+—0 FEEIEMH
BAREINT - RBEHAE  ZERA
OB A 2 ph AN S B B A 4 10 T RARARLAR, + T
BB REEOLPIRSR A SRR ENER
1 - AR RERER T ARSRAANEE
RS

Ownership interests Directly

establishment and held by the Group owned or Principal
Name of entity operations Registered capital As at December 31 indirectly owned activities
e/ RT=R=t-RA%E ERER
ERERE RUREELY kA fskaRkER AEEEE TEEH
2020 2019
ZB08F TR0
(%) (%)
Cathay Holdings Limited (c) Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
BEREEERAT B 2R BRIET B KA
China Information Industry Limited (c) Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
REERERERAA B M BRIET 73 AR
GOI Limited (c) Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
3 M BRIET B AR
(Green Future Holoings Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100 100 Direct Investment holding
SGERRERERAR B 1R BRIET B AR
(Green Homeland Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
RERRERAA B 1R BRIET B AR
Green Theme Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
3 1R BRIET B AR
New Phenomenon Technology Limited (c) BVI 1 share of USS1 100 100 Direct Investment holding
EB4RRRE 1R Rixn B AR
Aqua Sky Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
HEERAR 3 1R BRIET B AR
Easy Shine Global Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
APRRERAR 3 1R BRIET B AR
Green Era Limited (c) BVI 1 share of USS1 100 100 Direct Investment holding
EB4RRRE 1R Rixn B AR
Power sky enterprises Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
AREEERAT 3 1R BRIET B AR
Prosperous eagle Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
ERERAA 3 1R BRIET B AR
Landsky Investment Holdings Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
FRRARRERAR B 1R BRIET B AR
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41 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 4 FEMBLE @)
Place of incorporation/ Ownership interests Directly
establishment and held by the Group owned or Principal
Name of entity operations Registered capital As at December 31 indirectly owned activities
L/ RT=ZB=t-RA%E ERER
ERERE RIREEHE iR frskekER AEEEE TEEH
2020 2019
IEIRE CITF
(%) )
Landiving Investment Holdings Limited (c) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 Direct Investment holding
FERARRERAR Bk 1k Ski#n B RERER
Asia Pacific Business Link Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each and 100 100 Indirect Property development
9,670,000 shares of
US$1 each
SREERRERAT &k 20 BR1ETTRY,6700008 - 73 FHERE
ShiEn
Shanghai Kunhong Industrial Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB100,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
LEEREXARAR mEAL AK%100,000,0007C 3 EHERS
Chengdu Langming Property Limited Mainland China RMBB,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
BAASESERAR mEAL AK8,000,0007C 3 EHERS
Shanghai Langming Property development Limited Mainland China RMBA50,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
LEREHERSARAA mEAL AR%50,000,0007C 3 EHERS
Suzhou Langkun Property Limited Mainland China RMB100,000,000 55 55 Indirect Property development
FNRmERARAR" hER ARE100,000,0007 3 FHERE
Nanjing Xubohui Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB100,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
BREERCERARAR" hER AE#100,000,0007C 3 FHERE
Nanjing Xuyuhui Enterprise Management Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
Gonsulting Co., Lid.
BRIBHEL R EREAERAT hER AREES,0000007 553 FHERS
Nanjing Landsea Investment Management Limited Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100 100 Indlrect Investment holding
BB REERERAR hER AR 20000000070 553 RERR
Shanghai Landsea Investment Management Limited ~ Mainland China US $5,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
LERREERERAR RER 5,000 000%7C 553 RERR
Nanjing Langming Properties Group Limited Mainland China RMB1,260,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
ERBHEEERRAR" hER ARE1,250,000,0007 553 RERR
Zhongfuyiyang (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB100,000,000 75 75 Indirect Property development
TEBERRREEARAR hER ARE100,000,00070 553 FHERS
Nanjing Xinzhou Sheng Investment Management Mainland China RMB350,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
Co, Ltd.
ek ERERAR Bl AE#350,000,0007C & FHERR
Nanjing Landsea Construction and Decoration Limted ~ Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100 100 Indirect Decoration and design
AR RR AR AR Bl ARH50,0000007 3 R ket
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e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

41 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) M TENBELR @
Place of incorporation/ Ownership interests Directly
establishment and held by the Group owned or Principal
Name of entity operations Registered capital As at December 31 indirectly owned activities
AL/ RT=A=+-R%%E ERHA
ERER RUREEDY fRA fisBRRRESR IEEER TERH
2020 2019
S i
(%) (%)
Zhejiang Langyue Construction and Decoration Limited - Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Decoration and design
IR RER S ERAR HEI AR#10,0000007C 73 G
Wuxi Minglang Property Limited Mainland China RMBA50,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
BERMBRARAR HEI ABR50,0000007C 73 FHERE
Chengdu Longshi Enterprise Management Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
Consutting Co., Ltd.
HARHCEERENAR AR REIR AE%200,000,0007C 53 FHERR
Chengdu Langyu Enterprise Management Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
Consutting Co., Ltd
BARECFERTNERAT" [y mEAE AR%30,000,0007C 73 EHERS
Hangzhou Langhan Investment Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
MNARREBRAR mEAE AR5,000,0007 73 EHERS
Wuhan Longshi Management Consutting Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
RERRHEREAERAR" hER ARE10,0000007 73 FHERE
Nanjing Xinhuisheng Investment Management Limited ~ Mainland China RMBB,000,000 100 60  Indirect Investment holding
BREREREERARAA mEAE AR8,000,0007 73 RERR
Hangzhou Langhui Investment Management Limted ~ Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
MAREREERARAA mEAE AR5,000,0007 73 RERR
Bejing Landsea Investment Limited Mainland China RMBA50,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
IR A ERARAR" hER ARE50,0000007 73 FHERE
Suzhou Longming Management Consulting Co., Ltd. ~ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
FNRREREAERAR" hER ARE10,0000007 73 FHERE
Xi'an Longshi Enterprise Management Consutting Mainland China RMBA50,000,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
Co,, Ltd.
ERA R E R RARAR HEI ABR#50,0000007C 73 FHERE
Shanghai Shanglv Marketing Planning Co., Ltd Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Indirect Marketing
LRgmAERREARAR HEI AR#10,0000007C 73 4
Chengdu Hanfei Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. ~ Mainland China RMB212,295,600 100 100 Indirect Property development
R EREHERERRAR HEI ARE212,295,600 73 FHERE
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

41

FEWB AT &)

Ownership interests Directly

establishment and held by the Group owned or Principal
Name of entity operations Registered capital As at December 31 indirectly owned activities
HEL/ RT=A=t-R4%E ERHA
ERER RUREELY R fskaRkER SHEER IEER
2020 2019
SR =
(%) (%)
Nantong Diding Business Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB300,000 100 100 Indirect Property development
BRFRLEERERA () REA AR¥300,0001 73 RHERE
Landsea Holoings Corporation US US$158,873,331 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
XA 168,873,331 73 AR
SFVale LLC (@) US 15$9,000,000 5 5 Indirect Investment holding
e 9,000000%7 73 AR
LS- Jordan Ranch LLC US US$19,900,870 100 100 Indirect Real estate development and sales US
XA 19.900870% T 73 FHERERHE - 28
LS-LASmiLLC US US$21,786,756 100 100 Indirect Real estate development and sales US
XA 21,786,756 T 73 FHERERHE - 28
LS-0C Portola LLC US US$102,849,956 100 100 Indirect Real estate development and sales US
XA 102,849,956 73 FHERERHE - 28
LS-Walnut Cregk LLC US US812,945,033 100 100 Indirect Real estate development and sales US
XA 12.945,233% 0 73 FHERERHE - 28
LS-Sunnyvale LLC US US$133,269,944 Il T Indirect Real estate development and sales US
XA 133,260,944 73 FHERERHE - 28
Epic China Limited (c) BVI US$50,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
ABERRES 50,000%7C 73 RERR
Landsea Equity LLC US 1S$51,900,000 100 100 Indirect Investment holding
XA 51,900,000 73 AR
# Limited liability company registered in Mainland China & R BE Rt R 2 BRAE
. English translations are for identification purpose only * E A TBEEHER

(@) The Group is the only managing member of the Company.

(b) The equity interests of the subsidiary were pledged for bank borrowings of
the Group’s joint ventures.

() The senior notes (note 29) are irrevocably, fully and unconditionally
guaranteed on a senior basis by these subsidiaries (each and collectively).

(d) The equity interests of the subsidiary were pledged for bank borrowings of
the Group.

AEERZATE—EERKS o

ZIMBABMBRECERAEE S ERERITHER
HHEAR

BreRiE (M= 29) it S B A & (A5 R /) T
ARE - BEREGEEEER -

A E A B R AT AE R AR BRTTE A ER

BFgeERRAR/ —T-_TFFR @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

42 SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 42 HE RFEHIMERERME A R/ E

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- BERRBE

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2020 were RIE_TF+ - A=+ — BHRIEE S
approximately RMB511,653,000 (2019: RMB805,533,000), of HH A ANRKS511,653,0000( —F — N 4F -
which approximately were RMB394,504,000(2019: AR #805,533,0007T) * EFR&ERINERIHE XS
RMB291,777,000) attributed as below for Suzhou Langkun RN 8] FE (G #9 A R #£394,504,000( =& — /1
Property Limited. & AR¥291,777,0007T) 40T °
SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF BALANCE EEEEXRRBE

SHEET

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
b et 222 —T-NF
t+t=A=+—-B +ZRA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Current mE

Assets BE 2,210,606 3,023,336

Liabilities =N (1,318,084) (1,971,932)
Total current net assets MENFEERE 892,522 1,051,404
Non-current JEmED

Assets BE 29,148 55,383

Liabilities afE (44,994) (458,394)
Total non-current net assets EMEFEERE (15,846) (403,011)
Net assets BEZE 876,676 648,393
Accumulated non-controlling interest IS S 394,504 201,777
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42 SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 42 BEERFEHIMEREZRME A R/

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- BERBTE %)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF 2HEHKRERBE

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
bt 222 —ZE-hF
+=ZHA=+t—8B +tZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Revenue WA 1,268,853 104,005
Profit before income tax bR FT1S EL B A1 E 304,377 114,559
Income tax expense Frisii & A 76,094 29,041
Total profit IpERCES 228,283 85,518
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEPEKESEE 228,283 85,518

Total comprehensive income attributable to  JEFEHI RS B (G 2 T UK ER 48 58
non-controlling interest 102,727 38,483

Distribution to non-controlling interests M FEHE B M RE RS D R - =

BFgeERRAR/ —T-_TFFR @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

42 SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 42
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
SUMMARIZED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

BE ARFEZEHI RS E A 7§ BT
KERBEE®

RERERWE
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BZE HE
—BIEF —E-NF
+=ZA=+—-H8 +ZHA=t—H
IEFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Net cash used in operating activities KRB FT IR © 55 (141,313) (508,660)
Net cash used in from investing activities KBRS F8E - (47)
Net cash used in from financing activities B & EEN T RIS ERE (49,725) (38,798)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents Re MBS EEYR A FE (191,038) (547,505)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HHNERSRESEED 311,018 858,523
Effect of currency translation on cash and HeMReEEMEEHRENTE

cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December A+ —-A=+—HHNIRE MIRESEEY 119,980 311,018
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43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

rRTAEERER

31 December

43 ARAEERERRREAEEEY

31 December

2020 2019
—F-8HF —TNF
+=A=+—H +-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE 566,556 415,717
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, prepayments HaEBGR « B R RIES
and deposits 4,528,169 5,579,063
Cash and cash equivalents Be MIREEEY 136,750 48,892
4,664,919 5,627,955
Total assets BEAE 5,231,475 6,043,672
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables HAubER R 3,028,111 2,712,113
Borrowings =4 73,336 1,648,744
3,101,447 4,360,857
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Borrowings BN 2,622,282 1,368,211
Total liabilities HWEE 5,723,729 5,729,068
Equity s
Share capital R 2R 38,702 38,702
Reserves ] @) (530,956) 275,902
Total (deficit)/equity (s s (492,254) 314,604
Total liabilities and equity BEERER 5,231,475 6,043,672

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board

of Directors on 30 March 2021 and was signed on its behalf.

Huang Zheng

H=IE

Director

EF

RARBERBBREN-_ZE-_—F=A=+H
KREERIE  WHATALIRREE -

Jiang Chao
i
Director

EF

RS ERRAR/ S5 F% @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 43 XRAREEEBERRFEZE @)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(A) RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (A) EQFFESE
Share
based Capital
Share Translation compensation Employee redemption Contributed Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve  share trust reserve surplus reserve losses Total

RESH ESRG  KARE
REE  FEERE L] 3 R EMRE  ABREE  RTER 3t
Noe ~ RMB'O00  RMBIO00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBI000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
i ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETL

At 1 January 2020 R-2-8%-5-A 824,366 66,113 725 (62,151) 23,185 155,619 - (781,985 275,902

Exchange difference arising from BEBNEBAELELZE

tranlation of foreign operation - 32,263 - - - - - - 32,263
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - (491,920)  (491,920)
Total comprehensive loss EEREFELE

for the year - 32,263 - - - - - (491,920)  (459,657)
Movement of employee share trust (BRI EXHES 20)

account - - - (20,284) - - - - (20,284)
Employee share based compensation & 8 IR iE RN 32(0) - - 10,861 - - - 13,805 - 24,666
Transfer of share premium to ERNERERZEN AR 33

contributed surplus (800,000) - - - - 800,000 - - -
Dividend declared to ordinary MERRRRERMRE 13

shareholder - - - - - (351,583) - - (351,583)
Subtotal of transaction with ERRRZ G

shareholders (800,000) - 10,861 (20,284) - 448,417 13,805 - (347,201)
At 31 December 2020 R=B=%%+-A=1-A 24,366 98,376 11,586 (82,435) 23,185 604,036 13805  (1,223875)  (530,956)

@ Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2020



43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(A) RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

43 APREEEBREHFESESR &)

(A) ERFFEEE (H)

(Continued)
Share based Capital
Share  Translation  compensation Employee  redemption  Contributed ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve  share trust reserve surplus losses Total
RiERM  ESRD  AARE
REE  TERE B &t BE  EHER  Z3EE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETrn
At 1 January 2019 R=B-nE-A-A 824,366 63,223 9,834 (42,970) 23,185 337,347 (499,102) 715,883
Exchange difference arising from ~ E B EBFELE 28
translation of foreign operation - 2,890 - - - - = 2,890
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - (232,853 (232,853
Total comprehensive loss EEREFRAE
for the year - 2,890 - - - - (232,859) (229,963)
Shares held for restricted share —— ARBIERG 2B EIMEE
award scheme 2Rt - - - (29,154) - - - (29,154)
Employee share based compensation g & B - - (9,109) 9973 - (864) - -
Dividend RE - - - - - (180,864) - (180,864)
Subtotal of transaction with HRRR SNt
shareholders = = 0109 (19,181 - (i81729) - 001y
At 31 December 2019 RZE-RE+=ZA=1+-R 824,366 66,113 1725 (62,151) 23,185 155,619 (731,955) 275,902

BFgeERRAR/ —T-_TFFR @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B A R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—_ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE

44 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

@

On 31 August 2020 (US time), Landsea Holdings
Corporation (“LHC”) and Landsea Homes Incorporated
(“LHI"), both indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company entered into the conditional agreement with LF
Capital Acquisition Corp. (“LF Capital”), a special purpose
acquisition company in the US with its Class A common
stock, public warrants and units listed on National
Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations
capital market and LFCA Merger Sub, Inc. (“Merger Sub”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of LF Capital in relation to a
merger transaction by which Merger Sub merges with and
into LHI with LHI being the surviving entity of such merger
(the “Merger”).

Upon the consummation of the Merger, the Company,
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, LHC, will receive
consideration for the Merger, in the form of 32,557,303
Class A common stock in LF Capital and LHI will become
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
with the approximate share percentage of 70%, the original
shareholders of LF Capital will be recognized as non-
controlling interest of the Group.

The Merger constituted a spin-off of the Company (the
“Merger and the Proposed Spin-off”) which is subject to
the applicable requirements in Practice Note 15 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, as amended from time to time (“Listing Rules”)
(“PN15”) and a major transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules which are subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company.
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44 SREHIEREE

U

RZEZZTFNA=Z+—HB(EEK
Ml ) ' Landsea Holdings Corporation
([LHC ) ¥ Landsea Homes Incorporated
(TLHI) AR ARIEEE2ENBAR)
EE |F Capital Acquisition Corp. ([LF
Capital| » EBHEK B UK E AT - HA
HEBR ARRREEREMAEE
ZEBAHRFHEHEESREELRTS
_E71) % LFCA Merger Sub, Inc. ([ Merger
Sub] ' LF Capital = &M B A A)) st &
RSB GG & H Merger
Sub& HFALHI - LHIR & &N AT

BER(AHD -

Awmﬁé RARHBEREEENWB

A @) LHC A 32,557,303 i% LF Capital B A
AR R A WEA HFRIE - i LHI
B ARARANEEZEFEZEWB AR -
E RS 2 4970% (BDLF Capital £
J?H&%)ME R 7N 5 B A JE 2= I 1 A

E\\

EBHBRARANDHF([EHFREHD
w1 AETHIAES EmARTE
MARA - ETRER]) E15HERED
([E15IEEMAEL DHERRE UK
BRLETRANFEI4ERTARBNERE
X5 AETARABRIERE °



44 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

U)

(i)

(Continued)

The Merger and Proposed Spin-off does not constitute a
business combination under HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations and will be accounted for in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as a continuation of the
financial statements of LHI, together with a deemed issue
of shares for the acquisition of LF Capital. This deemed
issue of shares by LHI will be accounted for as an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction whereby LHI will
be receiving the net assets of LF Capital, generally cash,
together with the listing status of LF Capital. The difference
between the fair value of the shares that are deemed to
have been issued by LHI and the fair value of the net assets
of LF Capital at the completion date, will be expensed in
profit or loss as listing expense.

The Company has obtained approval from The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) at 18
December 2020. The special general meeting (“SGM”) of
the Company was held on 7 January 2021 and the
proposed ordinary resolution as set out in the notice of the
SGM dated 21 December 2020 was duly passed by the
independent shareholders of the Company. As a result, the
Merger was consummated and completed on 7 January
2021.

On 8 February 2021, the Group acquired 70% equity
interest of Xi’an Jiapeng from third parties at a total
consideration of RMB42,000,000. After the acquisition,
Xi’an Jiapeng became a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group.

44 REHEREE (&)

)

(i

(&)
EHREZRSIFUEER BB SRS
HAEIREBEHETEBEN X
HEE A LHI B 75 2R 38 MO X 48 B AR (351 T AR
P AU LF Capital —#f A& B4z 4 Bt
BB o ZRIEBITLHIRD TER
IRELEEURDAERNERZH A
H A LHI# % W LF Capital K& & %
BE(KB EARS) K LF Capital #9_EThb
iz o 5eAk B BIAR & LHIB 2T IR A
ABEELF Capital BEFEN AL EBE
WEEHREETZHALTER -

ARARERZZE=ZEF+=A+N\HR
BEBBMER AR AR ([HZFT])
BHLE - ARBIERZZTE=_—F— A+t
HETRESNXRg (KRR X
g2) MBBMR-ZE=-_ZF+=A
:-?—*EIH’]Hi%ﬁElJ eBEMEESR

BRERRCEARF AR IENR
1:5 At AHER=_TE=_—F— A+
=R

RZZZ—FZANH  ARRIEER
B AR ¥ 42,000,000 7RI = 5 UK
BRALTEME70%E - WER - AL
ek AAREBHE2ERB AR -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBERHE

Year ended 31st December

BE+-—RA=1+—HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EZEF —T-NF —ZFT)\F —FT—tF —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT ARETT AREBTT ARETT
Results e
Revenue* A 8,991,903 8,712,893 7,560,526 6,213,931 4,845,008
Profit before income tax* R BT S H5 AT 1) A 521,739 2,011,955 2,261,739 1,127,411 832,467
Income tax expense* Frisfi & f~ (489,148) (513,821) (821,169) (406,570) (225,631)
Profit for the year EEFE 32,501 1,498,134 1,440,570 720,841 606,836
Attributable to: BEEN :
The shareholder of the Company 282 &% 5 (100,572) 1,171,943 1,112,774 580,523 595,439
Non-controlling interest eI HI MR 133,163 326,191 327,796 140,318 11,397
32,501 1,498,134 1,440,570 720,841 606,836
Including continuing and discontinued operations BIEREREEBRERIEES
At 31st December
R+=—HA=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EB-%F —TNF T\ T tF T ARF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT ARETT AREFTT AREFTT
Assets and liabilities BEEMEE
Total assets B E 24,700,795 25842,208 26,775,274 20,320,501 18,007,126
Total liabilities wafE (19,205,656) (19,737,977) (22,014,379) (16,622,438) (14,954,410)
5,495,139 6,104,231 4,760,895 3,698,063 3,052,716
Attributable to: FEBR
The shareholder of the Company  ZxA FIJ& 5 4,983,486 5,298,698 4,383,555 3,491,941 2,900,656
Non-controlling interest FEFEHIMERERS 511,653 805,533 377,340 206,122 152,060
5,495,139 6,104,231 4,760,895 3,698,063 3,052,716
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REMY=FE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR RENTAL #F{EHE2REMWHE

PURPOSE

Location

Ho 2

Nature of
property
YIFEME

Attributable
interest of
the Group

REEESES

Lease term

HAFHY

Nanjing Huafei Apartment,
Block 11 Zhangying Estate Huadian Road,
Qixia District,

Nanjing City,

Jiangsu Province,

The PRC

[

LERA

R

EER
EBEREN11IR
FARERAE

Landsea Neighbourhood Union,
Southwest side B of intersection of
Yunhe West Road and Ningjia Road,
New District,

Wuxi City,

Jiangsu Province,

The PRC

R

TLERA

£ N0)

iz

N PR B S B A X M

Fam B

FAEFAEE &

Huangxing Building,
No.18 Huangxing Road,
Yangpu District,
Shanghai City,

The PRC

HE

EB™

HRE

= B ER 1857

ELLVN

Apartment

>
i}

Commercial

[GES

Commercial and
Apartment

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Medium-term lease

hEI A

Medium-term lease

R ERTEAY

Medium-term lease

T EAREAY

BFgeERRAR/ —T-_TFFR @



PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BREMEYRFR

Attributable
Nature of interest of
Location property the Group Lease term

1t B MEME G M P 5 e BAFH

Nanjing Wangjiawan Building, Commercial 60% Medium-term lease
Building Block No. 5 of

Landsea Green Center,

The southwestern corner of

the intersection of

Xuanwu Avenue and

Jiangwangmiao Street,

Xuanwu District,

Nanjing City,

Jiangsu Province,

The PRC

HEY [EES 60% FRERTEAY
LA

FARM

ZR @

ZRANERETBHRAEAMEA

ARG B LERE

AREFRENE
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